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welcome

Welcome to the City of Winter Park City Commission meeting. The agenda for regularly scheduled Commission meetings
is posted in City Hall the Tuesday before the meeting. Agendas and all backup material supporting each agenda item are
available in the City Clerk’s office or on the city’s website at cityofwinterpark.org.

meeting procedures

Persons desiring to address the Commission MUST fill out and provide to the City Clerk a yellow
“"Request to Speak” form located by the door. After being recognized by the Mayor, persons are asked to come
forward and speak from the podium, state their name and address, and direct all remarks to the Commission as a body
and not to individual members of the Commission, staff or audience.

Citizen comments at 5 p.m. and each section of the agenda where public comment is allowed are limited to
three (3) minutes. The yellow light indicator will remind you that you have one (1) minute left. Large groups
are asked to name a spokesperson. This period of time is for comments and not for questions directed to the
Commission or staff for immediate answer. Questions directed to the City Commission will be referred to staff and should
be answered by staff within a reasonable period of time following the date of the meeting. Order and decorum will be
preserved at all meetings. Personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks are not permitted. Thank you for participating
in your city government.

agenda

NOTE: A reception will be held in the Chapman Room (next to Commission
1 Chamber) from 3:00-3:30 to congratulate Commissioners Sprinkel and
Seidel.
Meeting Called to Order

2 Invocation Reverend David Miller, First United Methodist Church
Pledge of Allegiance

Oath of Office Commissioner Seidel — Seat 1
Commissioner Sprinkel — Seat 2

4 Approval of Agenda

’ *Projected Time
5 Mayor’s Report *Subject to change

a. Proclamation - Allen Trovillion Day

b. Legislative update 15 minutes
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10

City Manager’s Report

City Attorney’s Report

Non-Action Items

a. Presentation of Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

Citizen Comments | 5 p.m. or soon thereafter
(if the meeting ends earlier than 5:00 p.m., the citizen comments will be at the end of the
meeting) (Three (3) minutes are allowed for each speaker; not to exceed a total of 30 minutes for
this portion of the meeting)

Consent Agenda

a. Approve the minutes of March 13, 2017.
b. Approve the following contracts:

1.

Geosyntec Consultants, RFQ-4-2017, Continuing Contract for
Professional Stormwater Management & Design Services; and
authorize the Mayor to execute contract.

. Singhofen & Associates, Inc., RFQ-4-2017, Continuing Contract

for Professional Stormwater Management & Design Services; and
authorize the Mayor to execute contract.

. Kimley-Horn, RFQ-6-2017, Continuing Contract for Professional

Transportation Planning & Engineering Services and authorize
the Mayor to execute contract.

. Amendment No. 1 with AVCON, Inc., RFQ-15-2015, FDOT LAP

Continuing Services Contract for Engineering & Design Services
and authorize the Mayor to execute renewal.

. Amendment No. 1 with Comprehensive Engineering Services,

Inc., RFQ-15-2015, FDOT LAP Continuing Services Contract for
Engineering & Design Services and authorize the Mayor to
execute renewal.

. Amendment No. 1 with Kelly, Colling & Gentry, Inc., RFQ-15-

2015, FDOT LAP Continuing Services Contract for Engineering &
Design Services and authorize the Mayor to execute renewal.

11 Action Items Requiring Discussion
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a. Request of Deshpande, Inc.: 20 minutes
- Ordinance - To amend the “Comprehensive Plan” Future Land
Use map to change from a Single Family Future Land Use
Designation to Low Density Residential at 524 Country Club
Drive (1)
- Ordinance - To amend the Official Zoning Map from Single
Family Residential (R-1A) District to Low Density Residential (R-
2) District zoning at 524 Country Club Drive.
- To amend their preliminary subdivision plat encompassing the
current lakefront properties at 524/532/600/604 Country Club
Drive to revise the lot size dimensions of the proposed six
lakefront lots and include a common area lakefront tract.
b. Resolution - Executing a Public Transportation Joint Participation 10 minutes

Agreement with the State of Florida Department of Transportation
to provide Section 5309 Earmark Grant funding enabling the City to
mitigate trespassing and safety hazards

c. Request of Oppidan Holdings LLC:
- Conditional use approval to build an Orchard Supply Hardware 60 minutes
Store on the current site of the Aloma Bowl at 2530 Aloma
Avenue, zoned Commercial (C-3) and providing for certain
exceptions and a development agreement, if required.

d. Request of Villa Tuscany Holdings, LLC:
-  Conditional use approval to build a three story, 41,352 square 60 minutes
foot, 24 unit, 51 bed, Memory Care Facility at 1298 Howell
Branch Road, zoned Multi-Family Residential (R-3), providing for
certain exceptions and for a development agreement, Iif
required.

e. Request of BFC New England LLC:
-  Conditional use approval to construct a three story mixed use 45 minutes
building of 52,601 square feet with parking in a basement level
on property zoned Commercial (C-2) at 158 East New England
Avenue and providing for certain exceptions including setbacks
and parking and for approval of a developer’s agreement.

f. Fee Schedule to be effective April 1, 2017 10 minutes
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13 City Commission Reports *Pr&jueb?:‘:ctlo'zli‘::ge

Commissioner Seidel

Commissioner Sprinkel

Commissioner Cooper 10 minutes total
Commissioner Weldon

Mayor Leary

©oo T

appeals & assistance

“If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at such
meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the
appeal is to be based.” (F. S. 286.0105).

“Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk’s
Office (407-599-3277) at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.”
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city commission agenda item

Item type Non-Action Item meeting date  March 27, 2017
prepared by Wes Hamil, Finance Director approved by City Manager
department Finance |:| City Attorney

division [_InjA
board |:| yes |:| no N|A final vote

approval

|:| Cherish and sustain city's extraordinary quality of life.

vision |:| Plan growth through a collaborative process that protects
themes city’s scale and character.

Enhance city's brand through flourishing arts and culture.

|:| Build and embrace local institutions for lifelong learning
and future generations.

subject

Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year
ended September 30, 2016

motion | recommendation

No action is necessary

background

City staff prepared the CAFR and it was audited by Moore Stephens Lovelace, PA

alternatives | other considerations

None

fiscal impact

None
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1.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Repo

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

For an overview of the City’s financial condition and results of operations, see
Management’s Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 19 of the report. Also,
the transmittal letter beginning on page 7 provides an introduction to the report
describing the City’s and auditor's responsibilities as well as local economic
conditions and long-term financial planning measures.

Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund decreased by $2,998,517 to $8,044,529,
and was 17.26% of total expenditures and transfers out for recurring costs reported in
other funds for the fiscal year ended September 30. Some of the most significant
factors in this decrease include:

Purchase of bowling alley property ($1,900,000)
Golf course renovation ($1,200,000)
FY 2015 purchase orders re-appropriated to FY 2016 ($384,243)
Departmental budgetary savings $308,725
Net effect of other factors on General Fund Reserves $177,001
Total ($2,998,517)

The sale of the 2600 Lee Road property will increase reserves by about $850,000.
Below is a chart illustrating the history of General Fund Reserves:

General Fund Reserves
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2. Net Position of the Water and Sewer Fund improved by $3,072,662 for the year
and cash flows were a positive $2,878,662. Net water and wastewater revenues
were 1.98 times debt service as compared to a minimum requirement of 1.25.

3. Net Position of the Electric Services Fund improved by $4,363,008 for the year
while cash flows were a positive $638,966. Net electric revenues were 2.55
times debt service as compared to a minimum requirement of 1.25.

4. There were no management letter recommendations from the auditors.
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Qm rehensive
VISION

\

COMPREHENSIVE
Annual FINANCIAL REPORT

Be the best place to live, work and play in Florida for today’s residents and future generations.
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COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

CITY OF CULTURE AND HERITAGE

The City of Winter Park, Florida
For The Year Ended September 30, 2016

Prepared by the Finance Department
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TABLE OF CONTENTS
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ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
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City of Winter Park, Florida
Principal City Officials

September 30, 2016

City Commission

MAYOR o Steven J. Leary
VICE MAYOR ..ot Sarah C. Sprinkel
COMMISSIONERS........cooiieee e Carolyn A. Cooper

Gregory S. Seidel
Peter J. Weldon

Administrative

(O] VY = g = To T R Randy B. Knight
Assistant City Manager .......cccoeevvereeeereeneesee e eseee e Michelle M. Neuner
CItY ATLOINEY ..o Kurt Ardaman
Administrative Staff

BUIldING DIF€CLON ..o George J. Wiggins
(O] Y O = o S Cynthia S. Bonham
CommunicationS Dir€CLOr .......cccveeereeiiriereee e Clarissa C. Howard
FINANCE DIr€CLON ..o s CharlesW. Hamil, |11
FIr@ CRIES ... James E. White
Parks & Recreation DIrector ........coceevevevieecee e, John R. Holland
Planning & Community Development Director ..........ccccceeueee. Dori L. Stone
POlICE CRIES ... e J. Michael Deal
Public Works & Electric UtilitiesDirector........c.cccccevcveeneen. Troy R. Attaway
Water & Sewer UtilitieS DireCtor ........coceceveveeveesiieeieesee e David L. Zusi
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2016
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CITT OF CULTURE 4tb HERITAGE

Ciry oF WINTER Park

401 Park Avenue South

Winter Park, Florida

32789-4386
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March 21, 2017

To the Honorable Members of the City
Commission and the Citizens of the
City of Winter Park, Florida:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Winter Park, Florida (City) for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2016, is hereby submitted. This report consists of management’s
representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the
City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the City’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and
to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the
City’s financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls
should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free
of material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable
in all material respects.

Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A., a firm of licensed certified public
accountants, has audited the City’s financial statements. The goal of
the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2016, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, are
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

Profile of the City

The City, incorporated in 1887, is located in Central Florida in north Orange County and is
considered part of the Orlando Metropolitan Area. Although the Orlando Metropolitan Area has
been one of the top growth areas in the country, generally, Winter Park has seen only modest
population growth since 1970. The City currently occupies a land area of approximately nine
square miles and serves a population of 29,308. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on
both real and personal properties located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by state
statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed
appropriate by the City Commission.

The City operates under the commission-manager form of government. Policy-making and
legislative authority are vested in the City Commission (Commission) consisting of the Mayor
and four commissioners. The Commission is responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring both the City Manager and
Attorney. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the
Commission, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and for appointing the heads
of various departments. The Commission is elected on a non-partisan basis. Commission
members serve three-year staggered terms, with two commission seats or the mayor’s seat up for
election each year. The mayor and commissioners are elected at large.

The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the construction
and maintenance of streets, sidewalks and infrastructure; engineering; planning and community
development; code compliance; general administration and support services; and recreational
activities and cultural events. In addition, the City operates two enterprises: water and sewer
service and electric service. The City has also contracted with a private firm to provide solid
waste collection services.

The annual budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control. In
April, the City Manager presents goals for the upcoming budget and capital improvement plan as
part of a strategic planning session with the City Commission. Discussions address levels of
service to be provided by departments and capital spending requirements. The outcome of the
strategic planning session helps provide a framework for preparing a proposed budget.
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Finance and City Management develop preliminary revenue estimates and departments of the
City submit requests for appropriation to the City Manager by the end of May. The public's
input to the budget processis invited at the beginning of each Commission meeting beginning in
July. A proposed budget is presented to the City Commission and a tentative millage cap is set
inJuly.

The Mayor and City Commissioners submit their thoughts on adjustments they would like to see
made to the proposed budget in August. City Management and staff summarize these
suggestions and add analysis of the operational impact, if any, of each suggestion. At a City
Commission meeting, the Commission discusses each suggestion and reaches consensus on each
item. Staff incorporates all approved suggestions in the budget the Commission will vote on in
September.

The Commission is required to hold two public hearings on the budget and millage rate in
September and adopt a final budget and millage rate by no later than September 30, the close of
the City’sfiscal year.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund. Transfers between accounts within the same fund
may be made with City Manager approval. Transfers between funds and adjustments that
increase the overall budget of afund require approval of the City Commission. Budget-to-actual
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an
appropriated budget has been adopted. For the General Fund and other major special revenue
fund (Community Redevelopment Agency), this comparison is presented as required
supplemental information. For nonmajor governmental funds, this comparison is presented in
the combining financial statements.

Budgetary and I nternal Accounting Controls

The budget is an integral part of the financial accounting system. The City proposes an annual
budget for all departments, which must be approved by the City Commission. Encumbrances are
recorded for all significant expenditures at the time a purchase commitment is made. Line item
expenditure reports are accessible to all departments and include: budgeted amounts, actual
expenditures, encumbered amounts, and budget balances remaining. These reports are reviewed
by each department where primary responsibility is placed.

The Finance Department monitors all financia activity on an ongoing basis. Monthly reports
summarizing the City’s financial activities are prepared for the City Commission. Each quarter,
the City provides an update of its key performance metrics as a communication outreach to the
City Commission and the public. The report is organized by the five core objectives outlined in
the City Commission’s Strategy Map (Exceptional Quality of Life, Intelligent Growth &
Development, Fiscal Stewardship, Public Health & Safety, and Investment in Public Assets &
Infrastructure). These core objectives fit nicely within the Vision Statement adopted in FY 2016
of “Winter Park is the City of Arts and Culture, cherishing its traditional scale and charm while
building a healthy and sustainable future for all generations”.
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City
operates.

Local economy.

Winter Park is well positioned in the middle of a well-connected and diverse economy just
northeast of the City of Orlando and 25 miles from Disney World. The largest employers within
Winter Park are Winter Park Memorial Hospital, Orange County Public Schools, City of Winter
Park, Gecos Inc., Publix and Rollins College. Yet, Winter Park’s economy is not overly
dependent on any one employer as the total employed by the six largest employers represents
less than twenty five percent of the total workforce in Winter Park.

The following table includes trend information on some key data:

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Taxable value of property (in
thousands) $| 3,794,041 | §| 3,777,453 | $| 3,943,795 | §| 4,184,570 4,528,431
Estimated costs of permitted
construction (in thousands) $ 100,106 123,802 | $ 169,854 116,072 201,985
Population 27,728 28,847 29,073 28,967 29,308
Unemployment rate for Orange
County 8.4% 6.2% 5.6% 4.7% 4.3%
Building permit revenues $| 1,626,382 1,976,975 | §| 2,224,934 1,746,308 2,449,973
Half-cent sales tax revenues $| 3,610,003 3,821,379 | §| 4,029,181 4,281,355 4,470,609

The taxable value of property increased nicely again in fiscal year 2016. Property tax valuations
are generally a lagging indicator of the health of the economy as January 1 valuations are the
basis for tax revenues for the fiscal year beginning the following October 1. The City has held
its operating millage rate at 4.0923 since fiscal year 2009.

Half cent sales tax revenue which is dependent on consumer spending reached a new peak in FY
2016.

FY 2016 was a boom year for construction activity with record high estimated costs of permitted
construction. This trend has continued into FY 2017 with permitting for a 268 unit apartment
complex in the Ravadauge development area and expansion of the Winter Park Memorial
Hospital occurring in the first quarter. In addition, there continue to be a large number of
substantial residential remodel projects.
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Major Initiatives.

On March 15, 2016, the voters of Winter Park approved a bond referendum authorizing the
issuance of not to exceed $30,000,000 in general obligation bonds for the purpose of building the
Winter Park Library and Events Center, to include library facilities, civic meeting and gathering
facilities and related parking structure. The new 21st Century library and state-of-the-art
adjoining events center will offer the community a destination for gatherings, learning, meetings
and education. The City expectsto issue the bonds in the upcoming fiscal year.

The newly renovated Winter Park Golf Course held a grand reopening on October 1, 2016. The
new course has received a tremendous reception from the golfing community and revenues for
the first four months of FY 2017 were more than twice those of the corresponding period in the
prior year.

Showalter Field has been renovated as part of a joint effort between the City, Rollins College,
Orange County Public Schools and the Winter Park High School Foundation. The
improvements included a new artificial turf for the field, a new high tech rubber track,
scoreboard and other facility enhancements.

The City is partnering with the Florida Department of Transportation on two important
initiatives. 1) Undergrounding the electric transmission lines along Fairbanks Avenue from U.S.
Highway 17-92 to I-4. Thisisamajor commercial corridor and gateway to the City. Removing
the large, overhead transmission lines will greatly enhance the appearance of this area. 2)
Installation of quiet zone railroad crossings in Winter Park.

Placing overhead power lines underground continues to be a major priority of the City with a
goal of completing five miles of undergrounding each year. A little over six miles of overhead
lines were underground in FY 2016. This effort is expected to take approximately nine more
years to complete and is being funded by current operating revenues of the electric utility.

Long-term financial planning.

The City has prepared a ten year pro-forma forecast for the General Fund, Community
Redevelopment Agency, Water and Sewer, and Electric Services Funds (the City’s major funds)
aswell asafive year Capital Improvements Plan. These schedules provide information to assess
the City’s long-term financial condition in comparison to the short-term focus of the CAFR and
budget. This data is included in the City’s annual budget document which is available at
www.cityofwinterpark.org. This document projects the City’s major capital expenditures and
related operating expenditures in addition to projecting regular operating expenditures, recurring
capital expenditures and revenue.
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NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In February 2015, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
72 Fair Value Measurement and Application. This Statement addresses accounting and financial
reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition of fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. This Statement provides guidance for determining a
fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides guidance
for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value
measurements. The City implemented the requirements of GASB Statement 72 in the 2016
fiscal year.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. This was the thirty sixth consecutive year
that the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report
satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its
annual budget document for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2015. In order to qualify for
the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget document was judged to be
proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations
guide and a communications device.

The in-house preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. The significant amount of
year-end closing procedures and report preparation could not have been accomplished without
much hard work and personal sacrifice. Special thanks must be given to Karen Cockerham,
Franco Catalan and Marisol Pereira for their dedication in the creation and compilation of this
document.

Other City departments, although not extensively involved in year-end audit activities,
contributed significantly by ensuring the accuracy and integrity of accounting information
compiled throughout the year. Without their diligence, the work of the Finance Department
would have been considerably more difficult.

Appreciation must also be expressed to the City's auditors, Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A.,
whose suggestions and attention to detail enhanced the quality of this report.
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Last, but certainly not least, special appreciation must be expressed to the City’s elected officials
for their unyielding support and steadfast commitment to maintaining the financial integrity of
the City. With their continued leadership, the City can look forward to a secure financial future.

Respectfully submitted,
% 84 AN NL .
' \
Randy B. Knight, CPA Charles W. Hamil, III, CPA
City Manager Finance Director
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Winter Park for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2015. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial
reporting.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents
conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Winter Park has
received a Certificate of Achievement for the last thirty six consecutive years (fiscal years 1980 -
2015). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement
Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.
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M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Winter Park,
Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2016, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Concluded)

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and the required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section, as listed in the table of contents,
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The
combining and individual major and non-major fund financial statements and schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual major and non-major fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory section and
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 21, 2017,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
March 21, 2017
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M anagement’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

As management of the City of Winter Park (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2016. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at
the close of the most recent fiscal year by $170,142,612 (net position). Of this amount,
$28,136,223 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City’ s ongoing obligations to
its citizens and creditors,

e The City’s total net position increased by $10,713,714 (or 6.72%). The governmental net
position increased by $2,701,402 (or 4.02%) and the business-type net position increased by
$8,012,312 (or 8.68%).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$8,044,529, or 17.26% of total expenditures and transfers out for recurring operational costs
reported in other funds as compared to 24.61% in the prior year. Unassigned fund balancein
the General Fund decreased by $2,998,517 in fiscal year 2016. This was due in large part to
the purchase of property at 2111 W. Fairbanks adjacent to MLK Park which required
$1,900,000 from the Genera Fund and $1,000,000 from the Community Redevelopment
Agency Fund. Also, $1,200,000 from the General Fund was used to renovate the Winter
Park Golf Course.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components. 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and deferred
outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City isimproving or deteriorating.
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The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include
general government, communications, financial services, planning, building, community
redevelopment agency, public works, police, fire, parks and recreation, and culture and
community services. The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer and
electric services.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided
into three categories. governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’ s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains fourteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and Community Redevel opment
Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other twelve governmental funds
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.
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The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and certain Special Revenue
Funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for the General Fund and each
major Specia Revenue Fund that adopts a budget to demonstrate compliance with the budget
and are presented as required supplemental information. Budgetary comparisons for nonmajor
special revenue funds are presented in the combining statements.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water
and sewer and electric services. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and alocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses
internal service funds to account for its fleet maintenance operations, vehicle replacement
funding, and insurance. Because services accounted for in internal service funds predominately
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary fund financia statements provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for the Water and Sewer Fund and Electric Services Fund. The Water and
Sewer Fund and Electric Services Fund are considered to be major funds of the City. The
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financia statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form
of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary fundsis much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notesto the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
afull understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary
comparisons and the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
employees and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) obligations.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental and

internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $170,142,612 at the close of the most recent fiscal
year.

A significant portion of the City’s net position (76.34%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment) and other
assets (goodwill, sewer capacity rights, etc.), less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is till outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Current assets $ 32,597,985 $ 36,014,119 $ 51,649,992 $ 49,054,307 $ 84247977 $ 85,068,426
Other assets 202,583 202,583 274,000 274,000 476,583 476,583
Capital assets 86,639,447 79,772,782 184,748,544 183,656,696 271,387,991 263,429,478

Total assets 119,440,015 115,989,484 236,672,536 232,985,003 356,112,551 348,974,487
Deferred outflow of resources 7,596,275 1,213,023 9,987,761 9,455,211 17,584,036 10,668,234
Current and other liabilities 9,063,322 9,970,675 16,604,081 16,130,556 25,667,403 26,101,231
Long-term liabilities 47,436,466 38,354,307 129,765,211 134,030,965 177,201,677 172,385,272

Total liabilities 56,499,788 48,324,982 146,369,292 150,161,521 202,869,080 198,486,503
Deferred inflow of resources 684,895 1,727,320 - - 684,895 1,727,320
Net position:
Net Investment in Capital 67,758,859 57,725,822 62,131,622 57,759,700 129,890,481 115,485,522
Assets
Restricted 3,713,163 4,052,195 8,402,745 8,227,365 12,115,908 12,279,560
Unrestricted (1,620,415) 5,372,188 29,756,638 26,291,628 28,136,223 31,663,816

Total net position  $ 69,851,607 $ 67,150,205 $ 100,291,005 $ 92,278,693  $ 170,142,612 $ _ 159,428,898

An additional portion of the City’s net position (7.12%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining 16.54% is unrestricted and may
be used to meet the government’ s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

Unrestricted net position of the City’s governmental activities decreased from $5,372,188 to a
deficit of ($1,620,415). This decrease of $6,992,603 is due to the following factors:

Purchase of 2111 W. Fairbanks Avenue;
General Fund reserves ($1,900,000)
Community Redevelopment Agency reserves (1,000,000)
Net change in pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows (2,591,076)
Portion of other post-employment benefit obligation recognized as expense in the current year (774,807)
Construction of new facilities at the Public Works Complex to warehouse Electric operations, (999,421)
renovate Fire Station 64 and administrative offices
Other factors 272,701
Tota decrease in unrestricted net position of the City’s governmental activities ($6,992,603)

Unrestricted net position of the City’s businesstype activities column increased from
$26,291,628 to $29,756,638.
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The changes in net position displayed below shows the governmental and business-type activities

during the fiscal year.

Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grantsand
contributions

Genera revenues:
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Utility taxes
Intergovernmental

revenues

Investment earnings
Other
Total revenues
Expenses:
Genera government
Communications
Finance
Planning
Building
Community
redevel opment
agency
Public works
Police
Fire
Parks and recreation
Culturd &
community services

Interest on long-term debt

Water and sewer
Electric services
Total expenses

Change in net position

before transfers
Transfers
Change in net position
Net position — beginning,
as restated
Net position — ending

Changesin Net position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
15867,106 $ 14,570,621 76,877,931 $ 76,070,089 92,745,037 $ 90,640,710
1,545,558 1,375,192 1,545,558 1,375,192
302,768 848,494 1,028,170 368,584 1,330,938 1,217,078
19,130,305 17,799,839 - 19,130,305 17,799,839
1,267,143 1,216,596 1,267,143 1,216,596
6,582,206 6,560,897 6,582,206 6,560,897
487,430 852,853 311,975 747,072 799,405 1,599,925
1,589,377 1,443,298 66,196 349,473 1,655,573 1,792,771
53,856,005 51,208,809 78,284,272 77,535,218 132,140,277 128,744,027
1,543,467 1,472,552 1,543,467 1,472,552
202,072 224,445 202,072 224,445
310,721 340,604 310,721 340,604
766,226 717,671 766,226 717,671
1,226,086 1,143,945 1,226,086 1,143,945
994,743 863,140 994,743 863,140
10,387,523 10,822,523 10,387,523 10,822,523
16,117,463 13,244,698 16,117,463 13,244,698
13,803,911 11,456,335 13,803,911 11,456,335
8,665,307 8,450,715 8,665,307 8,450,715
1,715,872 1,651,580 1,715,872 1,651,580
624,338 717,353 624,338 717,353
- - 24,332,244 24,233,429 24,332,244 24,233,429
- - 40,736,590 40,597,171 40,736,590 40,597,171
56,357,729 51,105,561 65,068,834 64,830,600 121,426,563 115,936,161
(2,501,724) 103,248 13,215,438 12,704,618 10,713,714 12,807,866
5,203,126 6,589,700 (5,203,126) (6,589,700) . ]
2,701,402 6,692,948 8,012,312 6,114,918 10,713,714 12,807,866
67,150,205 60,457,257 92,278,693 86,163,775 159,428,898 146,621,032
69,851,607 $ _ 67,150,205 100,291,005 $ _ 92,278,693 170,142,612 $ 159,428,898

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by
$2,701,402 as compared to an increase of $6,692,948 in the prior year. Explanations for some of
the significant variances from the prior year are as follows:

Charges for services increased due to even greater construction activity impacting permitting
revenue. Licenses and permit revenues in the General Fund increased by $728,440. Some of the
larger commercial projects permitted include a new Whole Foods at Lee Road and 17-92 and
redevelopment in the former K-Mart shopping plaza on 17-92. Significant residential remodels
were also responsible for much of this revenue increase.
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Prior year capita grants and contributions included $402,770 passed through the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection for the Mead Grove Wetland Restoration Project.

Property tax revenues increased as a result of taxable valuation increasing from $4,184,569,627

to $4,528,431,471, an increase of 8.22%.

Police and fire expense were impacted significantly in both the prior and current year by changes
in pension liabilities and related deferred outflows and inflows. The most significant factor in
these changes was investment returns on pension plan assets. The table below illustrates the
impact these changes had on expenses and the investment returns each plan experienced:

2016 pension expense)

Police
Officer's Firefighter's

Pension Plan Pension Plan
Prior year net change in pension liability and related deferred outflows and ($1,459,232) ($820,135)
inflows — reductions in expense
Current year net change in pension liability and related deferred outflows and 1,550,058 1,041,018
inflows —increases in expense
Difference in impact on police and fire expense from prior to current year $3,009,290 $1,861,153
Investment returns from actuarial valuation dated October 1, 2014 (impacts FY 10.07% 9.95%
2015 pension expense)
Investment returns from actuarial valuation dated October 1, 2015 (impacts FY (2.53%) (2.98%)

Revenues - Governmental
Activities
Charges
Other  Transfers for
3% 9% services 1%
27%

Interest
Expense

Investmen
t earnings

1%
Op. grants Svcs.
and contr. %

Intergov't 3%

rev.s

9 Parks and
Utility Cap. grants Recc
tax:.s and contr. 15%
11% 0%
Franchise
fees Property Fire
2% taxes 25%

32%

Expenses - Governmental
Activities

General

Govt. Finance
3% %
Cultural &
Comm.

Plannlng

\ Police

29%

Building

2%
CRA
2%

Public
works
18%
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by
$8,012,312 as compared to an increase of $6,114,918 in the prior year. Explanations for some of
the significant variances from the prior year are as follows:

Current year capital grants and contributions included significant water and sewer impact fees
resulting from the increased construction activity discussed above. Some of the larger impact
fees were $70,929 from the Lakeside Crossing Development and $341,243 from a development
at 3500 Goldenrod Avenue (service territory outside the city limits). In addition, the City
received $111,315 from the Florida Department of Transportation for installation of additional
street lighting along Aloma Avenue between Pennsylvania and Lakemont Avenues.

Financial Analysisof the City’sMajor Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City’ s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year. The City maintains two major governmental funds. the General Fund and the Community
Redevel opment Fund.

General Fund. The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. At the end of the
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $8,044,529, while total
fund balance was $10,463,064. As ameasure of the General Fund'’ s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to the fund's total current
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 17.26% of total expenditures and transfers out
for recurring operational costs reported in other funds, while total fund balance represents
22.45% of that same amount. Total fund balance includes non-spendable balances such as
property held for resale ($830,000), inventory ($96,179), prepaid items ($3,530), and spendable
balances such as permit revenues restricted for enforcing the Florida Building Code ($965,513)
and balances assigned via purchase order commitments that were re-appropriated in FY 2017
($523,313).

The General Fund’s fund balance decreased by $2,282,253 during the current fiscal year. Thisis
most significantly due to $1,900,000 being used to purchase the property at 2111 W. Fairbanks
(together with $1,000,000 from the Community Redevelopment Agency Fund) and $1,200,000
for renovation of the Winter Park Golf Course. These uses of fund balance were partially offset
by permitting revenues from construction activity. While the permit revenues increased total
Genera Fund balance, a large portion of this revenue is restricted for Building Code
Enforcement and did not increase unassigned General Fund Balance. The following chart
presents the General Fund's unassigned fund balance as a percentage of total expenditures and
transfers out for recurring operational costs reported in other funds for each of the past ten years.
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General Fund Reserves
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mmm General Fund Reserves == Percentage of Expenditures

The Government Finance Officers Association recommends, at a minimum, that general-purpose
governments maintain unassigned fund balance in their general fund of no less than one to two
months of regular general fund operating expenditures (or 8.33 — 16.67%). The City’s
Administrative Policy sets a General Fund Balance goal of 30% of expenditures and transfers out
for recurring operating costs reported in other funds.
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The following graph presents the General Fund's largest revenue sources over the past five
years, excluding transfers in, which can identify growth trends. These revenue sources
comprised greater than 80% of General Fund revenues each year. For purposes of this graph,
electric franchise fees reported as revenue in the Electric Services Fund and subsequently
transferred to the General Fund were included in the franchise fee revenue below.

General Fund Largest Revenue Sources
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The property tax is by far the most significant single revenue source over which the City can
exercise some control. The City’s operating millage rate was increased from 3.9950 mills to
4.0923 mills in FY 2009 where it has remained since. Property values have continued to
increase which boosted General Fund property tax revenues by $1,335,884 as a result of an
8.22% increase in taxable value of property.

Sales tax and State revenue sharing have increased as the Centra Florida economy has
improved.

License and permit fee revenues improved due to greater construction activity.

Communication services tax revenue has continued to decline as service providers bundle sales
packages in a manner to minimize the tax.

Community Redevelopment Agency. Tax increment revenues increased by $595,004.
Property valuations which determine tax increment revenues increased by 25.07%.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Final amended appropriations for the General Fund were $51,663,324 and actual expenditures
were $51,144,476.

Budgeted Amounts
Final vs. Final
Original Budget vs.
Original Final Actual Budget Actual
Genera administration $ 1,756,671 $ 1,756,671 $ 1,531,507 $ - % 225,164
Communications 179,390 185,855 151,830 6,465 34,025
Financial services 337,467 337,467 314,696 - 22,771
Planning 552,252 694,401 676,015 142,149 18,386
Building 1,212,538 1,212,538 1,234,567 - (22,029)
Public works 6,229,002 6,448,398 6,401,761 219,396 46,637
Police 13,385,918 13,388,511 12,820,778 2,593 567,733
Fire 11,814,541 11,828,181 12,075,338 13,640 (247,157)
Parks and recreation 7,171,614 7,191,614 7,527,019 20,000 (335,405)
Culture and community services 1,422,472 1,422,472 1,423,872 - (1,400)
Non-departmental 255,000 255,000 - - 255,000
Transfersto other funds 4,904,457 6,942,216 6,987,093 2,037,759 (44,877)
Total $ 49221322 $ 51,663,324 $ 51144476 $ 2,442,002 $ 518,848

The General Fund budget was increased by $2,442,002 from the origina budget to the final
budget. The following table summarizes these adjustments:

Appropriate funding for purchase of 2111 W. Fairbanks Avenue $ 1,900,000
Increase for open purchase orders re-appropriated in the following fiscal year 384,242
Appropriate additional funding for track at Showalter Field 99,000
Appropriate additional funding for artificial turf at Showalter Field 38,760
Appropriate grant funding provided for completion of an inventory of trees on City property and rights-of-way 20,000
Total increase in General Fund budget $ 2,442,002

The variance between the final budget and actual expenditures for the general fund for the year
was $518,848. The positive variance in General Administration was primarily achieved in the
Information Technology Services Division. Savings in the Police Department resulted from both
planned vacancies as well as ones that occurred during the year. The negative variance in the
Fire Department is also personnel related. The Parks Department overspent some on tree care.
The Non-Departmental budget is a budget item for likely vacancies not linked to any specific
department.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of September 30, 2016, amounts to $271,387,991 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and
equipment, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, streets and drainage, water and sewer transmission
lines and facilities and construction in progress.
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Magjor capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

$2,900,000 for the purchase of 2111 W. Fairbanks Avenue.

$999,421 for construction of new facilities at the Public Works Complex to warehouse
Electric operations, renovate Fire Station 64 and provide administrative offices.
$1,253,284 was invested in renovations to the Winter Park Golf Course. The course
reopened on October 1, 2016.

$861,155 was spent on renovations to Showalter Field. This project will be fully
completed in the coming fiscal year.

$423,071 was spent on stormwater drainage improvements.

Routine Water and Sewer system improvements in the current year included water main
upgrades and extensions ($1,036,581), sewer main upgrades and extensions ($998,651),
and the relocation of water and sewer mains required by the I-4 Ultimate project
($416,363).

$1,269,669 was invested in routine capital improvements of the electric distribution
system. These capital expenditures were funded through electric rate revenues and
contributions from private parties to connect to the City’ s electric system.

$2,887,073 was spent on undergrounding power lines. This is a long-term effort and a
primary focus of the Electric Utility.

$3,128,568 in replacement vehicles were acquired in the current year.

Capital Assets
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Land $ 18,038,402 $ 15136501 $ 12,194,774  $ 12,194,774  $ 30,233,176  $ 27,331,275
Buildings and production
facilities 43,555,432 43,103,210 3,506,065 3,506,065 47,061,497 46,609,275
Improvements other than
buildings 19,133,177 17,008,366 238,188,262 230,962,010 257,321,439 247,970,376
Machinery and equipment 20,554,726 20,312,055 6,934,517 6,655,660 27,489,243 26,967,715
Furniture and fixtures 735,301 727,579 42,657 42,657 777,958 770,236
Vehicles 21,011,419 18,830,838 - - 21,011,419 18,830,838
Streets and drainage 61,533,907 61,533,907 - - 61,533,907 61,533,907
System acquisition costs - 19,885,843 19,885,843 19,885,843 19,885,843
Sewer contract costs - - 3,394,035 3,394,035 3,394,035 3,394,035
Sewer capacity rights - 19,661,103 19,661,103 19,661,103 19,661,103
Construction in progress 5,377,490 2,816,685 643,786 82,016 6,021,276 2,898,701
Less: accum. depreciation (103,300,407) (99,696,359) (119,702,498) (112,727,467) (223,002,905) (212,423,826)

Net capital assets ~ $ 86,639,447 $ 79,772,782 $ 184,748544 % 183,656,696 $ 271,387,991  $ 263,429,478

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 in the notes to the
financial statements.
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt
outstanding of $150,095,000. Of this amount, $3,725,000 comprises debt backed by the full
faith and credit of the City and the remainder represents bonds secured solely by specified
revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Genera obligation $ 3725000 $ 4,780,000 $ - 0% - % 3,725,000 $ 4,780,000
bonds
Revenue bonds
Non-ad valorem 2,695,000 3,547,389 - - 2,695,000 3,547,389
Community
Redevelopment Agency 11,315,000 12,400,000 - - 11,315,000 12,400,000
Water and Sewer - - 64,195,000 67,085,000 64,195,000 67,085,000
Electric - - 68,165,000 70,285,000 68,165,000 70,285,000
Tota bonds  $ 17,735,000 $ 20,727,389 % 132,360,000 $ 137,370,000 $ 150,095,000 $ 158,097,389

In the current year, the City completed the following bond transactions:

On May 12, 2016 the City refunded $18,155,000 in outstanding Electric Refunding and Revenue
Bonds, Series 2007 with proceeds from the Electric Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2016. This
left $1,110,000 from the 2007 series bonds outstanding as of September 30, 2016. This
refunding transaction was undertaken to achieve net present value savings of $2,548,057 and
reduce future debt service payments by $3,308,463.

The City’s charter does require voter referendum for the following categories of bonds:

e General obligation bonds

¢ Revenue bonds intended to finance enterprises or projects which involve the purchase,
lease and/or acquisition of real property, with the exception of property for parks.

¢ Revenue bonds which pledge specific non-ad valorem taxes as the primary source(s) to
pay the principal and interest and which have a principal value in excess of one million
dollars. This dollar limitation is adjusted annually as of the end of the fiscal year in
accordance with changes in the cost-of-living index as published by the federa
government. This limitation, as adjusted, was $2,385,652 at the close of the most recent
fiscal year.

The City received the following recent bond ratings:

Moody’s Fitch | Standard &
Investor Services | Ratings Poor’s
Genera Obligation Bonds Aal - -
Electric Revenue Bonds Aa3 AA- -
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds Aa2 AA- AA-

Additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities can be found in Notes 6 to 15 in the
notes to the financial statements.
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Economic Factorsand Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

City staff monitors economic indicators on a continual basis. Taxable values went up by 8.29%
for the FY 2017 tax levy. The FY 2017 budget was prepared holding the operating millage rate
at 4.0923 mills where it has been since FY 20009.

Adjustments to water and sewer rates were implemented effective October 1, 2016. The newly
adopted rates are projected to increase water and sewer revenues by 1.21% which is the Price
Index increase as published by the Florida Public Service Commission.

Electric fuel cost recovery rates are adjusted up or down as necessary based on fuel costs. These
rates were reduced effective October 1, 2016.

Requestsfor Information

This financia report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of
those with an interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Office of the Finance Director, 401 Park Avenue South, Winter Park, Florida 32789. Other
financial information can be found at the City’ s website (www.cityofwinterpark.org).
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2016
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 25,201,391 $ 10,220,943 $ 35,422,334
Accounts Receivable - Net 2,105,066 5,329,431 7,434,497
Unbilled Service Charges 376,151 5,945,301 6,321,452
Accrued Interest Receivable 65,504 34,241 99,745
Internal Balances (185,107) 185,107 -
Due from Other Governments 1,958,262 111,359 2,069,621
Property Acquired for Resale 830,000 - 830,000
Inventories 304,645 3,433,634 3,738,279
Prepaid Items 3,530 106,686 110,216
Notes Receivable 17,400 - 17,400
Specia Assessments Receivable 1,921,143 267,453 2,188,596
Restricted Assets:
Cash, Cash Equivaents and Investments - 25,991,476 25,991,476
Accrued Interest Receivable - 21,980 21,980
Accounts Receivable - Net - 2,381 2,381
Deposits 202,583 274,000 476,583
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable 23,415,892 12,838,560 36,254,452
Depreciable - Net 63,223,555 171,909,984 235,133,539
Total Assets 119,440,015 236,672,536 356,112,551
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Expense on Refunding Bonds 19,250 9,987,761 10,007,011
Pension Related Deferred Outflows 7,577,025 - 7,577,025
Total Deferred Outflows of Resour ces 7,596,275 9,987,761 17,584,036
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 2,406,712 3,723,043 6,129,755
Accrued Liabilities 2,561,381 300,962 2,862,343
Due to Other Governments 80,583 1,164,039 1,244,622
Deposits 164,104 3,487,550 3,651,654
Accrued Interest Payable 141,091 2,211,266 2,352,357
Unearned Revenue 496,458 - 496,458
Long-term Liabilities:
Due Within One Y ear:
Current Portion of Notes Payable 1,455,000 - 1,455,000
Current Portion of Capital Lease Obligations 166,998 - 166,998
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 700,000 5,460,000 6,160,000
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 890,995 257,221 1,148,216
Due In More Than One Y ear:
Notes Payable 12,555,000 - 12,555,000
Capital Lease Obligations 865,810 - 865,810
Bonds Payable 3,157,030 129,305,799 132,462,829
Pension Liability 23,057,687 - 23,057,687
Other Post-Employment Benefits 4,202,321 - 4,202,321
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 3,598,618 459,412 4,058,030
Total Liabilities 56,499,788 146,369,292 202,869,080
Deferred | nflows of Resour ces
Pension Related Deferred Inflows 684,895 - 684,895
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 67,758,859 62,131,622 129,890,481
Restricted for:
Capital Projects (expendable) - 6,024,990 6,024,990
Renewal & Replacement (expendable) - 2,377,755 2,377,755
Community Redevelopment (expendable) 1,756,759 - 1,756,759
Public Safety (expendable) 626,512 - 626,512
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks (expendable) 904,656 - 904,656
Community Enhancement Items (expendable) 425,236 - 425,236
Unrestricted (1,620,415) 29,756,638 28,136,223
Total Net Position $ 69,851,607 $ 100,291,005 170,142,612

Thenotesto the financial statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Program Revenues

Indirect Operating Capital
Expenses Chargesfor Grantsand Grantsand
Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 3,257,748 $ (1,714,281) $ 808 $ - $ -
Communications 521,188 (319,116) - - -
Financial Services 842,011 (531,290) - - -
Planning 1,014,251 (248,025) 13,695 - -
Building 1,226,086 - 3,186,388 - -
Community Redevelopment Agency 994,743 - - - -
Public Works 11,201,332 (813,809) 6,937,613 185,328 266,473
Police 16,117,463 - 1,661,158 1,293,960 17,421
Fire 13,803,911 - 1,411,951 31,270 18,874
Parks and Recreation 8,768,986 (103,679) 2,655,493 35,000 -
Cultural and Community Services 1,715,872 - - - -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 624,338 - - - -
Total Governmental Activities 60,087,929 (3,730,200) 15,867,106 1,545,558 302,768
Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer 22,007,415 2,324,829 29,020,089 - 916,855
Electric Services 39,331,219 1,405,371 47,857,842 - 111,315
Total Business-type Activities 61,338,634 3,730,200 76,877,931 - 1,028,170
$ 121426563 $ - $ 92,745,037 $ 1545558 $ 1,330,938

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Franchise Fees
Utility Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues, unrestricted
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenue
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

Thenotesto the financial statementsarean integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

(1,542,659) $ - $ (1,542,659)
(202,072) - (202,072)
(310,721) - (310,721)
(752,531) - (752,531)
1,960,302 - 1,960,302
(994,743) - (994,743)
(2,998,109) - (2,998,109)
(13,144,924) - (13,144,924)
(12,341,816) - (12,341,816)
(5,974,814) - (5,974,814)
(1,715,872) - (1,715,872)
(624,338) - (624,338)
(38,642,297) - (38,642,297)
- 5,604,700 5,604,700

- 7,232,567 7,232,567

- 12,837,267 12,837,267
(38,642,297) 12,837,267 (25,805,030)
19,130,305 - 19,130,305
1,267,143 - 1,267,143
6,582,206 - 6,582,206
7,084,112 - 7,084,112
487,430 311,975 799,405
1,589,377 66,196 1,655,573
5,203,126 (5,203,126) -
41,343,699 (4,824,955) 36,518,744
2,701,402 8,012,312 10,713,714
67,150,205 92,278,693 159,428,898
69,851,607 $ 100,291,005 $ 170,142,612
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2016

Other Total
Community Governmental Governmental
General Redevelopment Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 9,768,716 $ 1,764,760 9,405,242 $ 20,938,718
Accounts Receivable - Net 1,129,034 7,500 945,898 2,082,432
Unbilled Service Charges 165,196 - 210,955 376,151
Accrued Interest Receivable 26,498 4,367 24,088 54,953
Due from Other Funds 153,546 - - 153,546
Due from Other Governments 1,240,458 - 717,804 1,958,262
Property Acquired for Resale 830,000 - - 830,000
Inventories 96,179 - 38,080 134,259
Prepaid Items 3,530 - - 3,530
Note Receivable - - 17,400 17,400
Special Assessments Receivable - 390,000 1,531,143 1,921,143
Total Assets $ 13,413,157 $ 2,166,627 12,890,610 $ 28,470,394
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 1,298,001 $ 44,559 856,369 $ 2,199,019
Accrued Liabilities 910,857 5,309 28,421 944,587
Due to Other Funds - - 114,216 114,216
Due to Other Governments 80,583 - - 80,583
Deposits 164,104 - - 164,104
Unearned Revenue 496,458 - - 496,458
Total Liabilities 2,950,093 49,868 999,006 3,998,967
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable Revenue on Long-Term Receivables - 360,000 1,319,943 1,679,943
Fund Balances:
Non Spendable
Inventories 96,179 - 38,080 134,259
Prepaid Items 3,530 - - 3,530
Property Acquired for Resale 830,000 - - 830,000
Spendable
Restricted
Building Code Enforcement 965,513 - - 965,513
Community Redevel opment - 1,756,759 - 1,756,759
Public Safety - - 626,512 626,512
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks - - 904,656 904,656
Community Enhancement Items - - 425,236 425,236
Committed
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks - - 2,432,951 2,432,951
Construction Projects - - 5,227,060 5,227,060
Assigned
Genera Government 140,525 - - 140,525
Communications 680 - - 680
Planning 58,290 - - 58,290
Public Works 185,294 - - 185,294
Public Safety 135,281 - 42,987 178,268
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks 3,243 - 275,192 278,435
Specia Assessments - - 598,987 598,987
Unassigned 8,044,529 - - 8,044,529
Total Fund Balances 10,463,064 1,756,759 10,571,661 22,791,484
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances $ 13,413,157 $ 2,166,627 12,890,610 $ 28,470,394
Thenotesto the financial statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2016

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Position are different because:

Receivables not expected to be received within 180 days of fiscal year end are not considered as
"available" revenue in the governmental funds, and therefore, reported as deferred revenue. Inthe
Statement of Net Position, which is presented on the accrual basis, no deferral is reported since the
revenue is fully recognized in the Statement of Activities

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Governmental Capital Assets $ 164,106,465

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Certain amounts related to the net pension liability are deferred and amortized over time
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Governmental Bonds Payable

Deferred Amount on Refunding

Governmental Notes Payable

Capital Lease Obligations

Accrued Interest Payable on Long-Term Liabilities
Pension Liability

Other Post Employment Benefits Obligation
Compensated Absences

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities to individual funds.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

Thenotesto thefinancial statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changesin Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Other Total
Community Governmental Governmental
General Redevelopment Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes.
Property Taxes $ 17,929,160 $ - % 1,201,145 $ 19,130,305
Utility Taxes 6,582,206 - - 6,582,206
Franchise Fees 1,267,143 - - 1,267,143
Fines and Forfeitures 1,242,855 - 252,885 1,495,740
Licenses and Permits 3,121,261 - - 3,121,261
Intergovernmental :
Sales Tax 4,470,609 - - 4,470,609
Local Option Gas Tax 1,009,683 - - 1,009,683
Other Intergovernmental 1,801,489 1,550,967 2,165,527 5,517,983
Charges for Services 5,938,788 157,335 3,252,428 9,348,551
Investment Earnings 281,693 42,467 106,543 430,703
Other 219,109 28,701 1,917,783 2,165,593
Total Revenues 43,863,996 1,779,470 8,896,311 54,539,777
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Administration 1,531,507 - 2,021 1,533,528
Communications 151,830 - - 151,830
Financial Services 314,696 - - 314,696
Planning 676,015 933,508 76,436 1,685,959
Building 1,234,567 - - 1,234,567
Public Works 6,401,761 - 2,551,733 8,953,494
Police 12,820,778 - 1,661,081 14,481,859
Fire 12,075,338 - 441,405 12,516,743
Parks and Recreation 7,527,019 - 386,924 7,913,943
Cultural and Community Services 1,423,872 49,929 292,000 1,765,801
Debt Service:
Principal - 1,085,000 2,069,388 3,154,388
Interest and Other Charges - 409,053 246,330 655,383
Capital Improvements - 67,704 8,513,170 8,580,874
Total Expenditures 44,157,383 2,545,194 16,240,488 62,943,065
Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures (293,387) (765,724) (7,344,177) (8,403,288)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCESAND (USES)
TransfersIn 4,998,227 1,435,305 7,267,752 13,701,284
Transfers Out (6,987,093) (1,003,993) (507,072) (8,498,158)
Total Other Financing Sour ces and (Uses) (1,988,866) 431,312 6,760,680 5,203,126
Net Changein Fund Balances (2,282,253) (334,412) (583,497) (3,200,162)
Fund Balances - Beginning 12,745,317 2,091,171 11,155,158 25,991,646
Fund Balances - Ending $ 10,463,064 $ 1,756,759 $ 10,571,661 $ 22,791,484

The notesto thefinancial statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (3,200,162)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Special assessment revenues in the governmental funds were recognized as revenuesin

prior periodsin the government-wide financial statements since they are on the accrual
basis of accounting

(258,600)
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of these assets is depreciated over their useful lives.

Expenditures for Capital Assets $ 8,350,573
Less: Current Year Depreciation (3,334,900) 5,015,673

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of

bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilitiesin the Statement of Net Position.

Change in Accrued Interest on Governmental Debt 19,061

Amortization of Bond Premium 28,292

Amortization of Bond Discount (1,863)

Amortization of Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding (14,445)

Principal Payments on General Obligation Bonds 1,055,000

Principal Payments on Notes Payable 852,389

Principal Payments on Community Redevelopment Debt 1,085,000

Principal Payments on Capital Lease Obligations 161,999

Change in Other Post-Employment Benefits Obligation (774,807) 2,410,626

Some expenses in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Changein Net Pension Liability and Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows (2,591,076)
Change in Long-term Compensated Absences (689,774)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activitiesto
individual funds.

Change in net position of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Actitivies. 2,014,715

Changein Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 2,701,402

Thenotesto thefinancial statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2016

Business-type Activities Governmental
Enter prise Funds Activities
Water and Electric Internal
Sewer Services Total Service Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 9,363,900 $ 857,043 $ 10,220,943 $ 4,262,673
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 296,817 - 296,817 -
Accounts Receivable - Net 1,402,323 3,927,108 5,329,431 22,634
Unbilled Service Charges 2,362,938 3,582,363 5,945,301 -
Accrued Interest Receivable 27,509 6,732 34,241 10,551
Due from Other Governments 44 111,315 111,359 -
Inventories 1,046,291 2,387,343 3,433,634 170,386
Prepaid Items 49,167 57,519 106,686 -
Total current assets 14,548,989 10,929,423 25,478,412 4,466,244
Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Assets:
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments:
Sinking Funds 3,423,884 3,692,434 7,116,318 -
Renewal and Replacement Funds 2,372,557 - 2,372,557 -
Impact Fee Funds 6,213,240 - 6,213,240 -
Capital Project Funds 161,630 - 161,630 -
Customer Deposits 1,679,942 1,807,608 3,487,550 -
Investments:
Sinking Funds 1,830,853 2,513,025 4,343,878 -
Capital Project Funds 1,999,486 - 1,999,486 -
Accrued Interest Receivable:
Impact Fee Funds 15,977 - 15,977 -
Renewal and Replacement Funds 6,003 - 6,003 -
Accounts Receivable - Net:
Impact Fee Funds 2,381 - 2,381 -
Special Assessments Receivable - 267,453 267,453 -
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable 2,838,560 10,000,000 12,838,560 -
Depreciable - Net 99,932,398 71,977,586 171,909,984 7,824,564
Other Assets:
Deposits 274,000 - 274,000 202,583
Total non-current assets 120,750,911 90,258,106 211,009,017 8,027,147
Total Assets 135,299,900 101,187,529 236,487,429 12,493,391
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Expense on Refunding Bonds 4,695,406 5,292,355 9,987,761 -
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 599,745 3,123,298 3,723,043 207,693
Accrued Liabilities 248,783 52,179 300,962 1,616,794
Due to Other Funds - - - 39,330
Due to Other Governments 517,689 646,350 1,164,039 -
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 192,244 64,977 257,221 24,957
Accrued Interest Payable 971,889 1,239,377 2,211,266 -
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds Payable 3,010,000 2,450,000 5,460,000 -
Customer Deposits 1,679,942 1,807,608 3,487,550 -
Total current liabilities 7,220,292 9,383,789 16,604,081 1,888,774
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds Payable 62,499,555 66,806,244 129,305,799 -
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 439,974 19,438 459,412 67,548
Total noncurrent liabilities 62,939,529 66,825,682 129,765,211 67,548
Total Liabilities 70,159,821 76,209,471 146,369,292 1,956,322
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 44,117,925 18,013,697 62,131,622 7,824,564
Restricted for:
Capital Projects (expendable) 6,024,990 - 6,024,990 -
Renewal and Replacement (expendable) 2,377,755 - 2,377,755 -
Unrestricted 17,314,815 12,256,716 29,571,531 2,712,505
Total Net Position $ 69,835,485 $ 30,270,413 100,105,898 $ 10,537,069
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of cumulative
internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds 185,107
Net position of business-type activities $ 100,291,005

The notes to the financial statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Electric Internal
Sewer Services Total Service Funds
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 29,020,089 $ 47,857,842 $ 76,877,931 $ 13,430,779
Total Operating Revenues 29,020,089 47,857,842 76,877,931 13,430,779
Operating Expenses:
General and Administrative 1,757,791 1,544,501 3,302,382 -
Operations 15,843,509 33,251,798 49,095,307 9,829,251
Depreciation and Amortization 4,019,207 2,955,824 6,975,031 1,240,239
Total Operating Expenses 21,620,507 37,752,213 59,372,720 11,069,490
Operating Income 7,399,582 10,105,629 17,505,211 2,361,289
Nonoper ating Revenues (Expenses):
Intergovernmental Revenue - 111,315 111,315 -
Investment Earnings 294,789 17,186 311,975 47,131
Gain on Disposal of Assets 6,710 31,455 38,165 223,314
Interest and Fiscal Charges (3,237,061) (3,080,695) (6,317,756) -
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,730 26,301 28,031 4,623
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (2,933,832) (2,894,438) (5,828,270) 275,068
Income Before Contributions and Transfers 4,465,750 7,211,191 11,676,941 2,636,357
Contributionsand Transfers:
Capital Contributions 916,855 - 916,855 -
Transfers Out (2,354,943) (2,848,183) (5,203,126) -
Total Contributionsand Transfers (1,438,088) (2,848,183) (4,286,271) -
Changein Net Position 3,027,662 4,363,008 7,390,670 2,636,357
Total Net Position - Beginning 66,307,823 25,907,405 7,900,712
Total Net Position - Ending $ 69,835,485 $ 30,270,413 $ 10,537,069
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of current fiscal year
internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds 621,642
Changein net position of business-type actitivies $ 8,012,312

The notesto thefinancial statementsarean integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided
Loans from Other Funds
Repayment of Loans from (to) Other Funds
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Payments for Interfund Services Used
Claims Paid
Other Receipts

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers Out

Net Cash Used in Noncapital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Capital Grant Receipts
Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Purchases of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Debt | ssued
Debt Refunded
Principal Payments - Capital Debt
Interest Paid
Impact Fees Collected
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investments
Proceeds from Sales & Maturities of Investments
Interest Earnings (Losses) on Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increasein Cash, Cash Equivalents
and I nvestments

Cash, Cash Equivalentsand | nvestments - Beginning

Cash, Cash Equivalentsand | nvestments - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Incometo
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Unbilled Service Charges
Due from Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Special Assessments Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Governments
Accumulated Unused Compensated
Absences
Customer Deposits
Other Receipts
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Note: There were no significant non-cash transactions.

Business-type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Electric Internal

Sewer Services Total Service Funds
$ 28,768,493 $ 47,741,534 $ 76,510,027 $ 35,073
- - - 13,475,319
- - - 21,708
1,280,583 (1,280,583) - (107,779)
(9,614,662) (32,228,245) (41,842,907) (6,875,828)
(5,580,181) (1,564,799) (7,144,980) (762,739)
(2,324,241) (354,509) (2,678,750) (174,140)
- - - (1,995,228)
1,730 26,301 28,031 4,623
12,531,722 12,339,699 24,871,421 3,621,009
(2,354,943) (2,848,183) (5,203,126) -
(2,354,943) (2,848,183) (5,203,126) -
- 111,315 111,315 -
6,710 31,455 38,165 284,440
(2,850,587) (5,170,371) (8,020,958) (3,138,220)
- 19,494,954 19,494,954 -
- (19,691,994) (19,691,994) -
(2,890,000) (2,225,000) (5,115,000) -
(2,975,388) (2,571,562) (5,546,950) -
916,855 - 916,855 -
(7,792,410) (10,021,203) (17,813,613) (2,853,780)
- (2,518,000) (2,518,000) -
- 3,690,000 3,690,000 -
494,293 (3,347) 490,946 47,441
494,293 1,168,653 1,662,946 47,441
2,878,662 638,966 3,517,628 814,670
20,633,308 5,718,119 26,351,427 3,448,003
$ 23511970 $ 6,357,085  $ 29,869,055 $ 4,262,673
$ 7,399,582 $ 10,105,629 $ 17,505,211 $ 2,361,289
4,019,207 2,955,824 6,975,031 1,240,239
(89,907) 154,219 64,312 79,613
(213,068) (233,511) (446,579) -
1,280,583 - 1,280,583 -
- (111,315) (111,315) -
(148,872) 778,373 629,501 (12,922)
(16) 2,576 2,560 -
- 54,135 54,135 -
260,359 (149,645) 110,714 67,635
(239,416) (10,346) (249,762) (26,064)
- (1,280,583) (1,280,583) (86,071)
205,286 (5,167) 200,119 (5,340)
(24,148) 33,045 8,897 (1,993)
80,402 20,164 100,566 -
1,730 26,301 28,031 4,623

$ 12,531,722 $ 12,339,699 $ 24,871,421 $ 3,621,009

Thenotesto the financial statementsarean integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2016

Employee
Retirement
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Short-term Investments $ 3,766,139
Investments, at Fair Value
Fixed Income Mutual Funds 1,306,669
Equity Mutual Funds 14,008,893
Common Collective Trusts 64,875,550
Stocks 1,337,286
Corporate Bonds 3,843,707
Accrued Income 23,112
Total Investments 85,395,217
Total Assets 89,161,356
NET POSITION
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits $ 89,161,356

Thenotesto thefinancial statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Changesin Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Employee
Retirement
Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer Contributions $ 4,218,053
Employee Contributions 567,071
Total Contributions 4,785,124
Investment I ncome:
Net Increasein Fair Value
of Investments 2,351,666
Interest and Dividends 754,561
3,106,227
LessInvestment Expenses:
Investment Management Fees 142,156
Custodian Fees 52,269
Net I nvestment Income 2,911,802
Total Additions 7,696,926
DEDUCTIONS
Employee Benefits 7,531,404
Refunds of Contributions 1,833
Administrative Expense 175,186
Total Deductions 7,708,423
Changein Net Position (11,497)
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits - Beginning 89,172,853
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits - Ending $ 89,161,356

Thenotesto thefinancial statementsarean integral part of this statement.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Notesto Financial Statements
September 30, 2016
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THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA

Notesto Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Winter Park (the “City”), which was established by a specia act of the Florida
Legidlature on April 8, 1882 and incorporated October 12, 1887, operates under the
Commission - City Manager form of government. The City is located in the center of the State
of Floridain the northern section of Orange County (the “County”).

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
as applied to governmental units. The more significant accounting policies used by the City are
described below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY:

The City is a municipal corporation with a five member commission including the mayor, who
acts as the presiding officer of the commission, with avice mayor serving in his absence.

The City provides a full range of municipal services including police and fire protection, public
works activities, parks and recreational facilities, planning and development, financial services
and general administrative services. In addition, the City operates two enterprise funds: water
and sewer services and electric services,

In evaluating the City (the primary government) as a reporting entity, all potential component
units that may or may not fall within the financial accountability of the City have been
addressed. Financial accountability is present if the City Commission (the “Commission”)
appoints a voting majority of a component unit's governing body and has the ability to impose its
will on the organization or if there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the City.

The accompanying financial statements present all the fund types of the City and its component
unit. The blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, is, in substance, part of the
City’ s operations.

Blended Component Unit:

The Community Redevelopment Agency is governed by the City’s five-member commission.
Pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 163, Part 111 of the Florida Statutes, the City, with the
consent of Orange County, created a Community Redevelopment Area (CRA) through City
Resolution No. 1528, adopted on January 11, 1994 to foster improvements in the Westside and
Central Business Districts of the City. The CRA uses future tax increment revenue to fund a
variety of improvement projects. The CRA isreported as a specia revenue fund.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2016

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on al of the nonfiduciary activities of the City and its
component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s water and sewer,
electric and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and mgjor individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENT PRESENTATION:

The government-wide financia statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all igibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers property tax revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. All other governmental
revenues are considered available if they are collected within 180 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. For special assessments receivable, only the portion due within the subsequent
fiscal year is considered to be available for recognition as revenue in the current period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are
recorded only when payment is due.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2016

Franchise and utility taxes, state revenue sharing, charges for garbage and stormwater service,
fines and forfeitures and investment earnings associated with the current fiscal period are
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for useg, it is the City’ s policy to use
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The City utilizes an indirect cost allocation system to allocate costs incurred in the General Fund
that are indirect expenses of other funds. Reimbursements to the General Fund are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the General
Fund. These reimbursements are presented in the Indirect Expenses Allocation column of the
Statement of Activities. The Expenses column of this statement includes only the direct
expenses of each function.

Surpluses or deficits in the Internal Service Funds are allocated back to customers at the
government-wide level Statement of Activities. This creates a reconciling item between the
business-type activities column at the government-wide level and the proprietary fund statements
at the fund level asreflected on the bottom of each statement.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise and internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, depreciation on capital assets and
amortization of intangible assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Major Governmental Funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Community Redevelopment Fund accounts for the activities funded by tax increment
revenues from the Community Redevelopment Area.

Non-Major Governmental Fund Types:

Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are restricted by law or
administrative action to expenditures for specific purposes. Non-magjor special revenue funds
include the Designations Trust Fund, Stormwater Utility Fund, Affordable Housing Fund, Law
Enforcement Trust Fund, Grant Fund, Parks Impact Fees Fund, Help Our Park Expand Fund,
Police and Firefighter Premium Tax Trust Fund and Cemetery Trust Fund.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of
principal and interest on, certain general long-term debt.
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Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2016

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources segregated for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities. Non-major capital projects funds include the Capital
Projects Fund and Stormwater Capital Projects Fund.

Major Proprietary Funds:

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer service to customers
both inside the City limits and to the west, north and east of the City.

The Electric Services Fund accounts for the provision of electric service to certain areas within
the City limits.

Non-Major Proprietary Funds:

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
department to other departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. Internal service
funds include the Fleet Maintenance Fund, Vehicle Replacement Fund, Employee Insurance
Fund and General Insurance Fund.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the Police and Firefighter Pension Trust Funds,
which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to qualified public safety employees.

D. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application, effective for the City’s fiscal year beginning October 1, 2015. This Statement
addresses accounting and financia reporting issues related to fair value measurements. It
provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes and
for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to fair value measurements.
This pronouncement resulted in expanded footnote disclosures around fair value including the
fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques.

E. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY:
1) Budgetary information:

The City’s budgetary procedures and a comparison of budget to actual data are presented in the
Required Supplemental Information section for the General and budgeted major Special Revenue
Fund (Community Redevelopment Fund).

Expenditures of the Grant non-major special revenue fund exceeded the annual budget by
$111,742. Revenues of this fund exceeded the annual budget by $145,750.
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2) Deficit net position balances:

The Fleet Maintenance Fund is accounted for as an interna service fund. At September 30,
2016, this fund had a $14,383 deficit net position balance. This deficit is expected to be
liquidated in future years through charges to user departments.

The General Insurance Fund is accounted for as an internal service fund. At September 30,
2016, this fund had a $193,259 deficit net position balance. This deficit is expected to be
liquidated in future years through charges to user departments.

F. USE OF ESTIMATES:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the financial statement date and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses or expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

G. DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City’ s cash management pool allows individual fundsto, at any time, deposit additional cash
or make withdrawals without prior notice or penalty, and thus, the City is managing an internal
service pool which is considered by GASB to be a cash equivalent. The City considers cash
equivaents to be highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with an original maturity
of three months or less when purchased.

Each participating fund's portion of the pool is reported as “Cash, Cash Equivalents and
Investments’ in the governmental and proprietary funds balance sheets. Certain cash and
investments for the Community Redevelopment, Water and Sewer and Electric Services Funds
are held separately and not included in the pool.

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the City classifies its cash management pool
(including restricted assets) along with the Water and Sewer and Electric Services Funds cash
accounts as cash and cash equivalents.

Individual funds with credit balances at year-end were reclassified to Due to Other Funds for
reporting purposes with offsetting Due from Other Funds in the General Fund.

Deposits

Deposits consist of interest bearing demand accounts. All deposits with financial institutions
were 100% insured by Federal depository insurance or by collateral pursuant to the Public
Depository Security Act of the State of Florida. The carrying amount of the demand deposits
and cash on hand at September 30, 2016 was $5,481,322 (excluding Pension Trust Funds).
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| nvestments

The City’s investment policy is governed by an ordinance adopted by the City Commission.
Allowable investments include, the Local Government Surplus Trust Fund, United States
Government Securities, United States Government Agencies (full faith and credit of the United
States Government), Federal Instrumentalities (United States Government sponsored agencies
which are non-full faith and credit), Non-Negotiable Interest Bearing Time Certificates of
Deposit, Repurchase Agreements, Banker’s Acceptances, Commercial Paper, State and/or Local
Government Taxable and/or Tax-Exempt Debt, Registered Investment Companies (Money
Market Mutual Funds) and Intergovernmental Investment Pools.

The following is a summary of cash and investments held by the City at September 30, 2016:

Investment Maturities(in Years)

Fair Less More

Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. Treasury Securities $ 9,043,920 $ 999,770  $ 7,011,260 $ 1,032,890 $ -
Government National Mortgage Assoc 2,823,619 - - 44,410 2,779,209
Federal Farm Credit Bank 11,152,430 999,900 7,653,080 2,499,450 -
Federal Home Loan Bank 6,797,600 - 4,295,850 2,501,750 -
Federal Home L oan Mortgage Corp 8,104,770 - 8,052,042 - 52,728
Federal National Mortgage Association 11,147,517 - 10,026,215 1,121,302 -
Florida Surplus Asset Fund Trust 500,133 500,133 - -
Local Government Surplus Trust Fund 19,136 19,136 - - -
Pooled I nvestments 49,589,125 2,518,939 37,038,447 7,199,802 2,831,937
Carrying amount of deposits 5,481,322 5,481,322 - - -
Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments 55,070,447 8,000,261 37,038,447 7,199,802 2,831,937
U.S. Treasury Securities 4,343,877 2,867,904 1,475,973 - -
Federal Farm Credit Bank 999,684 - 999,684
Federal Home Loan Bank 999,802 - 999,802
Other Investments 6,343,363 2,867,904 3,475,459 - -
Total Cash and Investments $ 61413810 $ 10868165 $ 40513906 $  7,199802 $ 2,831,937

Police Officers' Pension
Investment Maturities(in Years)

Fair Less More

Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 860,978 $ N/A % N/A  $ N/A & N/A
Equity Mutual Funds 6,726,212 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Common Collective Trusts 31,437,331 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Stocks 267,400 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Corporate Bonds 884,420 12,112 568,792 100,367 203,149
Pooled I nvestments 40,176,341 12,112 568,792 100,367 203,149
Carrying amount of deposits 2,182,507 - - - -
Total Cash and Investments $ 42358848 $ 12112 $ 568,792 $ 100,367 $ 203,149
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Firefighters' Pension
Investment Maturities (in Years)
Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 445691 $ NA  $ N/A 8 N/A  $ N/A
Equity Mutual Funds 7,282,681 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Common Collective Trusts 33,438,219 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Stocks 1,069,886 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Corporate Bonds 2,959,287 88,719 1,884,830 275,868 709,870
Pooled | nvestments 45,195,764 88,719 1,884,830 275,868 709,870
Carrying amount of deposits 1,583,632 - - - -
Total Cash and Investments $ 46,779,396 $ 88,719 $ 1,884,830 $ 275,868 $ 709,870

Fair Value of Investments - Investments are stated at fair value with the exception of
investments in the Forida Surplus Asset Fund Trust (FLSAFE) and State Board of
Administration’s Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (SBA - an external 2a7-like fund)
which are presented at share price.

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs. The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value
measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

The following is a summary of the City’sfinancial assets carried at fair value by level within the
valuation hierarchy as of September 30, 2016:

Fair Value by L evel
Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 N/A

U.S. Treasury Securities $ 9,043920 $ 9,043920 $ - 8
Government National Mortgage Assoc 2,823,619 - 2,823,619
Federal Farm Credit Bank 11,152,430 - 11,152,430 -
Federal Home Loan Bank 6,797,600 - 6,797,600 -
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 8,104,770 - 8,104,770
Federal National Mortgage Association 11,147,517 - 11,147,517 -
Florida Surplus Asset Fund Trust 500,133 - 500,133
Loca Government Surplus Trust Fund 19,136 - - 19,136
Pooled I nvestments 49,589,125 9,043,920 40,025,936 519,269
Carrying amount of deposits 5,481,322 - - 5,481,322
Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments 55,070,447 9,043,920 40,025,936 6,000,591
U.S. Treasury Securities 4,343,877 4,343,877 - -
Federal Farm Credit Bank 999,684 - 999,684
Federal Home Loan Bank 999,802 - 999,802
Other Investments 6,343,363 4,343,877 1,999,486 -
Total Cash and Investments $ 61,413,810 $ 13,387,797 $ 42025422 $ 6,000,591
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Police Officers Pension

Fair Value by Level

Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 N/A

Fixed Income Mutua Funds 860,978 $ - 860,978 $

Equity Mutual Funds 6,726,212 6,726,212 -

Common Collective Trusts 31,437,331 - 31,437,331

Stocks 267,400 267,400 -

Corporate Bonds 884,420 - 884,420

Pooled I nvestments 40,176,341 6,993,612 33,182,729 -
Carrying amount of deposits 2,182,507 - - 2,182,507
Total Cash and Investments 42358848 $ 6,993,612 33,182,729 $ 2,182,507

Firefighters' Pension
Fair Value by L evel
Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 N/A

Fixed Income Mutual Funds 445691 $ - 445691  $

Equity Mutual Funds 7,282,681 7,282,681 -

Common Collective Trusts 33,438,219 - 33,438,219

Stocks 1,069,886 1,069,886 -

Corporate Bonds 2,959,287 - 2,959,287

Pooled I nvestments 45,195,764 8,352,567 36,843,197 -
Carrying amount of deposits 1,583,632 - - 1,583,632
Total Cash and Investments $ 46,779,396 $ 8,352567 % 36,843197 $ 1,583,632

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of September 30, 2016:

e U.S Treasury Securities and Stocks - Valued using quoted prices in an active
market for identical assets (Level 1 inputs).

e Equity Mutual Funds — Valued at market prices for similar assets in active
markets (Level 1 inputs).

e Debt Securities — Vaued using either a bid evaluation or a matrix pricing
technique. Bid evaluations may include market quotations, yields, maturities, call
features and ratings. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the
securities relationship to benchmark quoted prices (Level 2 inputs).

e Fixed Income Mutual Funds — Vaued using pricing models maximizing the use
of observable inputs for similar securities. This includes basing value on yield
currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings
(Level 2 inputs).

e Common Collective Trusts — Vaued on the basis of the relative interest of each
participating investor in the fair value of the underlying assets of each of the
respective common collective trusts. The underlying assets are valued based on
the net asset value as provided by the investment account manager (Level 2
inputs).

Interest Rate Risk - To mitigate interest rate risk, the City's investment policy requires that the
investment strategy provide sufficient liquidity to meet the City’ s operating, payroll and capital

requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. Investments of current operating funds are to

have maturities not exceeding twelve months.
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Credit Risk - Although the City’s investment policy does not address specific investment-
related risk, to mitigate credit risk, the City primarily invests in the U.S. Government Securities
and the State of Florida local government surplus trust fund pool as well as other investments
allowed in the investment ordinance referred to above. Credit quality distribution for
investments, with credit exposure as a percentage of total investments, are as follows at
September 30, 2016:

Standard & Moody’s Per centage
Investment Type Poor’s Ratings Ratings of Total

Pooled I nvestments

U.S. Treasury Securities Not Rated Aaa 16%
Government National Mortgage Assoc Not Rated Not Rated 5%
Federal Farm Credit Bank AA+ Aaa 20%
Federal Home Loan Bank AA+ Aaa 12%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp AA+ Aaa 15%
Federal National Mortgage Association AA+ Aaa 20%
Florida Surplus Asset Fund Trust AAAM Not Rated 0%
Local Government Surplus Trust Fund AAAmM Not Rated 0%
Other Investments

U.S. Treasury Securities Not Rated Aaa 8%
Federal Farm Credit Bank AA+ Aaa 2%
Federal Home Loan Bank AA+ Aaa 2%

Credit Ratingsfor Investmentsin Debt Securities by the Police Officers’ Pension

Standard &
Amount Poor’s Per centage
I nvested Ratings of Total
Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 860,978 AAA 49%
Total Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 860,978
Corporate Bonds $ 43,311 A 2%
95,442 B 5%
123,888 BB 8%
114,868 BBB 7%
9,810 CCC 0%
497,101 Not Rated 29%
Total Corporate Bonds $ 884,420

Credit Ratingsfor Investmentsin Debt Securities by the Firefighters Pension

Standard &
Amount Poor’s Per centage
I nvested Ratings of Total
Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 445,691 AAA 13%
Total Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 445,691
Corporate Bonds $ 11,388 AAA 0%
156,061 A 5%
309,091 B 9%
391,825 BB 12%
493,498 BBB 15%
26,160 CCC 0%
1,571,264 Not Rated 46%
Total Corporate Bonds $ 2,959,287
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Custodial Risk — To mitigate custodia risk, broker/dealers must provide audited financial
statements, proof of National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD) certification and proof
of state registration. Securities transactions between a financia institution or broker/dealer and
the custodian involving purchase or sale of securities by transfer of money or securities must be
made on a “delivery vs. payment” basis, if applicable, to ensure that the custodian will have the
security or money, as appropriate, on hand at the conclusion of the transaction.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City's investment policy requires that investments be
diversified by security type and institution. Specific limitations as to the percentage of the
portfolio and length of maturity for each type of investment are addressed in the policy.

H. RECEIVABLES:

Utility operating revenues are generaly recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered
monthly. The amount of services delivered for the period from the last billing date to September
30th is estimated and accrued at year-end.

I. PROPERTY TAXES:

Under Florida Law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all City property taxes
are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The
laws of the State regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a consistent property
valuation method statewide. State Statutes permit cities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to
ten (10) mills. The operating millage rate in effect for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016
was 4.0923. A debt service millage was also in effect of 0.2750 mills.

All property is assessed according to its fair market value on January 1 of each year and at that
time alien is placed on the property for the taxes. The tax levy of the City is established by the
City Commission prior to October 1 of each year and the Orange County Property Appraiser
incorporates the City’s millage into the total tax levy, which aso includes Orange County, the
Orange County School Board and the St. Johns Water Management District’ s tax requirements.

All taxes are billed on November 1 of each year or as soon thereafter as the assessment roll is
certified and delivered to the Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1
following the year in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the
rate of 4% in the month of November, 3% in the month of December, 2% in the month of
January and 1% in the month of February. The taxes paid in March are without discount.

On or prior to June 1 following the tax year, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real
property. Application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the
certificate holder after a period of two years. Unsold certificates are held by the County.
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J. INVENTORIES:

Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method and are charged as
expenditures/expenses when used.

Inventories of the General Fund consist of fuel and other operating supplies.

Inventories of the Stormwater Utility Fund consist of aquatic weed control chemicals.
Inventories of the Water and Sewer Fund consist of maintenance parts, supplies and water
meters.

Inventories of the Electric Services Fund consist of cable, meters, transformers and supplies.
Inventories of the Fleet Maintenance Fund consist of maintenance parts, tires, fuels and
supplies.

* e G0

K. PREPAID ITEMS:

Prepaid items represent payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond September
30, 2016. The costs of governmental fund type prepaid items are recorded using the
consumption method, that is, as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

L. CAPITAL ASSETS:

Property, plant and equipment purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated
historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date received. The
City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Years Classification

7-50 | Buildings
10-50 | Streetsand drainage
10-50 | Improvements other than buildings
2-20 | Machinery and furniture
2-10 | Vehicles (including heavy equipment)
30-50 | Water & sewer lines

30-50 | Electric

System acquisition costs represent the 1981 acquisition of General Waterworks Corporation's
operating assets, consisting primarily of the water utility within the City and a water and sewer
system providing services to areas outlying the City's boundaries. The purchase method was
utilized to account for this transaction. The system acquisition costs are amortized using the
straight-line method over forty (40) years.
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The City’s payment to Progress Energy Florida (now known as Duke Energy) for the electric
distribution system in the City limits for going concern and stranded costs are reported as system
acquisition costs and are being amortized over the term of the bonds issued to finance this
acquisition.

Capacity rights and sewer contract costs consist of purchased rights to specified percentages in
existing and future water and sewer treatment capacity as described in Note 19. The capacity
rights were recorded at cost and amortized using the straight-line method over a period of 13 to
30 years.

The City’s payment to South Seminole-North Orange County Wastewater Transmission
Authority for its share of infrastructure improvements is reported as sewer capacity rights and is
being amortized over the term of the bonds issued to finance this payment. The City is party to
an intergovernmental agreement, which formed the South Seminole-North Orange County
Wastewater Transmission Authority. The Authority owns and operates the pipeline that takes
the City's and other participants sewage flows to the Iron Bridge Regiona Wastewater
Treatment Plant.

M. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then. The deferred expense on refunding bonds reported in the government—wide statement of
net position and proprietary funds statement of net position results from the difference in the
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The amount for pensions
relates to certain differences between expected and actual actuarial results and changes of
assumptions.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and will not be recognized as in inflow of resources (revenue) until that period. The
unavailable revenue on long-term receivables reported in the fund financial statements balance
sheet for governmental funds represents a portion of various long-term receivables that will be
received after the availability period. This amount is deferred and the portion of the receivables
becoming due within the following fiscal year will be recognized as revenue in future periods.
The amount for pensions relates to certain differences between expected and actual actuarial
results and certain differences between projected and actual investment earnings.

N. UNEARNED REVENUE:
The unearned revenue on the government-wide statement of net position includes golf course

memberships collected in advance and occupational license fees collected before year-end but
not due until October 1.
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O. LONG-TERM DEBT:

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position.

P. ACCUMULATED UNUSED COMPENSATED ABSENCES:

The City records the vested portion of accumulated unused compensated absences at year-end
based on each employee's accumulated unused hours and rate of pay, including the City’s share
of Social Security, Medicare taxes and Retirement. All compensated absences are accrued when
earned by employees in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A
liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as aresult of employee resignations and retirements.

Q. PENSION PLANS:

The City sponsors and administers three pension plans covering substantially all full-time
employees. The City’spolicy isto fund the annual pension costs in the annual budget.

Employees of the Police and Fire Departments are enrolled in separate defined benefit pension
plans adopted by the City effective August 4, 1959 for the police officers and January 1, 1959 for
the firefighters. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the Police and Firefighter pension plans and
additions/deductions from the plan net positions have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the plans.

Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized in the fund
financia statements when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

Genera employees are enrolled in a defined contribution 401(a) pension plan established
January 1, 1992, as described in Note 17(C). The assets, liabilities, fund equity and operations of
this plan are not presented on the City’'s financial statements as the plan is independently
administered.

R. CATEGORIESAND CLASSIFICATION OF FUND BALANCE:

Fund balance classifications are Non Spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and
Unassigned. These classifications reflect not only the nature of the funds, but also provide
clarity to the level of restriction placed upon fund balance. Fund balance can have different
levels of restraint, such as external versus internal compliance requirements. The City classifies
governmental fund balances as follows:

Non Spendable — includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in
spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints.
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Spendable Fund Balance:

Restricted — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
which are externally imposed by providers, such as donors or amounts constrained by
enabling legidation.

Committed — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of City
Commission. Such formal action may be in the form of an ordinance or resolution and
may only be modified or rescinded by taking the same formal action that imposed the
original constraint. These commitments must be in place prior to September 30.

Assigned — includes amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are
neither restricted nor committed. Assignments may be made by City Commission or
management based on the purpose of the fund.

Unassigned — includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund which has
not been classified within the other above mentioned categories.

The City uses restricted amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available. Additionaly, the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned
amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.

The City does not have a minimum fund balance policy. As part of its Administrative Policy, the
City Commission set agoal of working towards an unassigned fund balance in the General Fund
equaling thirty percent of the annual General Fund expenditures and transfers out for recurring
operating costs reported in other funds.

S. NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS COMPONENT OF NET
POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets component of net position consisted of the following
components as of September 30, 2016:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Capital assets, net $ 86,639,447 $ 184,748,544
Related debt, net (18,880,588) (124,778,038)
Unspent proceeds from capital
related debt - 2,161,116
Totals $ 67,758,859 $ 62,131,622

T. RESTRICTED COMPONENT OF NET POSITION:

Restricted component of net position are subject to restrictions that are either (1)
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legidlation.
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2. Receivables

The accounts receivable and allowance for uncollectibles at September 30, 2016 were as follows:

Accounts Allowance for
Receivable Uncaollectibles Net
General Fund $ 3,079,771 $ 1,950,737 $ 1,129,034
Community Redevelopment Fund 23,000 15,500 7,500
Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Designations Trust Fund 35,551 34,231 1,320
Stormwater Utility Fund 218,060 66 217,994
Debt Service Fund 1,339 - 1,339
Capita Projects Fund 669,588 - 669,588
Stormwater Capital Projects Fund 55,657 - 55,657
Enterprise Funds:
Water and Sewer Fund 1,535,183 132,860 1,402,323
Electric Services Fund 4,041,719 114,611 3,927,108
Internal Service Funds:
Fleet Maintenance Fund 1,801 1,801 -
V ehicle Replacement Fund 18,465 - 18,465
Employee Insurance Fund 4,280 111 4,169
Totals $ 0,684,414 $ 2,249,917 $ 7,434,497
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3.  Special Assessments Recelvable

Special assessments receivable consist of assessments for community redevelopment, street
bricking and other streetscaping improvements in the governmental funds and undergrounding of
electric and cable utilities in the Electric Services Fund.  Owners of properties benefitting from
the improvements are given the option of paying their share of the project cost either in a lump
sum at the completion of the project or over a certain time. Assessments are billed to property
owners through the property tax bill as non-ad valorem assessments.

Special assessments receivable at September 30, 2016 were as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Major Fund
Community Redevelopment Fund:
Community redevelopment
Non-Major Funds
Designations Trust Fund:
Street bricking improvements
Debt Service Fund:
Park Avenueimprovements
Orange Avenue improvements

Business-Type Activities:
Major Fund
Electric Services Fund:
Undergrounding electric and
cable utilities

Principal

Interest Current Deferred Interest

Rate Receivable Receivable Receivable Total

- 30,000 $ 360,000 $ - $ 390,000
6.00% 34553 $ 18641 $ 1,086 $ 54,280
1.57% 57,213 228,851 8,981 295,045
2.09% 97,089 970,891 113,838 1,181,818

154302 $ 1,199,742 $ 122819 $ 1,476,863

4.00%

&
4.25% 236,067 $ - $ 31386 $ 267,453
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4. Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets during the year ended September 30,

2016:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Streets and drainage
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumul ated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Streets and drainage
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital
assets, net
Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and production fecilities
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Improvements other than buildings
System acquisition costs
Sewer contract costs
Sewer capacity rights
Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and production facilities
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Improvements other than buildings
System acquisition costs
Sewer contract costs
Sewer capacity rights
Total accumulated depreciation, net
Total capita assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance I ncreases Decr eases Balance
$ 15,136,501 $ 2,901,901 $ - % 18,038,402
2,816,685 8,179,248 (5,618,443) 5,377,490
17,953,186 11,081,149 (5,618,443) 23.415,892
43,103,210 452,222 - 43,555,432
17,008,366 2,124,811 - 19,133,177
20,312,055 423,883 (181,212) 20,554,726
727,579 33,135 (25,413) 735,301
18,830,838 3,031,586 (851,005) 21,011,419
61,533,907 - - 61,533,907
161,515,955 6,065,637 (1,057,630) 166,523,962
(20,258,356) (1,255,075) - (21,513,431)
(12,461,901) (352,049) - (12,813,950)
(16,799,773) (832,907) 136,200 (17,496,480)
(721,023) (2,547) - (723,570)
(13,590,997) (1,135,078) 834,892 (13,891,183)
(35,864,309) (997,484) - (36,861,793)
(99,696,359) (4,575,140) 971,092 (103,300,407)
61,819,596 1,490,497 (86,538) 63,223,555
$ 79,772,782 $ 12,571,646 $ (5,704,981) $ 86,639,447
$ 12,194,774 $ - % - $ 12,194,774
82,016 7,742,100 (7,180,330) 643,786
12,276,790 7,742,100 (7,180,330) 12,838,560
3,506,065 - - 3,506,065
6,655,660 278,857 - 6,934,517
42,657 - - 42,657
230,962,010 7,226,252 - 238,188,262
19,885,843 - - 19,885,843
3,394,035 - - 3,394,035
19,661,103 - - 19,661,103
284,107,373 7,505,109 - 291,612,482
(3,096,561) (54,243) - (3,150,804)
(6,630,308) (451,118) - (7,081,426)
(42,356) (115) - (42,471)
(85,630,175) (5,148,816) - (90,778,991)
(6,912,624) (660,177) - (7,572,801)
(3,394,035) - - (3,394,035)
(7,021,408) (660,562) - (7,681,970)
(112,727,467) (6,975,031) - (119,702,498)
171,379,906 530,078 - 171,909,984
$ 183,656,696 $ 8,272,178 $ (7,180,330) $ 184,748,544
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Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Planning $ 7,185
Public Works 1,803,795
Police 410,668
Fire 599,553
Parks and Recreation 513,700
Capital assets held by the City’ sinternal service funds are charged

to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 1,240,239
Total depreciation expense $ 4,575,140

5. Interfund Balances

Interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30, 2016 consist of:

Due From DueTo
Other Other
Funds Funds
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 153,546 $ -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - 114,216
Internal Service Funds - 39,330
Totals $ 153,546 $ 153,546

The Due to Other Funds balances reported in the fund financial statements represent temporary
interfund loans to cover credit cash balances in the individual funds at year-end with offsetting
Due from Other Funds in the lending funds.

6. General Obligation Bonds

Genera Obligation Bonds, Series 2011, are general obligations of the City and are payable from
and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the revenues received from the levy and collection by
the City of voted debt service millage on all the taxable property within the City.

Proceeds of such tax are deposited, as received, into the Sinking Fund and applied solely for the
purpose of paying the principal and interest as they become due.

The proceeds from the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011, issuance were used to refund the

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001, which were used to finance construction of a new Public
Safety Complex.
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A. GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

Original Amount

Interest Rates Final Amount Outstanding
Description and Dates Maturity | ssued at 9/30/2016
Series 2011 2.50% to 3.00%

V1, 7/1 07/01/21 $6,955,000 $3,725,000
B. EARLY REDEMPTION:
Description Call Date Call Rate
Series 2011 Not subject to N/A
redemption

7. Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Notes

The Orange Avenue Refunding Revenue Improvement Note, Series 2012A, is a specia
obligation of the City payable from the monies budgeted and appropriated by the City
Commission for such purpose in each year from legally available non-ad valorem revenues. The
proceeds from this note were used for a current refunding of the Orange Avenue Revenue
Improvement Note, Series 2007, which were used to finance streetscaping improvements on
Orange Avenue.

The Park Avenue Refunding Revenue Improvement Note, Series 2012B, is also a special
obligation of the City payable from the monies budgeted and appropriated by the City
Commission for such purpose in each year from legally available non-ad valorem revenues. The
proceeds from the Park Avenue Revenue Improvement Note, Series 2012B were used for a
current refunding of the Park Avenue Refunding Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2010.
The origina Park Avenue Revenue Improvement Note, Series 2004 was used to finance
enhancements to the downtown area of Park Avenue.

A. NON-AD VALOREM REVENUE NOTES CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

Amount
Interest Rates Original Outstanding at
Description and Dates Final Maturity | Amount | ssued 9/30/2016
Series 2012A 2.09% 07/01/28 $1,870,000 $1,535,000
V1,71
Series 2012B 1.57% 07/01/21 $2,060,000 $1,160,000
V1, 7/1
B. EARLY REDEMPTION:
Description Call Date Call Rate
Series 2012A | Note may be prepaid The Note contains a make whole call provision
Series2012B | Note may be prepaid The Note contains a make whole call provision
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8. Community Redevelopment Agency Notes

The Community Redevelopment Agency Notes are special obligations of the City’s CRA

payable from tax increment revenues of the CRA. The proceeds from these notes were used to
finance capital enhancements and social programs within the CRA. Tax increment revenue from
Orange County is reported as other intergovernmental revenue and tax increment revenue from
the City isreported as transfers in from the General Fund.

Total principal and interest remaining on the notes is $13,264,735, payable through January

2026. For the current year, principa and interest paid and total incremental tax revenue was

$1,494,053 and $2,986,272, respectively.

A. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY NOTES CONSIST OF THE

FOLLOWING:
Amount
Interest Rates Original Outstanding at
Description and Dates Final Maturity | Amount |Issued 9/30/2016
Series 2006 3.89%, 01/01/25 $2,155,000 $1,245,000
V1, 7/1
Series 2010 4.48%, 01/01/26 $8,100,000 $5,735,000
11;7/1
Series 2012 1.99% 01/01/25 $5,870,000 $4,335,000
11;7/1
B. EARLY REDEMPTION:
Description Call Date Call Rate
Series 2006 Not subject to redemption N/A
Series 2010 Notes may be prepaid 15% of balance outstanding may be prepaid
on any January 1 without penalty; all or a
portion of the Notes may be prepaid at any
time with afee to compensate the underwriter
based on market conditions at the time of
such prepayment
Series 2012 Note may be prepaid The Note contains a make whole call
provision
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9. Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds

A. THE REVENUE BONDS (SERIAL) CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

Amount

Interest Rates Final Original Outstanding

Description and Dates Maturity | Amount Issued | at 9/30/2016

Water & Sewer Revenue | 3.00%to 5.00% | 12/01/34 $45,685,000 | $37,730,000
Bonds, Series 2009 6/1; 12/1

Water & Sewer Revenue 4.08% 12/01/30 $16,500,000 | $16,500,000
Bonds, Series 2010 6/1; 12/1

Water & Sewer Refunding | 2.00% to 5.00% | 12/01/21 $14,155,000 |  $9,965,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 6/1; 12/1

The City has pledged future water and sewer customer revenue, net of specified operating
expenses, to repay the debt above. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for major
improvements to the City’s water treatment plants as well as its share of costs for improvements
to facilities owned by other entities through which the City participates viainterlocal agreements.
The bonds are payable solely from water and sewer customer revenues and are payable through
2035. Annual principa and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 50
percent of net revenues. The total principal and interest remaining on the bonds is $93,493,613.
Principal and interest paid for the current year and total net revenues were $5,865,388 and
$11,620,701, respectively.

B. BOND COVENANTS:

The Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, Series 2010 and Series 2011, resolutions
providefor:

1) ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF VARIOUS FUNDS:

e Revenue Fund records all operating revenues and expenses of the system,

Sinking Fund records all debt service requirements which include the Sinking Fund account,
bond amortization account and reserve account;

¢ Renewa and Replacement Fund records all the improvements, extensions and replacements
of the system; and

e Construction Fund records the cost of major additions to the system financed by the revenue
bonds.
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2) RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF CASH FROM OPERATIONS IN ORDER OF
PRIORITY:

e Deposits are made to the Revenue Fund to meet current operations according to the existing
bond ordinance;

e Deposits to the Sinking Fund are required each month equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the interest
becoming due on the next semi-annual interest payment date and one-twelfth (1/12) of the
principal becoming due on the next principal payment date;

e Deposits to the Renewal and Replacement Fund are required in each month equal to
one-twelfth (1/12) of 5% of gross revenues for the preceding fiscal year; however, no such
monthly deposit shall be required whenever the amount in such fund shall be at least equal to
5% of the then current net asset value of the system.

3) EARLY REDEMPTION:

Description Call Date Call Rate
Series 2009 12/01/19 and thereafter 100%
Subject to Prepayment Premium
Series 2010 Anytime prior to 12/22/2020; 100%
thereafter
. . Not subject to redemption prior to
Series 2011 Anytime stated date of maturity

4) INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS:

e Funds are required to be continuously secured in the same manner as state and municipal
deposits of funds are required to be secured by the Laws of the State of Florida; and

e All funds deposited shall be continuously invested in direct obligations of, or obligations that
are guaranteed by, the United States of America, obligations of its several agencies, the Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, obligations guaranteed by the Government National
Mortgage Association, or time deposits in banks, trust companies or savings and loan
associations represented by Certificates of Deposit.
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10. Electric Revenue Bonds

A. THE REVENUE BONDS (SERIAL) CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

Original Amount

Interest Rates Final Amount Outstanding
Description and Dates Maturity I ssued at 9/30/2016
Electric Revenue Bonds, Variable rates*;
Series 2005A Payable weekly | 10/01/33 |$42,025,000| $1,050,000
Electric Revenue Bonds, | 3.375% to 4.25%;
Series 2007 4/1; 10/1 10/01/37 | $22,135,000| $1,110,000
Electric Revenue Bonds, |2.000% to 5.000%:
Series 2009A 4/1:10/1 10/01/35 | $28,020,000 | $24,310,000
Electric Revenue Bonds, |2.000% to 5.000%:
Series 2009B 4/1:10/1 10/01/35 | $6,965,000 | $6,215,000
Electric Revenue Bonds, 3.20%
Series 2010 4/1:10/1 10/01/35 | $5,245,000 | $4,260,000
Electric Revenue Bonds, 2.74%
Series 2014 4/1;10/1 10/01/33 | $7,680,000 | $7,275,000
Electric Revenue Bonds, 2.09%
Series 2014A 4/1:10/1 10/01/33 | $5,900,000 | $5,685,000
Electric Revenue Bonds, |2.000% to 5.000%,;
Series 2016 4/1;10/1 10/01/37 | $18,260,000 | $18,260,000

* Variable rates ranged from 0.333% - .938% for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. The
average rate was .709%. The interest rate is reset weekly and is 175% of the thirty day London
Interbank Offering Rate.

The City has pledged future electric customer revenue, net of specified operating expenses, to
repay the debt above. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the acquisition of the
electric utility in 2005, improvements to the system to allow it to function as a stand-alone
distribution system, and undergrounding of some of the maor feeder lines. The bonds are
payable solely from electric customer revenues and are payable through 2037. Annual principal
and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 50 percent of net revenues.
The total principal and interest remaining on the bonds is $96,792,050. Principal and interest
paid for the current year and total customer net revenues were $6,322,341 and $12,217,701,
respectively.
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B. BOND COVENANTS:

The Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A, Series 2007, Series 2009A, Series 2009B, Series
2010, Series 2014, Series 2014A and Series 2016, resolution providesfor:

1)

3)

ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF VARIOUS FUNDS:

Revenue Fund accounts for all gross revenues of the electric system,

Electric System Operation and Maintenance Fund records all operating revenues and
expenses of the system;

Sinking Fund records all debt service requirements which include the interest account,
principal, reserve account and bond amortization account;

Project Fund records the cost of the project financed by the revenue bonds.

RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF CASH FROM OPERATIONS IN ORDER OF
PRIORITY:

Deposits are made to the Electric System Operation and Maintenance Fund to meet current
operations according to the existing bond ordinance;

Deposits shall next be used for deposit into the Principal Account in any year immediately
before a Serial Bond maturity date one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal becoming due on the
next principa payment date;

Deposits to the Renewal and Replacement Fund are required in each month equal to
one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount recommended by the Director of Electric Utilities, but no
further deposit shall be required as long as there is on deposit therein the amount
recommended by the Consulting Engineers for the system for the current fiscal year;

The remainder of the revenues on deposit in the Revenue Fund, after all other required
payments into the funds provided above have been made, together with any deficiencies for
prior payments, may be used by the City for any lawful purpose.

EARLY REDEMPTION:

Description Call Date Call Rate
Series 2005A On any interest payment date 100%
Series 2007 10/01/17 and theresfter 100%
Series 2009A 10/01/19 and thereafter 100%
Series 2009B 10/01/19 and thereafter 100%
Series 2010 Any payment date 101%
Series 2014 10/01/22 and thereafter 100%
Series 2014A 10/01/22 and thereafter 100%
Series 2016 10/01/26 and theresfter 100%
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4) INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS:

e Funds are required to be continuously secured in the same manner as state and municipal
deposits of funds are required to be secured by the Laws of the State of Florida; and

e All monies deposited shall be continuously invested in direct obligations of, or obligations
that are guaranteed by, the United States of America, obligations of its several agencies, the
Loca Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, obligations guaranteed by the Government
National Mortgage Association, or time deposits in banks, trust companies or savings and
loan associations represented by Certificates of Deposit.

11. Bonded | ndebtedness
A. FUTURE REQUIREMENTS

Debt service requirements for al bonded debt outstanding as of September 30, 2016 are as
follows:

Governmental Activities
General Non-Ad Valorem Community
Obligation Revenue Redevelopment Agency
Bonds Notes Notes
Principal I nter est Principal Interest Principal Interest

2017 $ 700,000 $ 111,750 $ 335,000 $ 49,144  $ 1,120,000 $ 373,552
2018 725,000 90,750 340,000 43,260 1,160,000 336,648
2019 745,000 69,000 350,000 37,272 1,185,000 298,491
2020 1,555,000 70,350 355,000 31,153 1,230,000 259,029
2021 - - 370,000 24,903 1,265,000 218,115
2022 — 2026 - - 660,000 64,999 5,355,000 463,900
2027 — 2028 - - 285,000 6,009 - -
Totals $ 3725000 $ 341,850 $ 2,695,000 $ 256,740 $ 11,315000 $ 1,949,735

Businesstype Activities
Water & Electric Services
Sewer Bonds Bonds
Principal I nterest Principal I nter est
2017 $ 3010000 $ 2855463 $ 2,450,000 $ 2,511,716
2018 3,130,000 2,732,663 2,530,000 2,508,404
2019 3,255,000 2,604,963 2,670,000 2,421,835
2020 2,700,000 2,477,055 2,780,000 2,317,116
2021 2,815,000 2,348,702 2,885,000 2,205,435
2022 — 2026 16,745,000 9,662,139 16,275,000 9,129,341
2027 — 2031 20,835,000 5,422,253 19,455,000 5,610,142
2032 - 2036 11,705,000 1,195,375 16,735,000 1,850,986
2037 — 2038 - - 2,385,000 72,075
Totals $ 64195000 $ 29,298613 $  68,165000 $ 28,627,050
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B. CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

Interest costs incurred in enterprise funds during construction are capitalized, net of interest
income from the proceeds of related tax-exempt debt, as part of the cost of the related assets of
the Water and Sewer and Electric Services Funds.

Interest costs on long-term debt incurred and capitalized during the year ended September 30,
2016 were asfollows:

Total Interest Less: Interest Net Interest
CostsIncurred Costs Capitalized Expense
Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer $ 3,237,061 % - $ 3,237,061
Electric Services 3,126,616 45,921 3,080,695
Total business-type activities $ 6,363,677 $ 45921 % 6,317,756

12. Bond Refunding Transactions

On May 12, 2016 the City refunded $18,155,000 in outstanding Electric Refunding and Revenue
Bonds, Series 2007 with proceeds from the Electric Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2016. This
left $1,110,000 from the 2007 series bonds outstanding as of September 30, 2016. This
refunding transaction was undertaken to achieve net present value savings of $2,548,057 and
reduce future debt service payments by $3,308,463.

13. Authorized but Unissued Debt

On March 15, 2016, a bond referendum was approved by the voters of Winter Park approving
the issuance of not to exceed $30,000,000 in general obligation bonds for the purpose of building
the Winter Park Library and Events Center, to include library facilities, civic meeting and
gathering facilities and related parking structure. The City expects to issue these bonds in the
next fiscal year.
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14. Other Long-Term Liabilities

A. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS:

In 2011, the City entered into a capital lease agreement to finance air conditioning and lighting
improvements for City Hall and other City facilities. The process of installing these
improvements was completed in 2011 at a cumulative cost of $2,489,592. As of September 30,
2016, accumulated depreciation on these improvements was $335,403, leaving a net book value
of $2,154,189. A capital lease obligation in the amount of $1,725,656 is providing a portion of
the funding for this project. Future principal and interest payments are due as follows:

Principal Interest
2017 $ 166,998 $ 29,605
2018 172,150 24,453
2019 177,461 19,142
2020 182,937 13,668
2021 188,579 8,025
2022 144,683 2,206
Totals $ 1032808 $ 97,099

B. NOTESPAYABLE BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

The City has a commitment for a five year line of credit for up to $8,000,000 to finance various
operational needs of the City of Winter Park’s Electric Utility System. Any draws on thisline of
credit would be secured by a subordinate lien on the net revenues of the electric system. As of
the date of this report, the City had not made any draws on this line of credit.

Agenda Packet Page 83 72



The City of Winter Park, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2016

15. Changesin Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2016 was as follows:

Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds
Unamortized discount
Unamortized premium

Non-ad valorem
revenue notes

CRA notes
Capital lease obligations

Compensated absences

Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities

Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:

Revenue bonds
Unamortized discount
Unamortized premium

Compensated absences

Business-type activity

Long-term liabilities

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance OneYear

$ 4,780,000 $ -$ (1,055,000) $ 3,725,000 $ 700,000
(1,861) - 1,861 - -
160,321 - (28,291) 132,030 -
3,547,389 - (852,389) 2,695,000 335,000
12,400,000 - (1,085,000) 11,315,000 1,120,000
1,194,807 - (161,999) 1,032,808 166,998
3,801,832 1,335,343 (647,562) 4,489,613 890,995
$ 25,882,488 $ 1,335343% (3,828,380) $ 23,389,451 $ 3,212,993
$ 137,370,000 $ 18,260,000% (23,270,000)$ 132,360,000 $ 5,460,000
(465,871) - 333,376 (132,495) -
1,588,965 1,223,739 (274,410) 2,538,294 -
707,736 385,497 (376,600) 716,633 257,221
$ 139,200,830 $ 19,869,236 $ (23,587,634)$ 135482432$ 5,717,221

Internal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term
liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for the governmental activities. At
year end, $92,505 of compensated absences of interna service funds was included in the above
amounts. Compensated absences for governmental activities will be liquidated in future periods
by the General Fund, Stormwater Utility Fund, Community Redevelopment Agency, Fleet
Maintenance Fund and General Insurance Fund.
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16. Transfersto/from Other Funds

Transfers to/from other funds for the year ended September 30, 2016 were as follows:

Recipient Transferring
Fund Fund Amount Purpose
General Fund:
General Water and Sewer $2,193,038 | Contribution of 15% on average annual non-sewer revenues
for the thirty six months ended March 31, 2015 as
stipulated in City Ordinance 2752-08
Generad Electric Services 2,556,617 | Transfer of electric franchise fee equivalent (6% of charges
for electric service) as stipulated in City Ordinance 2617-05
General Cemetery Trust 248,572 | Transfer to cover the cost of operating and maintaining
Palm and Pineywood Cemeteries
Total transfersto General Fund $4,998,227
Community Redevelopment Fund:
Community General $1,435,305 | Tax increment revenue payment to Community
Redevelopment Redevelopment Agency
Total transfersto Community
Redevelopment Fund $1,435,305
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Designations General 109,736 | General Fund share of contribution to support outside
Trust organizations
Designations Help Our Park 42,247 | Transfer funding remaining in the Help Our Park Expand
Trust Expand Fund to the Designations Trust Fund. Funding still held for
Same purpose.
Designations Water and Sewer 66,905 | Water and Sewer Fund share of contribution to support
Trust outside organizations
Designations Electric Services 116,795 | Electric Fund share of contribution to support outside
Trust organizations
Debt Service General 911,009 | Principal and interest due on various debt instruments
Capital Projects | General 4,531,043 | Funding for various capital projects
Capital Projects | Community 1,003,993 | Funding for purchase of 2111 W Fairbanks ($1,000,000)
Redevelopment and for purchase of new Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) software ($3,993)
Capital Projects | Designations 75,000 | Funding for athletic field lighting
Trust
Capital Projects | Law Enforcement 77,730 | Funding for purchase of new ERP software
Trust
Capital Projects | Cemetery Trust 45,000 | Funding for construction of a storage and office building at
Pineywood Cemetery
Capital Projects | Stormwater 18,523 | Funding for purchase of new ERP software
Capital
Capital Projects | Water and Sewer 95,000 | Funding for public facility maintenance items ($50,000),
and information technology infrastructure upgrades
($45,000)
Capital Projects | Electric Services 174,771 | Purchase of new ERP software ($129,771), information
technology infrastructure upgrades ($45,000)
Total transfersto nonmaj or $7.267.752
governmental funds
Total transfers out to other funds $13,701,284

Agenda Packet Page 85

74




The City of Winter Park, Florida
Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2016

17. Employee Benefits Plans
A. POLICE AND FIREFIGHTER EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS:
Plan Description

The City maintains two separate single-employer, defined benefit pension plans for police
officers and firefighters, which are maintained as Pension Trust Funds and included as part of the
City’ s reporting entity. These pension plans do not issue stand-alone financial reports.

The Police Officers (PPP) and Firefighters (FPP) Pension Plans both use the accrual basis of
accounting to determine the reporting of contributions, benefits paid and refunds paid.
Contributions are recognized when due pursuant to formal commitments (as well as statutory
requirements). Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the plan. Costs for administering the plans are included in the actuaria calculation
and are paid from plan assets.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND PLAN ASSETS: Police Firefighter
Authority Special Act of Legislation Special Act of Legidlation
Basis of Accounting Accrual Accrual
Assets Valuation:

Reporting Fair Vaue Fair Value
Actuarial Valuation Actuarial Value Actuarial Value
Legal Reserves None None
Long-Term Receivables None None
Internal/Participant Loans None None
Non-governmental investment in excess of 10% None None
Benefits Provided

The following schedule is derived from the respective actuarial reports and City information for
the two pension plans as of October 1, 2014 and with regard to contributions for fiscal year
2015/2016, based on the October 1, 2014 actuaria reports:

NORMAL RETIREMENT BENEFITS: Police Firefighter
Eligibility All Police Officers All Uniformed Firefighters
Age/Y ears of Service— Normal Earlier of: 20 years service Earlier of: 20 years service

or age 55 w/10 yrs service or age 55 w/10 yrs service
AgelY ears of Service—Early Age 50 w/10 years service Age 50 w/10 years service
Normal (1) 3% of Average Final 3% of Average Final
Compensation (AFC) Compensation (AFC)
times credited service times credited service
Early Same as Normal except Same as Normal except
reduced by 3% per year reduced by 3% per year
early early
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Delayed

Normal Form

Y earsto vest
Cost of living adjustment (COLA)

DISABILITY BENEFITS:
Service Incurred

Non-line of Duty:
Eligibility

Benefit

PRE-RETIREMENT DEATH BENEFITS:
Service Incurred

Non-Service Incurred
Eligible for Normal Retirement

Not Eligible for Normal Retirement

DEFERRED RETIREMENT OPTION
PROGRAM (DROP):
Eligibility

Benefit

Interest

Period of Participation

TERMINATION BENEFITS:
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Police Firefighter
Computed the same as Computed the same as
Normal Normal
10 years certain and life 10 years certain and life
thereafter thereafter
10 10

Participants who retire on or
after Early or Normal
Retirement Date (including
DROPs) are entitled to a
3% annual COLA on
benefit payments beginning
at age 60

Accrued benefit, but not less
than 42% of AFC

10 or more yrs of credited
service; totally and
permanently disabled

Accrued benefit, but not less
than 25% of AFC

The greater of (a) the
accrued benefit at the time
of death or (b) 30% of
monthly salary at time of
death payable to the spouse
until death

Determined as though had
retired on date of death

@

Must be eligible for Normal
Retirement
Transferred to hypothetical
DROP account within
Pension Fund; paid as lump
sum upon actua termination
of employment
Member elects either:
Rate of return earned by
Fund or 6.5% fixed
At least 12 months but no
more than 60 months

©)

76

Participants who retire on
or after Early or Normal
Retirement Date (including
DROPs) are entitled to a
3% annual COLA on
benefit payments beginning
at age 60

Accrued benefit, but not
less than 42% of AFC

10 or more yrs of credited
service; totally and
permanently disabled

Accrued benefit, but not
|ess than 25% of AFC

The greater of (a) the
accrued benefit at the time
of death or (b) 30% of
monthly salary at time of
death payable to the spouse
until death

Determined as though had
retired on date of death

2

Must be dligible for
Normal Retirement
Transferred to hypothetical
DROP account within
Pension Fund; paid as
[ump sum upon actual
termination of employment
Member elects either:
Rate of return earned by
Fund or 6.5% fixed
At least 12 months but no
more than 84 months
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Police Firefighter
MEMBERS:

Active Participants:

Vested 32 36

Non Vested 36 20
Service Retirees and Beneficiaries 58 35
Disability Retirees 4 1
Terminated Vested 3 1
Deferred Retired Option Plan 10 16

(1) Average Fina Compensation (AFC) is average monthly compensation during the best 60
successive months out of the last 120 calendar months preceding date of retirement (or
termination). Compensation - Total Pay, excluding special detail pay (includes vacation
and comp time accrual).

(2) Lessthan 10 years of credited service —return of employee contributions. 10 years or more
— accrued benefit payable for 10 years.

(3) Lessthan 10 years of credited service — return of employee contributions. 10 years or more
—unreduced vested benefit payable at age 55.

Contribution Requirements

The Florida Constitution requires local governments to make the actuarially determined
contribution. The Florida Division of Retirement reviews and approves each local government’s
actuarial report prior to its being appropriated for use for funding purposes. The funding
methods and determination of benefits payable are provided in the various acts of the Florida
Legidlature, which created the funds including subsequent amendments thereto.

Additionally, the State of Florida collects two locally authorized insurance premium surcharges
(one for the PPP on casualty insurance policies and one for the FPP on certain real and personal
property insurance policies within the corporate limits) which can only be distributed after the
State has ascertained that the local government has met their actuarial funding requirement for
the then most recently completed fiscal year. The remaining funding requirement not covered by
insurance premium surcharges is paid from the City’ s General Fund.

The amounts legally required as of September 30, 2016 to be reserved for the PPP and FPP funds
are $42,364,691 and $46,796,665 respectively.

Police Firefighter
CONTRIBUTIONS:
Rate:
City (4) 54.9% 46.5%
Participants 6.0% 6.0%
Contributions Made $2,248,187 $1,969,865
ACTUARIAL VALUATION:
Frequency Annual Annual
Latest Date 10/01/2015 10/01/2015
Basisfor Contribution 10/01/2014 10/01/2014
Cost Method Entry Age Entry Age
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Police Firefighter
AMORTIZATION:
Method Level Dollar Method Level Dollar Method
Open/Closed Closed Closed
Period 20 Years 20 Years
ASSET VALUATION METHOD: 4 year smoothed market 4 year smoothed market

(4) City contributions for Police and Firefighters include excise taxes on gross receipts of
casualty insurance premiums for Police and property insurance premiums for Firefighters.
Revenues from these taxes in fiscal year 2016 were $293,834 and $406,405, respectively.
These payments were reported as revenue and expense in the Police and Fire Premium Tax
Trust Special Revenue Fund.

Schedule of Employer’s Contributions
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2016

Actual
Contribution
Actuarially Contribution asa% of
Determined Actual Deficiency Covered Covered
Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payrall Payrall
Police Pension $ 2,248,187 $ 2,248,187 $ - $ 4,286,032 52.45%
Firefighter Pension $ 1,887,964 $ 1,887,964 $ - $ 4,275,632 44.16%

| nvestments

The investments of the two funds are administered and managed by investment consultants.
Investments are reported at fair value and are managed by third party money managers. The
City’s independent custodian and the individual money managers price each instrument and
reconcile material differences. Investments that do not have an established market are reported
at estimated fair value. Performance reporting, manager fees, and the City’s asset valuation are
based on the custodian’ s determination of value.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in the pension plans target asset allocations as of September 30, 2016, are
summarized in the following table:
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Police Firefighter
Long-Term Long-Term
Expected Expected
Target Real Rate of Target Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return Allocation Return
Large Cap Core 27% 10.2% 20% 10.2%
Mid Cap Core 7% 11.5% 7% 11.5%
Small Cap Core 7% 9.3% 6% 9.3%
Master Limited Partnerships 5% 13.1% 5% 13.1%
Convertibles 5% 8.9% 8% 8.9%
International Equity 15% 6.1% 13% 6.1%
Fixed Income 25% 6.6% 29% 6.6%
Treasury Inflation Protected 2% 5.8% 4% 5.8%
Real Estate (Private) 5% 7.3% 6% 7.3%
Cash 2% 3.6% 2% 3.6%
Total 100% 100%

The long-term expected rate of return is the thirty year average return, unless the asset class did
not exist prior to 1986, in which case since-inception return was used as a substitute.

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the annual money-weighted rate of return for the PPP
and FPP investments, net of pension plan investment expense was 9.84% and 9.43%,
respectively. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of
investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 2016 and was based on
projected actuarial valuations as of that date. Update procedures were used to roll forward Total
Pension Liability amounts excluding DROP account balances and reserve for excess State Funds
(FPP) to the measurement date — actual DROP account balances and reserve for excess State
funds (FPP) as of the measurement date included in Total Pension Liability. The PPP and FPP
DROP account balances determined by actuarial valuations dated September 30, 2015 were
$1,448,751 and $5,077,353, respectively.
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ASSUMPTIONS:
Investment Earnings

Salary Increases:
Inflation
Merit
Postretirement Increases
Mortality

Retirements Turnover

Police Firefighter
7.75% 7.75%
3.5% 4.0%
3.75% - 6.0% 5.5% - 9.5%
3.0% 3.0%
RP-2000 Combined Table with RP-2000 Combined Table with

separate rates for males and
females with adjustments for
mortality improvements based
on Scale AA

Probabilities of termination are
assigned by length of service

separate rates for males and

females with adjustments for
mortality improvements based on

Scale AA

Probabilities of termination are
assigned by length of service

Schedule of Employer’s Net Pension Liability

(M easurement Date 09/30/2016 — pr ojected — actual will be available after fiscal year end)

Net
Plan Net Pension
Position Liability
asa% asa%
Net of Total of
Pension Plan Net Pension Pension Covered Covered
Liability Position Liability Liability Payroll Payroll
PolicePension  $ 58,221,880 $ 44,270,277 $ 13,951,603 76.04% $ 4,286,032 325.51%
Firefighter $ 60,267,923 $ 51,161,839 $ 9,106,084 84.89% $ 4,275,632 212.98%
Pension
Changesin Net Pension Liability
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Palice Pension Liability Net Position Liability
Balances at 09/30/15* 56,211,878 $ 42,256,882 $ 13,954,996
Changesfor the year:
Service cost 846,677 - 846,677
Interest 4,318,067 - 4,318,067
Difference between expected
and actual experience 471,628 - 471,628
Contributions - employer - 2,248,187 (2,248,187)
Contributions - member - 257,162 (257,162)
Net investment income - 3,227,848 (3,227,848)
Benefit payments and refunds (3,626,370) (3,626,370) -
Administrative expenses - (93,432) 93,432
Net changes 2,010,002 2,013,395 (3,393)
Balances at 09/30/16 58,221,880 $ 44,270,277 $ 13,951,603
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I ncrease (Decr ease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Firefighter Pension Liability Net Position Liability
Balances at 09/30/15* $ 55,504,181 $ 46,938,709 $ 8,565,472
Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,094,871 - 1,094,871
Interest 4,388,515 - 4,388,515
Difference between expected
and actual experience 773,536 - 773,536
Contributions - employer - 1,887,964 (1,887,964)
Contributions - member - 256,538 (256,538)
Net investment income - 3,659,587 (3,659,587)
Benefit payments and refunds (1,493,180) (1,493,180) -
Administrative expenses - (87,779) 87,779
Net changes 4,763,742 4,223,130 540,612
Balances at 09/30/16 $ 60,267,923 $ 51,161,839 $ 9,106,084

*  The net pension liability reported in the prior year was based on actuarial projections. It has
been updated in the current year.

Discount Rate

A discount rate of 7.75% was used to measure the total pension liability. This discount rate was
based on the expected rate of return on plan investments of 7.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine this discount rate assumed member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption
(measur ement date 09/30/2016 — pr ojected — actual amountswill be available after fiscal year end)

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%)
Police Pension Net Pension Liability $ 21,603,677 $ 13,951,603 $ 7,682,598
Firefighters Pension Net Pension Liability $ 16,350,008 $ 9,106,084 $ 3,180,013
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resour ces
and Deferred Inflows of Resour ces Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense for the PPP and
FPP funds of $2,310,712 and $1,947,653, respectively. At September 30, 2016, the City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Palice Firefighter Total
Differences between expected
and actua experienceon liabilities  $ 52972 $ 129,566 $ 182,538
Changes of assumptions or other
inputs 798,764 - 798,764

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 3,039,814 3,555,909 6,595,723
Total $ 3,891,550 $ 3,685475 $ 7,577,025
Deferred Inflows Palice Firefighter Total
Differences between expected
and actual experienceon liabilities ~ $ 525,111 $ 159,784 $ 684,895
Total $ 525,111 $ 159,784 $ 684,895

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending
September 30, Police Firefighter Total
2017 $ 902,332 $ 821,551 $ 1,723,883
2018 902,332 821,551 1,723,883
2019 771,295 832,967 1,604,262
2020 790,480 1,049,622 1,840,102
2021 - - -
Thereafter - - -
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B. COMBINING STATEMENTSOF PENSION TRUST FUNDS:

City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Pension Trust Funds
September 30, 2016

Police Firefighter
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
Assets
Cash and Short-term Investments $ 2,182,507 $ 1583632 $ 3,766,139
Investments, at Fair Vaue
Fixed Income Mutual Funds 860,978 445,691 1,306,669
Equity Mutual Funds 6,726,212 7,282,681 14,008,893
Common Collective Trusts 31,437,331 33,438,219 64,875,550
Stocks 267,400 1,069,886 1,337,286
Corporate Bonds 884,420 2,959,287 3,843,707
Accrued Income 5,843 17,269 23,112
Total Investments 40,182,184 45,213,033 85,395,217
Total Assets 42,364,691 46,796,665 89,161,356
Net Position
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits $ 42364691 $ 46,796,665 $ 89,161,356
City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Changesin Fiduciary Net Position
Pension Trust Funds
Y ear Ended September 30, 2016
Police Firefighter
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
Additions
Contributions
Employer $ 1954353 $ 1563460 $ 3,517,813
State 293,834 406,405 700,239
Employee 278,480 288,592 567,072
Total Contributions 2,526,667 2,258,457 4,785,124
Investment Income
Net Increasein Fair Value of Investments 1,220,434 1,131,232 2,351,666
Interest and Dividends 351,168 403,393 754,561
1,571,602 1,534,625 3,106,227
Less Investment Expenses
Investment Management Fees 64,842 77,314 142,156
Custodian Fees 25,820 26,449 52,269
Net Investment Income 1,480,940 1,430,862 2,911,802
Total Additions 4,007,607 3,689,319 7,696,926
Deductions
Employee Benefits 3,798,339 3,733,065 7,531,404
Refunds of Contributions 1,833 - 1,833
Administrative Expense 87,796 87,390 175,186
Total Deductions 3,887,968 3,820,455 7,708,423
Change in Net Position 119,639 (131,136) (11,497)
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits — Beginning 42,245,052 46,927,801 89,172,853
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits- Ending $ 42,364,691 $ 46,796,665 $ 89,161,356
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C. GENERAL EMPLOYEE 401(a) PENSION PLAN:

The City maintains a single-employer, defined contribution pension plan for the General
Employees. This is a tax-qualified plan pursuant to Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code. This plan was established as of January 1, 1992 by adoption of the City Commission
through Ordinance No. 1987. The Plan Ordinance may be amended by the City Commission
after public notice has been made, and two public hearings are held. All full-time general
employees hired after January 1, 1992 are eligible for participation in the plan. All employees
hired before January 1, 1992 were brought into the plan. As of September 30, 2016, there were
355 employees enrolled in the 401(a) pension plan.

The plan, administered by an outside party, provides for employer contributions at 7%. Earnings
include W-2 earnings, plus any contributions made pursuant to a salary reduction agreement,
which are not includible in the gross income of the employee under Section 125 of the Internal
Revenue Service Code, Overtime and Bonuses. The employee is required to contribute 3% of
his/her earnings as defined above beginning October 1, 1992. The vesting schedule provides for
employees to be 100% vested after five years of service have been completed. If an employeeis
terminated prior to completing the 100% vesting period, the employer contributions are forfeited
by the employee and used to offset future employer contributions. The normal retirement age
has been designated by the employer as age 55. The plan permits withdrawals for retirement,
termination and disability. The plan does allow participants to borrow against their accounts.

Payroll for covered employees $ 18,717,018
Tota City payrall $ 30,437,618
Employer contributions required (net) and actually made $ 1,231,467
Employee contributions actually made — 3% of covered payrall $ 561,511

Contributions to the Plan may be amended by a resolution adopted by the City Commission.

18. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description

The Other Post-employment Benefit Plan (“OPEB Plan”) is a single-employer benefit plan
administered by the City. Retirees are charged whatever the insurance company charges for the
type of coverage elected. However, the premiums charged by the insurance company are based
on a blending of the experience among younger, active employees and older, retired employees.
Since the older retirees actually have higher costs, it means that the City is subsidizing the cost of
the retiree coverage because it pays all or a significant portion of that premium on behalf of the
active employees. GASB No. 45 calls this the “implicit rate subsidy.” Retirees and their
dependents are permitted to remain covered under the City’s respective medical and insurance
plans, as long as they pay a full premium applicable to coverage elected. This conforms to the
minimum required of Florida governmental employers per Ch. 112.08, F.S. The OPEB Plan
does not issue a stand-alone report.
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Funding Policy

For the OPEB Plan, contribution requirements of the City are established and may be amended
through action of the City’s Board of Supervisors. Currently, the City’s OPEB benefits are
unfunded. The required contributions are based on pay-as-you-go financing requirements.
There is no Trust Fund or equivalent arrangement into which the City would make contributions
to advance-fund the obligation. Each fund was assessed it share of OPEB costs based on the
number of covered employees in the fund divided by the tota number of covered City
employees. Therefore, ultimate subsidies, which are provided over time, are financed directly by
general assets of the City, which are invested in accordance with the investment policy
previously described. The interest rate used to calculate the present values and costs of OPEB
must be the long-range expected return on those investments. The City selected an interest rate
of 4% for this purpose.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution
of the employer (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters
of GASB No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period, not to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the City’s net obligation to the OPEB Plan:

FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014
Valuation Valuation Valuation
as of as of as of

10/01/14 10/01/14 10/01/12
Normal cost (service cost for one year) $ 531,260 $ 519,762 $ 555,179
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 388,215 352,779 318,549
Interest on normal cost and amortization 36,779 34,902 34,949
Annual required contribution (ARC) 956,254 907,443 908,677
Interest on net OPEB obligation 137,101 106,023 81,983
Adjustmentsto ARC (175,940) (136,058) (81,452)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 917,415 877,408 909,208
Employer contributions made (142,608) (100,460) (308,212)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 774,807 776,948 600,996
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 3,427,514 2,650,566 2,049,570
Net OPEB obligation end of year $ 4,202,321 $ 3427514 $ 2,650,566
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Calculations are based upon the types of benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB Plan at
the time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual expected
employer contribution toward OPEB cost, and the net OPEB obligation for 2016 and the
preceding years were as follows:

Employer Per centage of
Contributions Annual Unfunded
Fiscal Year Annual Toward OPEB Cost OPEB
Ending OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2016 $917,415 $142,608 15.5% $7,865,378
September 30, 2015 $877,408 $100,460 11.4% $7,147,419
September 30, 2014 $909,208 $308,212 33.9% $7,765,914

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of September 30, 2016, the OPEB Plan was unfunded. The actuarial accrued liability
(“AAL") for benefits was $7,865,378. Assets of the OPEB Plan are valued at market; however,
the current value is $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (“UAAL”) of
$7,865,378. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the OPEB
Plan) was $26,703,980. The ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 29.5%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, termination, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the OPEB Plan and the ARC are subject to
continued revision, as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the AAL.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In any long-term actuarial valuation, certain assumptions are made regarding the population, the
investment discount rates, and the benefits provided. The actuarial assumptions included
healthcare cost trend rates of 7.5%, decreased annually to an ultimate rate of 4.5% after six years.
The remaining amortization period at September 30, 2016 was 30 years. The Entry Age
actuarial cost method was used, with amortization of the UAAL as a level percent of expected
payroll (open over 30 years). This is the most common method used for government pension
valuations (and, likely, for OPEB valuations). The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuaria
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.
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A table summarizing the actuarial assumptions used is included below:

Actuarial Assumptions

Investment rate of return* 4.0%

Projected salary increases* 3.70% -
9.50%

Payroll growth assumptions 1.0%

Initial healthcare cost trend rate* 7.5%

Ultimate healthcare cost trend rate* 4.5%

* Includes inflation at 2.5%

19. Commitments and Contingencies
A. INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS:

The City has entered into various interlocal agreements with the City of Orlando and the City of
Altamonte Springs for sewage treatment capacity at facilities owned and operated by these
entities. Under the terms of the agreements the City has treatment capacity as follows (in gallons

per day):

Sour ce Capacity
Orlando McLeod 1,000,000
Orlando Iron Bridge | 4,962,000
Orlando Iron Bridge | 1,000,000
Altamonte Springs 413,524
Total Committed Capacity 7,375,524

The City does not have an equity interest in the assets or liabilities related to any of the facilities
listed above, nor does it participate in the daily operations. The City funds through its rates a
proportionate share of the operating costs of the facilities based upon a combination of
committed and used capacity.
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B. ENCUMBRANCESAND COMMITMENTS:

Encumbrance accounting is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration for the
Governmental Funds. The encumbrance balances at September 30, 2016 were as follows:

Encumbrances
General Fund $ 523,313
Community Redevel opment Fund 7,400
Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Designations Trust Fund 1,650
Stormwater Utility Fund 43,000
Capital Projects Fund 352,374
Stormwater Capital Projects Fund 557,130
Total Encumbrances $ 1,484,867

The most significant of these contracts and purchase orders are outlined in the table below:

Outstanding
Proj ect Funding Source Commitment
Microsoft License and Server Cost General Fund $137,805
Replacement of SCBA Fire Equipment Genera Fund $125,000
Construction of Ward Park Restrooms Capital Projects $187,583
Construction of Showalter Stadium Track Capital Projects $82,500
Lake Osceola Alum System Upgrade Stormwater $101,680
Capital Projects '
: Stormwater
Lake Mizell Alum System Upgrade Capital Projects $100,189
St. Andrews Trail Safe Routes to School Stormwater $302 383
Sidewalk Project - Design Services Capital Projects '

C. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City is insured for
workers compensation, general liability and automobile liability coverage under an All Lines
Aggregate Plan.
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Under the All Lines Aggregate Plan, the City retains risk on aggregate claims per clam year
basis as follows:

Amount of Risk
Type of Risk Retained by City
Property Liability $ 25,000
General Liability $ 50,000
Police Liability $ 50,000
Automobile Liability $ 50,000
Public Officials Liability $ 50,000
Workers' Compensation Liability $ 250,000
Crime Liability $ 50,000
Maximum Aggregate Claim Loss $ 1,000,000

Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported (IBNRs). Claims liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation,
recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic
and socia factors. These claims liabilities are included in accrued liabilities in the financial
statements. The estimated liability for unpaid clams was based on an actuarial valuation
prepared in 2014. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past year are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ending Ending
September 30, September 30,
2016 2015

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 993,000 $ 993,000
Incurred claims (including IBNRS) 680,838 793,634
Claim payments (680,838) (793,634)
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year $ 993,000 $ 993,000

Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past
five years. Premiums are paid into the General Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, by all
other funds and are available to pay the insurance premiums when due.

No significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year have been made. The City
does not participate in any risk pools.

D. LITIGATION:
The City is subject to various disputes, legal proceedings and labor relation claims which arise in
the normal course of its operations. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the amount

of ultimate liability with respect to these activities will not be material to the City's financial
condition.
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E. PENSIONINVESTMENT RISKS:

Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks.
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, and due to the recent
volatility that has affected the financial markets, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in
the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could
materially affect the City’ s future pension funding obligations.
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General Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Resour ces (inflows):
Taxes
Property Taxes
Utility Taxes
Franchise Fees
Fines and Forfeitures
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Sales Tax
Loca Option Gas Tax
Other Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Investment Earnings
Other
Transfers from Other Funds
Amounts available for appropriation

Chargesto appropriations (outflows):
General Administration
Communications
Financial Services
Planning
Building
Public Works
Police
Fire
Parks and Recresation
Cultural and Community Services
Non-Departmental Charges
Transfers to Other Funds

Total chargesto appropriations

Excess (Deficiency) of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations

Fund Balance Allocation

Deficiency of Resources Over
Chargesto Appropriations

Variancewith

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows

and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sour ces/inflows of resources

Actual amounts "available for appropriation” from

the budgetary comparison schedule.
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes.
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts "total charges to appropriations’

from the budgetary comparison schedule.
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers to other funds are outflows for budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes.
Tota expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures and changes in fund balances -
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Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 17,927,507 $ 17,927,507 $ 17,929,160 $ 1,653
6,680,726 6,680,726 6,582,206 (98,520)
1,181,603 1,181,603 1,267,143 85,540
937,797 937,797 1,242,855 305,058
2,437,975 2,437,975 3,121,261 683,286
4,525,403 4,525,403 4,470,609 (54,794)
925,363 925,363 1,009,683 84,320
1,695,171 1,715,171 1,801,489 86,318
5,796,308 5,796,308 5,938,788 142,480
317,000 317,000 281,693 (35,307)
202,000 202,000 219,109 17,109
5,081,185 5,081,185 4,998,227 (82,958)
47,708,038 47,728,038 48,862,223 1,134,185
1,756,671 1,756,671 1,531,507 225,164
179,390 185,855 151,830 34,025
337,467 337,467 314,696 22,771
552,252 694,401 676,015 18,386
1,212,538 1,212,538 1,234,567 (22,029)
6,229,002 6,448,398 6,401,761 46,637
13,385,918 13,388,511 12,820,778 567,733
11,814,541 11,828,181 12,075,338 (247,157)
7,171,614 7,191,614 7,527,019 (335,405)
1,422,472 1,422,472 1,423,872 (1,400)
255,000 255,000 - 255,000
4,904,457 6,942,216 6,987,093 (44,877)
49,221,322 51,663,324 51,144,476 518,848
(1,513,284) (3,935,286) (2,282,253) 1,653,033
1,513,284 3,935,286 - (3,935,286)
$ - - % (2,282,253) $ (2,282,253)

$ 48,862,223

(4,998,227)

$__ 4386309

$ 51,144,476

(6,987,093)

governmental funds. $ 44,157,383
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Community Redevelopment Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Resour ces (inflows):
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Investment Earnings
Other
Transfers from Other Funds
Amounts available for appropriation

Chargesto appropriations (outflows):
Planning and Development
Cultural and Community Services
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest and Other Charges
Capital Improvements
Transfers to Other Funds
Total chargesto appropriations

Excess (Deficiency) of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations

Fund Balance Allocation

Deficiency of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations

$

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
1,506,764 $ 1,506,764 $ 1,550,967 $ 44,203
225,000 225,000 157,335 (67,665)
30,000 30,000 42,467 12,467
30,000 30,000 28,701 (1,299)
1,390,428 1,390,428 1,435,305 44,877
3,182,192 3,182,192 3,214,775 32,583
1,100,220 1,294,052 933,508 360,544
63,000 63,000 49,929 13,071
1,085,000 1,085,000 1,085,000 -
409,053 409,053 409,053 -
1,327,183 1,283,662 67,704 1,215,958
3,993 1,003,993 1,003,993 -
3,988,449 5,138,760 3,549,187 1,589,573
(806,257) (1,956,568) (334,412) 1,622,156
806,257 1,956,568 - (1,956,568)
- $ - $ (334,412) $ (334,412)

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary I nflows and Outflows

and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sour ces/inflows of resources

Actua amounts "available for appropriation” from

the budgetary comparison schedule.
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources

but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes.
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts "total charges to appropriations’

from the budgetary comparison schedule.
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers to other funds are outflows for budgetary resources

but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes.
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.
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The City follows the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in
the financial statements:

a) In April of each year, the City Manager presents draft budget goals to the City
Commission for their consideration and revision if the Commission chooses.
These goals become part of the foundation for developing the proposed budget
and capital improvement plan.

b) At the first City Commission meeting in July, the City Manager presents a
recommended budget for the next succeeding fiscal year to the City Commission.
The recommended budget includes proposed expenditures and the sources of
receipts to finance them as well as a capital improvement plan.

¢) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayers comments.

d) The budget is approved by the Commission and becomes the basis for the millage
levied by the Commission.

e) The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items
within a fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund
must be approved by the City Commission. Expenditures may not exceed legal
appropriations at the fund level. All appropriations lapse at year-end. For the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, Building, Fire Department and Parks and
Recreation Department had budget overages due to the following reasons:

1) Building — costs of merchant fees paid to credit card companies and payroll
exceeded budget estimate. Both were directly caused by increased
construction activity and more than offset by related permit fee revenues.

2) Fire—costs of payroll exceeded the budget estimate.

3) Parks and Recreation — spending on tree care caused the budget to be
exceeded.

f) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year for the General Fund and certain Specia Revenue Funds. Formal
budgetary integration is not employed for the Designations Trust Fund,
Affordable Housing Fund, Law Enforcement Trust Fund, Parks Impact Fees
Fund, Help Our Park Expand Fund, Police and Firefighter Premium Tax Trust
Fund, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Stormwater Capital Projects
Fund.

g) The budgets for the Genera Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds
(Stormwater Utility Fund, Grant Fund and Cemetery Trust Fund) are legaly
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles with
the exception that budgetary basis expenditures include purchase orders
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(encumbrances) issued for goods or services not received at year-end.

h) Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended, in accordance with
City ordinance. The General Fund budget for the current year was increased by
$2,442,002 subsequent to its original adoption.

i) General administration includes divisions that are under the City Manager and do
not have their own departmental director.

J) The Budgetary Comparison Schedules shown in the accompanying supplemental
information present comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with
actual results. The originaly adopted budget is presented for purposes of
comparison to the final, amended budget. The original budget includes the
adjustments necessary to bring forward the carry forward appropriation (for
unexpended projects and encumbrances) as authorized in the annual budget
ordinance. The nonmajor Speciad Revenue Fund budget comparisons are
presented in the Combining Statements section.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Required Supplementary Information

Pension Trust Funds

Schedule of City Contributions

Last 10 Fiscal Years

Police Pension Plan
Actuarially
Determined Contributions Contribution Contributions as a
Year Ended Contribution in relation to Deficiency Covered % of Covered
9/30 (ADC) the ADC (Excess) Payroll Payroll
2007 $1,270,195 $1,244,452 $25,743 $5,082,000 24.49%
2008 1,116,967 1,116,967 - 5,152,000 21.68%
2009 1,178,954 1,178,954 - 5,166,000 22.82%
2010 1,448,115 1,448,115 - 5,254,000 27.56%
2011 1,570,089 1,730,694 (160,605) 4,703,000 36.80%
2012 1,701,669 1,837,683 (136,014) 4,261,000 43.13%
2013 2,155,966 2,155,966 - 4,052,000 53.21%
2014 2,261,252 2,261,252 - 5,209,000 43.41%
2015 2,355,980 2,355,980 - 5,306,000 44.40%
2016 2,248,187 2,248,187 - 4,286,000 52.45%
Fire Pension Plan
Actuarially
Determined Contributions Contribution Contributions as a
Year Ended Contribution in relation to Deficiency Covered % of Covered

9/30 (ADC) the ADC (Excess) Payroll Payroll
2007 $1,354,977 $1,354,977 $- $4,941,000 27.42%
2008 1,324,691 1,324,691 - 5,323,000 24.89%
2009 1,529,032 1,529,032 - 5,085,000 30.07%
2010 1,537,037 1,537,037 - 4,838,000 31.77%
2011 1,701,327 1,851,293 (149,966) 4,556,000 40.64%
2012 1,742,515 1,853,995 (111,480) 4,148,000 44.69%
2013 2,038,955 2,038,955 - 4,289,000 47.54%
2014 2,029,490 2,029,490 - 5,553,000 36.55%
2015 1,956,076 1,956,076 - 5,490,000 35.63%
2016 1,887,964 1,887,964 - 4,275,000 44.16%

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Pension Trust Funds

Schedule of Changesin Net Pension
Liability and Related Ratios
Police Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2016 * 2015%* 2014
A. Tota Pension Liability:
Service Cost $ 846,677 $ 801,632 $ 762,017
Interest 4,318,067 4,168,995 4,089,843
Benefit Changes - - -
Difference Between Actual and Expected Experience 471,628 (663,298) 93,720
Assumption Changes - - 1,413,198
Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Member
Contributions (3,626,370) (3,449,577) (2,963,743)
Net Changein Total Pension Liability (TPL) 2,010,002 857,752 3,395,035
TPL beginning of year 56,211,878 55,354,126 51,959,091
TPL end of year $ 58,221,880 $ 56,211,878 $ 55,354,126
B. PlanFiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - City and State $ 2,248,187 $ 2,355,980 $ 2,261,252
Contributions - Member 257,162 258,906 240,151
Net Investment Income 3,227,848 (1,108,385) 4,077,752
Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Member
Contributions (3,626,370) (3,449,577) (2,963,743)
Administrative Expenses (93,432 (93,432) (67,201)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,013,395 (2,036,508) 3,548,211
Plan Fiduciary Net Position beginning of year 42,256,882 44,293,390 40,745,179
Plan Fiduciary Net Position end of year $ 44,270,277 % 42,256,882 $ 44,293,390
C. Net Pension Liability (NPL) end of year (A-B) 13,951,603 13,954,996 11,060,736
D. PlanFiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of TPL (B/A) 76.04% 75.17% 80.02%
E. Covered Employee Payroll $ 4,286,032 $ 4315097 $ 3,999,782
F. NPL asaPercentage of Covered Employee Payroll (C/E) 325.51% 323.40% 276.53%
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Pension Trust Funds

Schedule of Changesin Net Pension
Liability and Related Ratios
Police Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

(Continued)
2016 * 2015** 2014
G. Notesto Schedule:
Valuation Date 10/01/2015 10/01/2014 10/01/2013

Update procedures used to roll forward the TPL excluding DROP account balances to the measurement dates — actual
DROP account balances as of measurement datesincluded in TPL.

During 2014, assumption change to investment rate of return (from 8.25% to 7.75%) — no benefit changes. No assumption
or benefit changes during 2015 or 2016.

* Projected - actual amounts will be available after fiscal year end
** The amounts reported in the prior year were based on actuarial projections. These amounts were updated in the current

year.

Note: Scheduleisintended to show information for 10 years. Additional yearswill be displayed as the information
becomes available.

See Notesto Required Supplementary I nformation.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Pension Trust Funds

Schedule of Changesin Net Pension
Liability and Related Ratios
Firefighter Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2016 * 2015%* 2014
A. Tota Pension Liability:
Service Cost $ 1,004,871 $ 1,038,799 $ 1,034,774
Interest 4,388,515 4,027,050 3,762,630
Benefit Changes - - -
Difference Between Actual and Expected Experience 773,536 166,585 (273,916)
Assumption Changes - - -
Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Member
Contributions (1,493,180) (1,559,126) (1,452,381)
Net Changein Total Pension Liability (TPL) 4,763,742 3,673,308 3,071,107
TPL beginning of year 55,504,181 51,830,873 48,759,766
TPL end of year $ 60,267,923 $ 55,504,181 $ 51,830,873
B. PlanFiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - City and State $ 1,887,964 $ 2,020,802 $ 2,029,490
Contributions - Member 256,538 305,022 353,350
Net Investment Income 3,659,587 (1,433,057) 4,278,932
Benefit Payments, including Refunds of Member
Contributions (1,493,180) (1,559,126) (1,452,381)
Administrative Expenses (87,779) (87,779) (73,301)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 4,223,130 (754,138) 5,136,090
Plan Fiduciary Net Position beginning of year 46,938,709 47,692,847 42,556,757
Plan Fiduciary Net Position end of year $ 51,161,839 $ 46,938,709 $ 47,692,847
C. Net Pension Liability (NPL) end of year (A-B) 9,106,084 8,565,472 4,138,026
D. PlanFiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of TPL (B/A) 84.89% 84.57% 92.02%
E. Covered Employee Payroll $ 4275632 $ 4351071 $ 4,130,864
F. NPL asaPercentage of Covered Employee Payroll (C/E) 212.98% 196.86% 100.17%
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Pension Trust Funds

Schedule of Changesin Net Pension
Liability and Related Ratios
Firefighter Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

(Continued)
2016 * 2015** 2014
G. Notesto Schedule:
Valuation Date 10/01/2015 10/01/2014 10/01/2013

Update procedures used to roll forward the TPL excluding DROP account balances and reserve for excess State funds to
the measurement dates — actual DROP account balances and reserve for excess State funds as of measurement dates
included in TPL.

No assumption or benefit changes during 2014, 2015 or 2016.
* Projected - actual amounts will be available after fiscal year end

** The amounts reported in the prior year were based on actuarial projections. These amounts were updated in the
current year.

Note: Schedule isintended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as the information
becomes available.

See Notesto Required Supplementary I nfor mation.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Pension Trust Funds

Schedule of I nvestment Returns

Annual Money Weighted Rate of Return
Year Ended Police Pension Fire Pension
9/30 Fund Fund
2009 0.0% 0.3%
2010 9.2% 9.1%
2011 (0.6%) (1.1%)
2012 17.2% 16.5%
2013 12.9% 12.7%
2014 10.3% 10.2%
2015 (2.7%) (2.9%)
2016 9.8% 9.4%

Note: Scheduleisintended to show information for 10 years. Additional
years will be displayed as the information becomes available.

See Notesto Required Supplementary Infor mation.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Required Supplementary Information
Notes to Pension Schedules — September 30, 2016

@ All recommended trend information has been calculated using the Entry Age Actuaria Cost
Method.

2 For information regarding contribution percentage rates, assumptions, amortization method, etc.
(See Note 17A).

3 As of the 10/01/95 actuarial valuation date, the following benefit accrual rate change was made to
the police and firefighter pension funds:

Current Previous
Benefit Accrual Rate 3.0% per year of servicefor all 2.5% per year of service for non-
employees exempt employees

3.0% per year of service for exempt
employees

(@] A 3% annual cost of living adjustment on benefit payments for participants in the police and fire
pension plans who terminate employment on or after October 1, 2002 was added effective
October 1, 2002.

5 Effective March 1, 2013, the following benefit changes were made:

(a) Refunds of participant contributions to non-vested terminated participants no longer include
interest. These refunds previously included interest at the rate of 5% on an annual basis.

(b) Vested participants who terminate employment with the City prior to attaining eligibility for
early or normal retirement, are not eligible to begin receiving benefit payments until they reach
55 years of age.

(c) The 3% annual cost of living adjustment on benefit payments is limited to participants who
retire on or after early or normal retirement date (including DROPs).
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Required Supplementary I nformation
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL as
Accrued a
Y ear Actuarial Liability Unfunded Per centage
Ended Value of (AAL) Entry AAL Funded Covered of Covered
9/30 Assets Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroall
2010 $0 $1,595,582 $1,595,582 0.0% $25,208,613 6.33%
2011 0 6,510,991 6,510,991 0.0% 26,691,335 24.4%
2012 0 7,188,159 7,188,159 0.0% 27,910,706 25.8%
2013 0 7,763,903 7,763,903 0.0% 26,842,887 28.9%
2014 0 8,336,252 8,336,252 0.0% 27,860,769 29.9%
2015 0 7,147,419 7,147,419 0.0% 25,864,249 27.6%
2016 0 7,865,378 7,865,378 0.0% 26,703,980 29.5%
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONSFROM THE EMPLOYER
Per centage
of Annual
Year Annual Required
Ended Required Amount Contribution Net OPEB
9/30 Contribution Contributed Contributed Obligation
2010 $269,616 $164,850 61.1% $205,292
2011 845,041 273,204 32.3% 777,183
2012 900,407 213,282 23.7% 1,464,509
2013 869,324 284,642 32.7% 2,049,570
2014 908,677 308,212 33.9% 2,650,566
2015 907,443 100,460 11.1% 3,427,514
2016 956,254 142,608 14.9% 4,202,321

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as
part of the actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2014.

Note: Schedule isintended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed
as the information becomes available.

See Notesto Required Supplementary Information
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Specia revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes.

Designations Trust Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of
donor specified contributions and to account for City funds set aside for
designated future purposes.

Stormwater Utility Fund - To account for the Stormwater Utility Fee
revenues and the related expenditures for stormwater runoff management.

Affordable Housing Fund - To account for the Affordable Housing Fee and
the related expenditures for affordable housing in Winter Park.

Law Enforcement Trust Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures
to be used for law enforcement in accordance with Chapter 943.25 of the
Florida Statutes.

Grant Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures of various law
enforcement grants.

Parks Impact Fees Fund — To account for impact fees collected on new
residential units in the City and related expenditures for acquiring new park
land and recreation facilities on newly acquired park land.

Help Our Park Expand Fund — To account for private contributions and
General Fund transfers for the purposes of acquiring the development rights
to property adjacent to Central Park possibly culminating in the expansion of
Central Park.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(continued)

Police and Firefighter Premium Tax Trust Fund - To account for excise
taxes imposed on homeowners insurance premiums collected by the State
of Florida Department of Revenue and remitted to the City. These tax
revenues are to be used as retirement contributions to Police and Firefighter
Pension plans.

Cemetery Trust Fund - To account for the operations of the City's
cemeteries including the sale and maintenance of lots.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds.

Capital Projects Fund — To account for the Capital Project revenues and
the related expenditures for capital projects.

Stormwater Capital Projects Fund — To account for the Stormwater

Capital Project revenues and the related expenditures for Stormwater
proj ects.
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ASSETS

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
Accounts Receivable - Net

Unbilled Service Charges

Accrued Interest Receivable

Due from Other Governments
Inventories

Note Receivable

Special Assessments Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resour ces:
Unavailable Revenue on Long-Term Receivables

Fund Balances:
Non Spendable
Inventories

Spendable
Restricted
Public Safety
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks
Community Enhancement Items

Committed
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks
Construction Projects

Assigned
Public Safety
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks
Special Assessments

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances ~ $
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2016

Special Revenue Funds

Law Parks
Designations Stormwater Affordable Enfor cement Impact
Trust Utility Housing Trust Grant Fees
$ 1,048,467 $ -3 406,175 $ 443,289 35626 $ 676,072
1,320 217,994 - - - -
- 210,955 - - - -
2,605 6,325 1,005 1,096 - 1,672
21,289 19,759 - - 183,093 -
- 38,080 - - - -
- - 17,400 - - -
54,280 - - - - -
$ 1,127,961 $ 493113 $ 424580 $ 444,385 218,719 $ 677,744
$ 16,750 $ 51,963 $ - $ 29,929 79,440 $ -
- 27,198 - - 1,223 -
- 114,216 - - - -
16,750 193,377 - 29,929 80,663 -
9,527 - - - - -
- 38,080 - - - -
74,000 - - 414,456 138,056 -
226,912 - - - - 677,744
656 - 424,580 - - -
481,937 - - - - -
- 261,656 - - - -
42,987 - - - - -
275,192 - - - - -
1,101,684 299,736 424,580 414,456 138,056 677,744
1,127,961 $ 493113 $ 424,580 $ 444,385 218719 $ 677,744
106



Special Revenue Funds (cont.) Capital Projects Funds Total
Nonmaj or
Cemetery Debt Capital Stormwater Governmental
Trust Total Service Projects Capital Projects Total Funds
$ 1,946,200 4555829 $ 430,133 $ 1,824,449 $ 2594831 $ 4,419,280 $ 9,405,242
- 219,314 1,339 669,588 55,657 725,245 945,898
- 210,955 - - - - 210,955
4,814 17,517 1,068 5,503 - 5,503 24,088
- 224,141 - 493,663 - 493,663 717,804
- 38,080 - - - - 38,080
- 17,400 - - - - 17,400
- 54,280 1,476,863 - - - 1,531,143
$ 1,951,014 5337516 $ 1909403 $ 2993203 $ 2,650,488 $ 5643691 $ 12,890,610
$ - 178,082 $ - $ 670,436 $ 7851 $ 678,287 $ 856,369
- 28,421 - - - - 28,421
- 114,216 - - - - 114,216
- 320,719 - 670,436 7,851 678,287 999,006
- 9,527 1,310,416 - - - 1,319,943
- 38,080 - - - - 38,080
- 626,512 - - - - 626,512
- 904,656 - - - - 904,656
- 425,236 - - - - 425,236
1,951,014 2,432,951 - - - - 2,432,951
- 261,656 - 2,322,767 2,642,637 4,965,404 5,227,060
- 42,987 - - - - 42,987
- 275,192 - - - - 275,192
- - 598,987 - - - 598,987
1,951,014 5,007,270 598,987 2,322,767 2,642,637 4,965,404 10,571,661
$ 1951014 5337516 $ 1909403 $  2,993203 $ 2,650,488 $ 5643691 $ 12,890,610
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Special Revenue Funds

Law Parks
Designations Stor mwater Affordable Enforcement Impact
Trust Utility Housing Trust Grant Fees
Revenues
Property Taxes $ - $ - % - $ - $ -3 -
Fines and Forfeitures 135,923 - - 116,962 - -
Intergovernmental 33,874 58,352 - - 1,106,589 -
Charges for Services 68,347 2,457,548 - - - -
Investment Earnings 15,624 35,968 5,843 7,329 3,205 9,719
Other 404,297 - 17,400 - - 28,000
Total Revenues 658,065 2,551,868 23,243 124,291 1,109,794 37,719
Expenditures
Current:
General Administration 2,021 - - - - -
Planning 76,436 - - - - -
Public Works:
Stormwater Management - 304,463 - - - -
Lakes - 1,150,805 - - - -
Street Drainage and Maintenance - 767,938 - - - -
Street Sweeping - 328,527 - - - -
Police 48,464 - - 242,272 1,076,511 -
Fire 35,000 - - - - -
Parks and Recreation 361,924 - - - - -
Cultural and Community Services 292,000 - - - - -
Debt Service:
Principal - - - - - -
Interest and Other Charges - - - - - -
Capita Improvements - - - - - -
Total Expenditures 815,845 2,551,733 - 242,272 1,076,511 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (157,780) 135 23,243 (117,981) 33,283 37,719
Other Financing Sour ces and (Uses)
Transfers from Other Funds 335,683 - - - - -
Transfers to Other Funds (75,000) - - (77,730) - -
Total Other Financing Sour ces and (Uses) 260,683 - - (77,730 - -
Net Changein Fund Balances 102,903 135 23,243 (195,711) 33,283 37,719
Fund Balances - Beginning 998,781 299,601 401,337 610,167 104,773 640,025
Fund Balances - Ending $ 1,101,684 $ 299,736 $ 424,580 $ 414,456 $ 138,056 $ 677,744
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Special Revenue Funds (continued) Capital Projects Funds Total
Help Our Police and Stor mwater Nonmajor
Park Firefighter Cemetery Debt Capital Capital Gover nmental
Expand Premium Tax Trust Trust Total Service Projects Projects Total Funds

- - % - % - $ 1,201,145 $ - $ - % - $ 1,201,145

- - - 252,885 - - - - 252,885

- 700,239 - 1,899,054 - 140,893 125,580 266,473 2,165,527

- - - 2,525,895 - - 726,533 726,533 3,252,428

544 - 28,077 106,309 (283) 517 - 517 106,543

- - 282,223 731,920 163,170 1,022,693 - 1,022,693 1,917,783

544 700,239 310,300 5,516,063 1,364,032 1,164,103 852,113 2,016,216 8,896,311

- - - 2,021 - - - - 2,021

- - - 76,436 - - - - 76,436

- - - 304,463 - - - - 304,463

- - - 1,150,805 - - - - 1,150,805

- - - 767,938 - - - - 767,938

- - - 328,527 - - - - 328,527

- 293,834 - 1,661,081 - - - - 1,661,081

- 406,405 - 441,405 - - - - 441,405

25,000 - - 386,924 - - - - 386,924

- - - 292,000 - - - - 292,000

- - - - 2,069,388 - - - 2,069,388

- - - - 246,330 - - - 246,330

- - - - - 8,053,418 459,752 8,513,170 8,513,170

25,000 700,239 - 5,411,600 2,315,718 8,053,418 459,752 8,513,170 16,240,488
(24,456) - 310,300 104,463 (951,686) (6,889,315) 392,361 (6,496,954) (7,344,177)
- - - 335,683 911,009 6,021,060 - 6,021,060 7,267,752
(42,247) - (293,572) (488,549) - - (18,523) (18,523) (507,072)
(42,247) - (293,572 (152,866) 911,009 6,021,060 (18,523) 6,002,537 6,760,680
(66,703) - 16,728 (48,403) (40,677) (868,255) 373,838 (494,417) (583,497)
66,703 - 1,934,286 5,055,673 639,664 3,191,022 2,268,799 5,459,821 11,155,158

- - $ 1951014 $ 5,007,270 $ 598,987 $ 2,322,767 $ 2,642,637 $ 4,965,404 $ 10,571,661
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Stormwater Utility Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Resour ces (inflows):
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Investment Earnings
Amounts available for appropriation

Chargesto appropriations (outflows):
Public Works:
Stormwater Management
Lakes
Street Drainage and Maintenance
Street Sweeping
Total chargesto appropriations

Excess (Deficiency) of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations

Fund Balance Allocation

Excess of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations
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Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 12500 $ 12,500 58,352 45,852
2,479,127 2,479,127 2,457,548 (21,579)
45,000 45,000 35,968 (9,032
2,536,627 2,536,627 2,551,868 15,241
303,484 303,484 304,463 (979)
1,147,398 1,171,716 1,150,805 20,911
772,981 772,981 767,938 5,043
312,764 312,764 328,527 (15,763)
2,536,627 2,560,945 2,551,733 9,212

- (24,318) 135 24,453
- 24,318 - (24,318)

$ - $ - 135 135
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Grant Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Resour ces (inflows):
Intergovernmental
Investment Earnings
Amounts available for appropriation

Chargesto appropriations (outflows):
Police
Total chargesto appropriations

Excess (Deficiency) of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations

Fund Balance Allocation

Excess of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations
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Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 964,044 $ 964,044 $ 1,106,589 $ 142,545
- - 3,205 3,205

964,044 964,044 1,109,794 145,750

964,044 964,769 1,076,511 (111,742)

964,044 964,769 1,076,511 (111,742

- (725) 33,283 34,008

- 725 - (725)

$ - $ - $ 33283 $ 33,283
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Cemetery Trust Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Resour ces (inflows):
Investment Earnings
Other
Amounts available for appropriation

Chargesto appropriations (outflows):
Transfers to Other Funds
Total chargesto appropriations

Excess (Deficiency) of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations

Fund Balance Allocation

Excess of Resour ces Over
Chargesto Appropriations

Variance with

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows

and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sour ces/inflows of resources

Actua amounts "available for appropriation” from

the budgetary comparison schedule.
Differences - budget to GAAP:
None

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actua amounts "total charges to appropriations’

from the budgetary comparison schedule.
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers to other funds are outflows for budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes.
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.
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Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 40,000 40,000 $ 28,077 $ (11,923)
324,000 324,000 282,223 (41,777)
364,000 364,000 310,300 (53,700)
294,147 294,147 293,572 575
294,147 294,147 293,572 575
69,853 69,853 16,728 (53,125)
(69,853) (69,853) - 69,853
$ - - % 16,728 $ 16,728
$ 310,300
$ 310,300
$ 293,572
(293,572
$ -
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department to other departments of the government
on acost reimbursement basis.

Fleet Maintenance Fund — To account for the operations of the Fleet
Maintenance Department that provides fleet management and maintenance
services for the vehicles and equipment owned by the City.

Vehicle Replacement Fund - To account for the acquisition and control of
the City's motor vehicles.

Employee Insurance Fund - To account for the accumulation of funds to
pay health insurance premiums when due.

General Insurance Fund - To account for the accumulation of funds to pay
Insurance premiums when due.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds
September 30, 2016

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
Accounts Receivable - Net
Accrued Interest Receivable
Inventories
Total current assets

Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:
Depreciable - Net
Other Assets:
Deposits
Total non-current assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position
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Governmental Activities
Internal Service Funds

Total

Internal

Fleet Vehicle Employee General Service

Maintenance Replacement Insurance Insurance Funds
$ - - $ 3454753 % 807,920 4,262,673
- 18,465 4,169 - 22,634
- 3 8,549 1,999 10,551
170,386 - - - 170,386
170,386 18,468 3,467,471 809,919 4,466,244
786 7,818,286 - 5,492 7,824,564
- - 202,583 - 202,583
786 7,818,286 202,583 5,492 8,027,147
171,172 7,836,754 3,670,054 815,411 12,493,391
68,171 27,200 106,571 5,751 207,693
14,412 618 606,000 995,764 1,616,794
17,622 21,708 - - 39,330
20,397 - - 4,560 24,957
64,953 - - 2,595 67,548
185,555 49,526 712,571 1,008,670 1,956,322
786 7,818,286 - 5,492 7,824,564
(15,169) (31,058) 2,957,483 (198,751) 2,712,505
$ (14,383) $ 7,787,228 $ 2,957,483 $ (193,259) $ 10,537,069
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Fund Net Position
Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Operations
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income
Nonoper ating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Earnings (L osses)
Gain on Disposal of Assets
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Nonoper ating Revenues (Expenses)
Changein Net Position
Total Net Position - Beginning

Total Net Position - Ending
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$

$

Governmental Activities

Internal Service Funds Total

Internal

Fleet Vehicle Employee General Service

Maintenance Replacement Insurance I nsurance Funds
1474572 $ 1,855,299 $ 7,793460 $ 2,307,448 $ 13,430,779
1,474,572 1,855,299 7,793,460 2,307,448 13,430,779
1,390,109 - 6,288,281 2,150,861 9,829,251
655 1,238,323 - 1,261 1,240,239
1,390,764 1,238,323 6,288,281 2,152,122 11,069,490
83,808 616,976 1,505,179 155,326 2,361,289
(1,751) (7,176) 50,441 5,617 47,131
- 223,314 - - 223,314
- 1,749 2,874 - 4,623
(1,751) 217,887 53,315 5,617 275,068
82,057 834,863 1,558,494 160,943 2,636,357
(96,440) 6,952,365 1,398,989 (354,202) 7,900,712
(14,383 $ 7,787,228 $ 2,957,483 $ (193,259 $ 10,537,069
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Cash Flowsfrom Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided
Loans from Other Funds
Repayment of Loans to Other Funds
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Payments for Interfund Services Used
Claims Paid
Other Receipts

Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Purchases of Capital Assets
Net Cash Used in Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment Earnings (L 0sses)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash, Cash Equivalents and I nvestments - Beginning

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Inventories
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Governments
Accumulated Unused Compensated
Absences
Other Receipts
Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities

Note: There were no significant non-cash transactions.
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Total

Internal

Fleet Vehicle Employee General Service

M aintenance Replacement Insurance Insurance Funds
$ 35,073 - % - $ - 8 35,073
1,474,572 1,860,593 7,832,706 2,307,448 13,475,319
- 21,708 - - 21,708
(107,779) - - - (107,779)
(606,188) - (6,224,637) (45,003) (6,875,828)
(636,969) - - (125,770) (762,739)
(156,958) - - (17,182) (174,140)
- - - (1,995,228) (1,995,228)
- 1,749 2,874 - 4,623
1,751 1,884,050 1,610,943 124,265 3,621,009
- 284,440 - - 284,440
- (3,138,220) - - (3,138,220)
- (2,853,780) - - (2,853,780)
(1,751) (4,647) 48,074 5,765 47,441
(1,751) (4,647) 48,074 5,765 47,441
- (974,377) 1,659,017 130,030 814,670
- 974,377 1,795,736 677,890 3,448,003
$ - - $ 3,454,753 $ 807,920 $ 4,262,673
$ 83,808 616,976 $ 1505179 $ 155326 $ 2,361,289
655 1,238,323 - 1,261 1,240,239
35,073 5,294 39,246 - 79,613
(12,922) - - - (12,922)
21,462 - 63,644 (17,471) 67,635
(23,756) - - (2,308) (26,064)
(107,779) 21,708 - - (86,071)
- - - (5,340) (5,340)
5,210 - - (7,203) (1,993)
- 1,749 2,874 - 4,623
$ 1,751 1,884,050 $ 1610943 $ 124,265 $ 3,621,009
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

Statistical tables differ from financial statements because they usualy
cover more than one fiscal year and may present nonaccounting data,
financial trends and the fiscal capacity of the governments.

There are no limitations placed upon the amount of debt the City of

Winter Park may issue by either the City's Code of Ordinances or by
Florida Statutes.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financia
statements, not disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s
overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand

how the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over
time.

Table 1 — Net Position by COmMPONENt..........cccovveieeieesieseeie e 119

Table 2 — Changesin Net POSITION........cccoiiiiiiierenesee e 120

Table 3 — Fund Balances, Governmental FUNS...........ccccovvveveeveeceseese e 122

Table 4 — Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds..............c.cccoceeeveee 123
Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the City’ s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Table 5 — Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property................ 124
Table 6 — Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates.........cccccevveeeneerecceerenne 125
Table 7 —Principal Property TaX PayerS........ccoccoieeiiiienenie e 126
Table 8 — Property Tax Leviesand ColleCtions...........ccccoveeeveeneeseseeseeseeseenn 127

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s
ability to issue additional debt in the future

Table9 —Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type......ccoooeiirvinineeeee 128
Table 10 — Ratios of General Obligation Bonds Outstanding ............ccccveevereeene. 129
Table 11 — Direct and Overlapping Governmental ActivitiesDebt .................... 130
Table 12 — Lega Debt Margin INnformation............ccccevveeeneeneeiesceeseesie e 131
Table 13 — Tax Increment Revenue Bonds Coverage .........ocvveveeeeseesieeeeseenns 132
Table 14 — Water and Sewer Revenue Debt Coverage..........coovvevenenencnenenne 133
Table 15 — Electric Services Revenue Debt Coverage .......ccovvvvvevvecieveesieennnnn. 134
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Contents (continued) Page

Demographic and Economic I nformation

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the City’s financial
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with
other governments.

Table 16 — Demographic and ECONOMIC StatiStiCS.......cccvveeeveereeieseeneeee s 135
Table 17 — Principal EMPIOYErS........coiiieiiiereeseee e 136
Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the City’s financial
information relates to the services the City provides and the activities it

performs.

Table 18 — Full-time Authorized City Government Employees by Function......137

Table 19 — Operating Indicators by Function/Program ...........ccceceeceeceeneecensenenn 138
Table 20 — Supplemental Information for Water and Sewer - Customers........... 139
Table 21 — Supplemental Information for Water and Sewer - Usage.................. 140
Table 22 — Water & Sewer Rates, Feesand Charges ........coccvveeveeieneenieenienenne 141
Table 23 — Supplemental Information for Electric — Customers and Usage........ 143
Table 24 — Residential Electric Service Rates, Fees and Charges............c.......... 144
Table 25 — General Service Electric Rates, Feesand Charges.........ccccccoeveienee. 145
Table 26 — Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program ..........cccccceeeeevvveiieenee 146

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government activities net position

@ As restated.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Tablel
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basisof accounting)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 @ 2015 2016
38,664,090 41,212,111 $ 39,073313 $ 42,543,338 44,104,358 $ 50,151,230 $ 53,481,088 55,213,639 57,725,822 67,758,859
7,106,502 970,414 1,151,993 1,419,405 4,064,284 4,379,320 3,973,362 4,541,982 4,052,195 3,713,163
5,208,858 12,027,786 16,208,314 18,224,924 18,460,698 14,637,700 14,579,692 701,636 5,372,188 (1,620,415)
50,979,450 54,210,311 $ 56,433,620 $ 62,187,667 66,629,340 $ 69,168,250 $ 72,034,142 60,457,257 67,150,205 69,851,607
43,160,902 45,934,339 $ 43191242 $ 37,331,556 41,405,685 $ 41715121 $ 48,314,979 52,701,567 57,759,700 62,131,622
7,109,628 6,109,315 5,581,678 7,436,321 6,059,347 6,427,550 4,539,237 7,295,121 8,227,365 8,402,745
6,248,968 (1,338,456) 2,810,470 11,143,615 17,948,942 23,527,604 23,151,265 26,167,087 26,291,628 29,756,638
56,519,498 50,705,198 $ 51,583,390 $ 55,911,492 65413974 $ 71,670,275 $ 76,005,481 86,163,775 92,278,693 100,291,005
81,824,992 87,146,450 $ 82,264,555 $ 79,874,894 85,510,043 $ 91,866,351 $ 101,796,067 107,915,206 115,485,522 129,890,481
14,216,130 7,079,729 6,733,671 8,855,726 10,123,631 10,806,870 8,512,599 11,837,103 12,279,560 12,115,908
11,457,826 10,689,330 19,018,784 29,368,539 36,409,640 38,165,304 37,730,957 26,868,723 31,663,816 28,136,223
107,498,948 104915509 $ 108,017,010 $ 118,099,159 132,043314 $ 140,838,525 $ 148,039,623 146,621,032 159,428,898 170,142,612
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Expenses
Governmental activities:
General Government
Communications
Financia Services
Planning
Building and Code Enforcement
Community Redevelopment Agency
Public Works
Police
Fire
Parks and Recreation
Cultural and Community Services
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Total governmental activities expenses
Business-type activities:
Water and Sewer
Electric Services
Golf Course
Total business-type activities expenses
Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues

Governmental activities:
Chargesfor services:
General Government
Financial Services
Planning
Building
Community Redevelopment Agency
Public Works
Police
Fire
Parks and Recreation
Operating Grantsand Contributions
Capital Grantsand Contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues

@ Asrestated.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table2
Changesin Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basisof accounting)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 © 2015 2016
1,804,748 $ 1,468,585 $ 1,363,363 $ 1514171 $ 1732952 $ 1435102 $ 1,577,803 $ 1,544,488 $ 1472552 $ 1,543,467
239,148 103,384 237,495 172,619 182,525 221,754 167,827 169,636 224,445 202,072
500,859 410,607 390,067 408,181 415,070 443,962 419,939 428,669 340,604 310,721
1,519,057 1,459,383 832,999 692,737 418,942 624,632 408,618 439,168 717,671 766,226
1,529,473 1,571,357 1,384,537 1,245,028 1,290,115 1,288,129 1,010,237 1,101,614 1,143,945 1,226,086
2,138,429 929,999 1,589,300 1,377,840 1,176,585 896,561 789,666 841,240 863,140 994,743
13,344,477 11,637,771 11,712,138 10,990,729 10,726,522 10,660,808 10,531,465 10,700,127 10,822,523 10,387,523
12,227,960 11,980,137 12,373,419 12,148,312 12,399,481 12,786,524 13,648,230 14,185,031 13,244,698 16,117,463
9,565,096 9,612,269 9,854,608 9,975,455 10,161,440 10,179,839 11,071,383 9,227,090 11,456,335 13,803,911
11,421,005 7,820,779 6,951,474 6,561,709 6,534,841 7,082,497 7,986,724 8,499,745 8,450,715 8,665,307
1,394,350 1,372,698 1,428,712 1,386,212 1,411,212 1,550,212 1,536,560 1,534,560 1,651,580 1,715,872
1,267,739 1,259,425 1,295,694 1,138,234 1,489,669 1,244,371 1,115,909 808,838 717,353 624,338
56,952,341 49,626,394 49,413,806 47,611,227 47,939,354 48,414,391 50,264,361 49,480,206 51,105,561 56,357,729
23,290,755 24,949,787 25,592,464 24,335,784 24,204,194 25,142,530 24,576,002 24,115,597 24,233,429 24,332,244
44,014,284 50,356,561 49,404,425 50,901,278 44,740,659 38,562,336 41,777,043 42,742,181 40,597,171 40,736,590
577,615 570,832 541,388 588,025 561,269 - - - - -
67,882,654 75,877,180 75,538,277 75,825,087 69,506,122 63,724,866 66,353,045 66,857,778 64,830,600 65,068,834
124,834,995 125,503,574 124,952,083 123,436,314 117,445,476 112,139,257 116,617,406 116,337,984 115,936,161 121,426,563
586 393 2,345 3,085 7,335 714 3,727 322 808 808
- - - 3,594 4,140 4,070 3,707 - - -
- 183,659 133,124 121,843 178,842 229527 242,942 194,717 18,875 13,695
2,949,176 2,106,266 1,529,856 1,533,642 1,823,890 2,269,925 2,599,468 2,899,884 2,455,932 3,186,388
- - 2,852 - - - - - - -
5,490,603 6,011,615 6,059,206 6,593,303 6,228,043 6,383,854 6,497,654 6,425,527 6,764,070 6,937,613
1,194,632 1,138,641 1,393,257 2,003,645 047,721 1,537,583 1,737,712 2,314,133 1,231,448 1,661,158
536,732 438,501 484,126 581,723 1,138,237 1,228,860 1,292,533 1,407,493 1,260,994 1,411,951
1,764,300 1,897,517 1,478,041 1,363,730 1,679,346 2,199,513 2,577,551 3,230,314 2,839,082 2,655,493
3,104,461 895,225 1,229,626 1,467,727 1,295,306 1,304,045 3,441,376 1,358,456 1,375,192 1,545,558
1,368,819 1,968,406 711,610 918,976 2,039,034 584,322 824,870 858,465 848,494 302,768
16,409,309 $ 14,640,223 $ 13,024,043 $ 14,591,268 $ 15,341,894 $ 15742413 $__ 19,221,540 $ 18,689,311 $ 16,794,895 $ 17,715,432
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 2 (continued)
Changesin Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basisof accounting)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Program Revenues
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Water and Sewer $ 25,767,241 $ 24,916,588 $ 25,005,283 $ 25527,710 $ 26,550,502 $ 27,401,520 $ 27,037,647 $ 27,635,066 $ 28,138,903 $ 29,020,089
Electric 50,026,149 47,832,294 54,230,350 58,044,816 53,033,287 46,033,982 49,007,283 49,459,325 47,931,186 47,857,842
Golf Course 439,282 490,210 475,465 441,180 431,373 - - - - -
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,600,635 343,697 625,364 1,172,909 1,192,206 429,345 1,327,477 2,835,720 368,584 1,028,170
Total business-type activities program revenues 77,833,307 73,582,789 80,336,462 85,186,615 81,207,368 73,864,847 77,372,407 79,930,111 76,438,673 77,906,101
Total Primary government program revenues 94,242,616 88,223,012 93,360,505 99,777,883 96,549,262 89,607,260 96,593,947 98,619,422 93,233,568 95,621,533
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities (40,543,032) (34,986,171) (36,389,763) (33,019,959) (32,597,460) (32,671,978) (31,042,821) (30,790,895) (34,310,666) (38,642,297)
Business-type activities 9,950,653 (2,294,391) 4,798,185 9,361,528 11,701,246 10,139,981 11,019,362 13,072,333 11,608,073 12,837,267
Total primary government net expense (30,592,379) (37,280,562) (31,591,578) (23,658,431) (20,896,214) (22,531,997) (20,023,459) (17,718,562) (22,702,593) (25,805,030)
General Revenuesand Other Changesin Net Position
Governmental activities:
Taxes
Property Taxes 19,896,736 18,504,953 19,147,853 18,500,179 16,803,908 16,234,482 16,120,619 16,819,797 17,799,839 19,130,305
Franchise Fees 924,327 946,322 1,014,864 1,044,072 1,103,636 1,080,258 1,082,856 1,146,843 1,216,596 1,267,143
Utility Taxes 6,265,881 6,298,905 6,497,752 6,930,742 6,865,087 6,597,923 6,686,075 6,671,552 6,560,897 6,582,206
Intergovernmental Revenues 6,157,197 6,113,079 5,828,029 5,863,195 5,817,003 5,540,171 5,752,828 6,078,159 6,541,019 7,084,112
Investment Earnings 1,246,191 767,691 819,748 678,723 518,879 432,768 (658,229) 628,969 852,853 487,430
Miscellaneous Revenue 615,934 424,015 445,859 377,815 611,673 871,360 498,086 685,163 1,443,298 1,589,377
Transfer from(to) other funds 3,871,732 5,162,067 4,858,967 5,379,280 3,959,424 4,453,926 4,670,444 4,783,217 6,589,700 5,203,126
Total government activities 38,977,998 38,217,032 38,613,072 38,774,006 35,679,610 35,210,888 34,152,679 36,813,700 41,004,202 41,343,699
Business-type activities:
Investment Earnings 1,161,327 599,208 786,379 360,215 443,258 434,155 (546,674) 468,272 747,072 311,975
Miscellaneous Revenue 82,939 1,042,950 41,525 96,709 1,317,402 136,091 249,824 1,400,906 349,473 66,196
Transfer from(to) other funds (3,871,732 (5,162,067) (4,858,967) (5,379,280) (3.959,424) (4,453,926) (4,670,444) (4,783,217) (6,589,700) (5,203,126)
Total business-type activities (2,627,466) (3,519,909) (4,031,063) (4,922,356) (2,198,764) (3,883,680) (4,967,294) (2,914,039) (5,493,155) (4,824,955)
Total primary government 36,350,532 34,697,123 34,582,009 33,851,650 33,480,846 31,327,208 29,185,385 33,899,661 35,511,047 36,518,744
Changein Net Positior
Government activities (1,565,034) 3,230,861 2,223,309 5,754,047 3,082,150 2,538,910 3,109,858 6,022,805 6,693,536 2,701,402
Business-type activities 7,323,187 (5,814,300) 767,122 4,439,172 9,502,482 6,256,301 6,052,068 10,158,294 6,114,918 8,012,312
Total primary government $ 5,758,153 $ (2,583,439) $ 2,990,431 $ 10,193219 $ 12,584,632 $ 8795211 $ 9,161,926 $ 16,181,099 $ 12,808454 $ 10,713,714

@ Asrestated.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Table3

Fund Balances, Gover nmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011® 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
General Fund
Reserved $ 4444584 $ 4174934 $ 3,737,939 $ 2,880,670 $ - $ -3 -3 - $ - $ -
Unreserved 1,683,072 2,731,283 4,411,116 6,675,058 - - - - - -
Nonspendable - - - - 138,209 120,909 260,608 104,366 922,405 929,709
Restricted - - - - - - - 473,532 395,624 965,513
Assigned - - - - 636,907 584,076 234,842 218,066 384,242 523,313
Unassigned - - - - 9,553,104 8,953,558 11,432,259 12,280,561 11,043,046 8,044,529
Total general fund $ 6,127,656 $ 6,906,217 $ 8,149,055 $ 9,555,728 $ 10,328,220 $ 9,658,543 $ 11,927,709 $ 13,076,525 12,745,317 10,463,064
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ 1,942,932 $ 1,686,316 $ 1,043,637 $ 8,898,038 $ - $ -3 -3 - $ -3 -
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds 6,573,550 7,248,629 6,868,655 7,019,560 - - - - - -
Capital projects funds 1,655,500 3,019,934 3,427,122 3,174,350 - - - - - -
Nonspendable - - - - 79,291 69,617 74,108 55,862 53,547 38,080
Restricted - - - - 4,581,633 4,252,198 3,945,871 4,541,982 4,052,195 3,713,163
Committed - - - - 7,927,259 6,175,563 5,204,782 5,438,148 8,079,902 7,660,011
Assigned - - - - 375,172 318,401 399,972 1,266,420 1,060,685 917,166
Unassigned - - - - (139,627) - - - - -
Total all other governmental funds $ 10,171,982 $ 11,954,879 $ 11,339,414 $ 19,091,948 $ 12,823,728 $ 10,815,779 $ 9,624,733 $ 11,302,412 $ 13,246,329 $ 12,328,420

@ The City adopted GASB 54 beginning with fiscal year 2011 and has elected to display this change prospectively.

Additional information can be found in Note 1-S of the financial statements.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Table4

Changesin Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ 21,216,955 $ 19,952,957 $ 21,092,354 $ 20,148,016 17,989,570 $ 17,309,030 $ 17,150,192 $ 16,807,610 17,799,839 19,130,305
Utility Taxes 6,265,881 6,298,905 6,497,752 6,930,742 6,865,088 6,597,925 6,686,075 6,671,552 6,560,897 6,582,206
Franchise Fees 924,327 946,322 1,014,864 1,044,071 1,103,636 1,080,258 1,082,857 1,146,843 1,216,596 1,267,143
Fines and Forfeitures 1,024,106 920,829 979,206 1,654,709 674,365 1,219,867 1,502,638 2,084,029 1,111,301 1,495,740
Licenses and Permits 2,766,065 2,197,365 1,574,789 1,622,739 1,989,469 2,591,654 2,797,995 3,026,360 2,392,821 3,121,261
Intergovernmental :
Sales Tax 3,863,459 3,761,241 3,314,364 3,415,838 3,623,327 3,610,003 3,821,379 4,029,181 4,281,355 4,470,609
Local Option Gas Tax 1,027,780 1,002,879 947,843 958,913 914,851 938,926 919,444 928,112 953,010 1,009,683
Other Intergovernmental 5,036,468 4,410,283 3,808,474 4,148,071 5,180,264 3,669,472 5,943,110 5,253,090 5,493,747 5,517,983
Charges for Services 5,595,392 5,990,603 6,333,460 6,785,179 7,500,761 8,227,105 8,697,785 9,101,436 9,054,668 9,348,551
Other 3,994,395 2,532,683 1,586,820 1,704,225 1,825,512 1,676,089 1,003,540 2,579,336 2,860,031 2,596,296
Total Revenues 51,714,828 48,014,067 47,149,926 48,412,503 47,666,843 46,920,329 49,605,015 51,627,549 51,724,265 54,539,777
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Genera Administration 1,810,279 1,499,908 1,535,789 1,645,189 1,840,906 1,706,778 1,557,470 1,590,619 1,448,791 1,533,528
Communications 239,148 107,452 183,229 173,357 176,416 170,485 161,456 116,420 183,808 151,830
Financial Services 506,223 420,670 413,199 370,931 399,555 374,810 353,453 353,522 336,147 314,696
Planning 2,520,238 2,012,060 1,765,193 1,968,578 1,614,178 1,496,927 1,169,709 1,369,843 1,627,552 1,685,959
Building and Code Enforcement 1,562,205 1,580,666 1,416,717 1,239,430 1,261,818 1,293,544 996,040 1,086,410 1,168,623 1,234,567
Public Works 10,553,570 8,930,830 8,770,903 8,372,375 8,205,126 8,570,518 8,236,047 8,407,696 8,417,868 8,953,494
Police 12,417,350 12,348,317 12,732,022 12,922,520 12,815,962 13,085,189 14,036,634 14,116,889 14,969,739 14,481,859
Fire 9,397,706 9,416,751 9,623,766 9,682,588 9,800,694 10,238,541 10,898,091 11,266,113 12,036,331 12,516,743
Parks and Recreation 10,863,374 7,884,895 6,517,654 5,954,608 5,993,814 6,737,713 7,216,629 7,302,925 7,697,189 7,913,943
Cultural and Community Services 1,436,850 1,397,698 1,465,712 1,413,185 1,438,337 1,567,880 1,555,190 1,537,193 1,662,580 1,765,801
Debt Service:
Principal 1,638,377 1,762,890 1,931,427 2,608,779 2,182,201 2,940,878 2,388,425 2,848,631 3,056,638 3,154,388
Interest and Other Charges 1,317,739 1,259,424 1,250,694 1,385,459 1,553,872 1,253,339 912,633 953,194 752,331 655,383
Capital Improvements 6,941,597 4,623,115 4,367,770 5,030,577 11,996,793 4,940,279 3,714,237 2,784,816 3,168,866 8,580,874
Total Expenditures 61,204,656 53,244,676 51,974,075 52,767,576 59,279,673 54,376,881 53,196,014 53,734,271 56,526,463 62,943,065
Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures (9,489,828) (5,230,609) (4,824,149) (4,355,073) (11,612,830) (7,456,552) (3,590,999) (2,106,722) (4,802,198) (8,403,288)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCESAND (USES)
TransfersIn 12,278,784 8,752,166 7,943,086 8,481,819 7,627,958 7,939,728 7,950,094 8,968,353 11,152,166 13,701,284
Transfers Out (7,907,052) (3,190,099) (2,491,564) (3,067,539) (3,163,534) (3,160,802) (2,854,650) (4,035,136) (4,562,466) (8,498,158)
Impairment of Assets Held for Resale - - - - - - - - (174,793) -
Issuance of Debt - 2,230,000 - 8,100,000 7,207,770 - 9,800,000 - - -
Pmt to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent - - - - (7,625,000) - (10,226,325) - - -
Capital Lease Obligation - - - 1,725,656 - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 4,371,732 7,792,067 5,451,522 13,514,280 5,772,850 4,778,926 4,669,119 4,933,217 6,414,907 5,203,126
Net Changein Fund Balances (5,118,096) 2,561,458 627,373 9,159,207 (5,839,980) (2,677,626) 1,078,120 2,826,495 1,612,709 (3,200,162)
Fund Balances - Beginning 21,417,734 16,299,638 18,861,096 19,488,469 28,991,928 23,151,948 20,474,322 21,552,442 24,378,937 25,991,646
Fund Balances - Ending $ 16,299,638 $ 18,861,096 $ 19,488,469 $ 28,647,677 23,151,948 $ 20,474,322 $ 21552442 $ 24,378,937 25,991,646 22,791,484
Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures 5.30% 6.23% 6.55% 8.69% 8.03% 8.54% 6.73% 7.36% 7.06% 6.98%
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Tableb

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Assessed
Y ear Centrally Less: Tax Total Taxable Tota Estimated Vaueasa
Ended Real Personal Assessed Exempt Assessed Direct Tax Actuad Percentage of
Sept. 30, Property Property Property Property Value Rate Value Actua Vaue

2007 5,381,449,024 $ 255,814,961 $ 1232368 $ 1,653577,239 $ 3,984,919,114 5.0900 $ 6,797,466,978 58.62%
2008 6,092,025,651 270,877,113 459,411 1,911,127,287 4,452,234,888 4.3073 7,660,052,254 58.12%
2009 6,167,795,263 266,018,186 1,383,948 1,937,693,755 4,497,503,642 4.3858 7,741,283,098 58.10%
2010 5,767,510,307 253,659,029 1,483,032 1,687,749,821 4,334,902,547 4.3980 7,247,987,510 59.81%
2011 5,023,964,968 237,399,202 1,241,100 1,354,442,999 3,908,162,271 4.4336 6,343,423,034 61.61%
2012 4,524,708,901 236,563,359 1,216,162 968,447,814 3,794,040,608 4.4166 5,754,518,303 65.93%
2013 4,508,441,021 241,139,877 1,281,825 973,409,547 3,777,453,176 4.4183 5,743,766,225 65.77%
2014 4,642,490,933 241,913,558 1,347,341 941,956,617 3,943,795,215 4.4019 5,902,944,213 66.81%
2015 4,872,492,250 249,157,424 1,398,347 938,478,394 4,184,569,627 4.3907 6,186,755,669 67.64%
2016 5,233,704,939 255,752,935 1,414,234 962,440,637 4,528,431,471 4.3673 6,623,719,499 68.37%

Sour ce; Orange County Property Appraiser (Revised Recapitulation of the Ad Vaorem Assessment Rolls, DR-403AM and DR-403V)

Note: Assessed values are determined as of January 1 for each fiscal year.
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Real Property is assessed at 85% of estimated market value and Personal Property assessment at 55%.
Estimated actual taxable value is calculated by dividing assessed value by those percentages.
Centrally assessed property consists of the railroad lines which are assessed by the State of Forida.



The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table6
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
(rate per $1,000 of assessed value)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Direct Overlapping
Fiscal Orange St. Johns Total
Y ear City City Total County Water Direct and
Ended Tax Operating Debt City Orange School Management Overlapping
Sept. 30, Roll Millage Service Millage County Board District Millage
2007 2006 4.7580 0.3320 5.0900 5.1639 7.1690 0.4620 17.8849
2008 2007 3.9950 0.3123 4.3073 5.1639 7.1210 0.4158 17.0080
2009 2008 4.0923 0.2935 4.3858 4.4347 7.1500 0.4158 16.3863
2010 2009 4.0923 0.3057 4.3980 4.4347 7.6373 0.4158 16.8858
2011 2010 4.0923 0.3413 4.4336 4.4347 7.8940 0.4158 17.1781
2012 2011 4.0923 0.3243 4.4166 4.4347 8.5450 0.3313 17.7276
2013 2012 4.0923 0.3260 44183 4.4347 8.4780 0.3313 17.6623
2014 2013 4.0923 0.3096 4.4019 4.4347 8.3620 0.3283 17.5269
2015 2014 4.0923 0.2984 4.3907 4.4347 8.4740 0.3164 17.6158
2016 2015 4.0923 0.2750 4.3673 4.4347 8.2180 0.3023 17.3223
Sour ce: Orange County Property Appraiser's Office
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table7
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

2016 2007
Percentage Per centage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Winter Park Town Center (Winter Park Village) Shopping Mall $ 55,808,639 1 123% $ 51,489,552 1 1.29%
Presbyterian Retirement Communities Inc Retirement Community 40,213,896 2 0.89% 11,016,415 9 0.28%
Winter Park Town Center Development LLC Paseo Apartments 39,803,831 3 0.88% 0.00%
Rollins College/ Langford RCI LLC Education / Hospitality 29,181,777 4 0.64% 22,226,541 2 0.56%
Embarq FL (Sprint United Management Co) Telephone Carrier 28,353,083 5 0.63% 0.00%
Mayflower Retirement Center Inc Retirement Community 26,581,791 6 0.59% 20,211,514 4 0.51%
UP Fieldgate US Investments-Winter Park LLC Real Estate Developer 20,865,406 7 0.46% 0.00%
SVAP Winter Park, LP General Contractors 20,849,591 8 0.46% 0.00%
Proteggere LLC Real Estate Developer 16,678,000 9 0.37% 0.00%
Publix Supermarket Inc Food Retailer 16,198,177 10 0.36% 0.00%
BFC Park Avenue (250 park Ave) Trustee 15,933,876 5 0.40%
Elizabeth Morse Genius Foundation Foundation 21,184,320 3 0.53%
Winter Park Business LLC Developer 12,490,384 6 0.31%
Holler, Roger W. Jr Estate 12,227,106 7 0.31%
CD90 Mercantile Plaza Shopping Mall 11,436,081 8 0.29%
GMSVenture LLC Real Estate Developer 10,764,500 10 0.27%
Other Taxpayers - 4,233,897,280 - 93.50% 3,795,938,825 - 95.26%

Total Assessed Value ~$ 4528431471 100.00% _$ 3,984,919,114 —_100.00%

Source: Orange County Property Appraiser's Office
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table8
Property Tax Leviesand Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Collected within the
Y ear Tax Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Callectionsto Date
Ended for the Per centage in Subsequent Per centage
Sept. 30, Fiscal Year™ Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2007 % 20,283,238 $ 19,873,611 98.0% $ 23,126 $ 19,896,737 98.1%
2008 19,177,111 18,463,803 96.3% 49,710 18,513,513 96.5%
2009 19,725,151 19,331,226 98.0% 49,588 19,380,814 98.3%
2010 19,064,901 18,456,523 96.8% 43,654 18,500,177 97.0%
2011 17,327,228 16,758,247 96.7% 32,927 16,791,174 96.9%
2012 16,756,760 16,170,799 96.5% 51,216 16,222,015 96.8%
2013 16,689,921 16,083,083 96.4% 25,197 16,108,280 96.5%
2014 17,424,870 16,807,610 96.5% 21,521 16,829,131 96.6%
2015 18,420,057 17,751,760 96.4% 48,079 17,799,839 96.6%
2016 19,777,019 19,080,582 96.5% 49,723 19,130,305 96.7%
Source: Orange County Tax Collector and City of Winter Park Finance Department
Notes: (1) Gross Taxes before discounts

Agenda Packet Page 139 127



The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table9
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Fiscal Water &

Y ear General Capital Capital Wastewater Electric Per centage of

Ended Obligation I mprovement Lease Notes Revenue Revenue Total Personal Per

Sept. 30 Bond Bonds Obligations Payable Bonds Bonds Government Income Capita
2007 $ 12,120,000 $ 13,210,077 $ 283,169 $ 4,016,951 $ 62,060,000 $ 52,890,000 $ 144,580,197 11.38% $ 5,075
2008 11,330,000 12,622,710 239,593 5,861,428 60,990,000 70,760,000 161,803,731 11.83% 5,595
2009 10,520,000 12,015,762 198,194 5,391,949 78,895,000 80,010,000 187,030,905 14.47% 6,544
2010 9,685,000 7,273,009 832,583 16,828,984 77,745,000 79,530,000 191,894,576 15.22% 6,749
2011 8,700,000 6,574,083 2,178,392 16,037,117 78,435,000 78,145,000 190,069,592 14.58% 6,855
2012 7,760,000 5,864,631 1,713,181 15,164,883 75,155,000 76,525,000 182,182,695 13.89% 6,570
2013 6,943,732 5,174,090 1,513,264 14,465,000 68,206,115 68,437,108 164,739,309 12.78% 5,711
2014 5,984,889 4,371,877 1,351,957 13,455,000 71,728,159 71,662,000 168,553,882 12.09% 5,798
2015 4,938,460 3,547,389 1,194,807 12,400,000 68,673,965 69,819,129 160,573,750 11.21% 5,543
2016 3,857,030 2,695,000 1,032,808 11,315,000 65,509,555 69,256,244 153,665,637 10.44% 5,243
Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financials statements.

See Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 10
Ratios of General Obligation Bonds Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Per centage of
Y ear General Estimated Actual
Ended Obligation Taxable Value of Per
Sept. 30, Bonds Property Capita
2007 % 12,120,000 0.18% $ 425
2008 11,330,000 0.15% 392
2009 10,520,000 0.14% 368
2010 9,685,000 0.13% 341
2011 8,700,000 0.14% 314
2012 7,760,000 0.13% 280
2013 6,943,732 0.12% 241
2014 5,984,889 0.10% 206
2015 4,938,460 0.08% 170
2016 3,857,030 0.06% 132
Sour ce; City of Winter Park Finance Department
Note: There is no overlapping general obligaton debt for

which the City's property taxpayers are responsible.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table11
Direct and Overlapping Gover nmental Activities Debt

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Per centage Overlapping
Gover nmental Unit Debt Outstanding Applicable(l) Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Orange County District School Board $ 1,283,016,298 402% $ 51,624,517
City Direct Debt (Governmental Activities) 18,899,838
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 70,524,355
Source: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentage provided by the Orange

County Property Appraiser (Form DR-403V). Debt outstanding provided by each
governmental unit.

Notes: @ Ratio of assessed valuation of taxable property in overlapping unit that is with

City of Winter Park.
@ Debt outstandi ng as of June 30, 2016
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 12
Legal Debt Margin Information

There are no limitations placed upon the amount of debt the City may issue by either the City's Charter or
code of ordinances or by the Florida State Statutes.

The City's Charter does require voter referendum for the following categories of bonds:
* General obligation bonds.

* Revenue bonds intended to finance enterprises or projects which involve the purchase, lease and/or acquisition of
real property.

* Revenue bonds which pledge specific non-ad valorem taxes as the primary source(s) of revenue to pay the principal
and interest which have a principal value in excess of one million dollars. This dollar limitation is adjusted annually as of the end
of the fiscal year in accordance with changes in the cost-of-living index as published by the federal government. The limitation,
as adjusted, at September 30, 2016 is $2,385,652

However, notwithstanding the foregoing in the second and third items above, voter referendum shall not be required prior to the
issuance of revenue bonds which finance the purchase, lease and/or acquisition of park real property and/or park projects by the City.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 13
Community Redevelopment Agency
Tax Increment Revenue Bonds Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal

Y ear Tax Debt Service Requirements

Ended I ncrement

Sept. 30, Revenue' Principal Interest Total Coverage

2007 $ 2,536,662 $ 351,924 $ 416,460 $ 768,384 3.30
2008 2,736,168 422,366 419,331 841,697 3.25
2009 3,283,329 436,948 400,498 837,446 3.92
2010 3,172,003 456,778 517,908 974,686 3.25
2011 2,309,577 791,868 718,129 1,509,997 153
2012 2,090,103 872,234 683,013 1,555,247 1.34
2013 2,003,379 490,000 435,864 925,864 2.16
2014 2,127,789 1,010,000 476,425 1,486,425 143
2015 2,391,268 1,055,000 443,378 1,498,378 1.60
2016 2,986,272 1,085,000 409,053 1,494,053 2.00
Notes: (1) Tax Increment Revenue Notes are backed by the property tax revenue produced by

the property tax rate of the City of Winter Park and Orange County applied to the
increase in the taxable assessed val ues above the base year taxabl e assessed value
multiplied by 95%.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Table14

Pledge Revenue Cover age
Water and Sewer Revenue Debt Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fisca Less: Net Pledge
Y ear Operation and Revenue Debt Service Requirements
Ended Gross Maintenance Availablefor
Sept. 30, Revenue Expense Debt Services Principal Interest Tota Coverage
2007 $ 27,221,990 17,160,641 $ 10,061,349 $ 1,035,000 $ 2,980,168 $ 4,015,168 251
2008 25,589,426 18,520,255 7,069,171 1,070,000 3,657,461 4,727,461 1.50
2009 25,441,139 18,534,852 6,906,287 1,105,000 3,214,962 4,319,962 1.60
2010 25,807,742 16,546,462 9,261,280 1,150,000 2,563,648 3,713,648 2.49
2011 26,847,541 16,109,450 10,738,091 2,410,000 3,284,962 5,694,962 1.89
2012 27,684,531 16,655,358 11,029,173 2,495,000 3,150,076 5,645,076 1.95
2013 26,736,801 16,665,960 10,070,841 2,590,000 3,282,121 5,872,121 172
2014 28,626,592 16,750,478 11,876,114 2,700,000 3,183,842 5,883,842 2.02
2015 28,737,710 16,913,674 11,824,036 2,780,000 3,085,768 5,865,768 2.02
2016 29,222,001 17,601,300 11,620,701 2,890,000 2,975,388 5,865,388 1.98
Notes: 1 Schedule includes debt service requirements for Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1996, 2002, 2004, 2009, 2010 and 2011.
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Minimum debt service coverage is net revenues of 1.25 times debt service becoming due and payable in each year.

The bonds and interest due thereon are payable from and secured by a prior lien upon a pledge of the net revenues
derived by the City from the operation of the Water and Suburban Sewer System.

Gross Revenues are defined by the bond covenants as all income and earnings derived by the City from the ownership,
operation, leasing, or use of the system and investment income, excluding impact fees and interest earned thereon.

Operation and maintenance expenses are defined as the cost of operation and maintenance as defined by the

bond covenant, as current expenses, paid or accrued, less depreciation and amortization expenses.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 15
Electric Services Revenue Debt Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Less: Net Pledge

Year Operation and Revenue Debt Service Requirements

Ended Gross Maintenance Availablefor

Sept. 30, Revenue Expense Debt Services Principal Interest Total Coverage

2007 $ 49,694,293 $ 39,067,324 $ 10,626,969 $ 575,000 $ 2,629,729 $ 3,204,729 3.32
2008 47,901,111 44,365,015 3,536,096 600,000 4,228,044 4,828,044 0.73
2009 54,774,922 44,042,317 10,732,605 625,000 3,350,348 3,975,348 2.70
2010 57,655,512 45,345,525 12,309,987 480,000 2,057,171 2,537,171 4.85
2011 53,560,437 38,783,305 14,777,132 1,430,000 2,680,183 4,110,183 3.60
2012 45,725,647 32,285,000 13,440,647 1,620,000 2,747,512 4,367,512 3.08
2013 48,382,824 35,382,805 13,000,019 2,430,000 2,691,964 5,121,964 2.54
2014 49,253,533 36,664,439 12,589,094 1,765,000 2,652,149 4,417,149 2.85
2015 48,205,402 34,597,872 13,607,530 1,735,000 2,784,944 4,519,944 3.01
2016 47,014,090 34,796,389 12,217,701 2,225,000 2,571,562 4,796,562 2.55

Notes: 1 Schedule includes debt service requirements for Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A, 20058, 2007, 2009A, 2009B, 2010, 2014 and 2014A.
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Minimum debt service coverageis net revenues of 1.25 times debt service becoming due and payable in each year.

The bonds and interest due thereon are payable from and secured by a prior lien upon a pledge of the net revenues
derived by the City from the operation of the Electric System.

2 Gross Revenues are defined by the bond covenants as all income and earnings derived by the City from the ownership,
operation, leasing, or use of the system and investment income, excluding capital expansion and system improvement grants.

3 Operation and maintenance expenses are defined as the cost of operation and maintenance as defined by the
bond covenant, as current expenses, paid or accrued, less depreciation and amortization expenses.

4 Pledge revenues are defined as gross revenues |ess operation and maintenance expense.
5 Debt service coverage fell below the required minimum of 1.25 in fiscal year 2008 due to high interest costs on auction rate bonds

and underrecovery of fuel costs. The City has since refunded most of the auction rate bonds with fixed rate bonds and reviews
itsfuel cost recovery rates on a quarterly basis and adjusts as necessary.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 16
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

City City Per Orange County Unemployment Rate
Orange Per sonal Median Median City Education Orlando-
City County Income Household Household High School College City of Kissimmee Orange
Y ear Population Population1 (Thousand) Income Income Graduates Graduates Winter Park MSA County Florida
2007 28,486 1,105,603 $ 1,270,933 $ 45,155 $ 23,963 3,358 14,249 29 41 41 44
2008 28,921 1,114,979 1,367,573 48,227 23,776 2,686 8,033 5.0 6.5 6.4 6.9
2009 28,581 1,108,882 1,292,919 45,237 25,560 2,582 8,935 85 116 115 113
2010 28,434 1,145,956 1,260,678 44,337 28,117 3,071 10,368 9.1 118 118 12.1
2011 27,727 1,157,342 1,303,751 47,021 39,3%4 3,429 14,154 7.9 10.2 10.1 10.6
2012 27,728 1,175,941 1,311,673 47,305 52,624 3,419 12,136 6.9 85 84 8.6
2013 28,847 1,199,801 1,289,503 45,753 45,968 3,418 15,991 54 6.3 6.2 6.9
2014 29,073 1,227,995 1,393,865 44,504 50,738 3,700 12,485 46 5.7 5.6 6.1
2015 28,967 1,200,241 1,432,389 49,449 47,556 3,595 12,918 45 43 47 5.6
2016 29,308 1,229,039 1,472,170 59,405 47,943 2,962 12,950 44 44 43 49
Sour ces: Information provided by BEBR, American Community Survey, Metro Orlando EDC and the Community Redevelopment Agency.
Unemployment rate from State of Florida, Department of Labor and Employment Security, bureau of Labor Market Information.
(http:www.labormarketinfo.com) Statistical Programs\LAUS-Loca Area Unemployment Statistics\Get detailed Statistics\Monthly
Data Table per year (includes city estimate)
Notes: N/A - Information is not available.

! Population for Orange County was revised with Metro Orlando EDC & BEBR.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 17
Principal Employers
Current Fiscal Year

2016
Per centage
City of Total City
Employer Type of Business Employees Rank Employment
Florida Hospital Winter Park® Health 1,550 1 10.04%
Orange County Schools' Education 649 2 4.21%
City of Winter Park Government 517 3 3.35%
Gecos Inc Construction 450 4 2.92%
Publix Food Retailer/Supermarket chain 301 5 1.95%
Rollins College Education 298 6 1.93%
Other Employers Various 11,667 75.60%
Total Labor Force 15,432 100.00%

Sour ces: Labor Force from State of Florida, Department of Labor and Employment Security, Bureau of Labor Market Information.
(http:www.labormarketinfo.com) Statistical Programs\ LAUS-Local Area Unemployment Statistics\get detailed statistics\Monthly Data Table per year,
Metro Orlando EDC.

! Source used for employeesis Dun & Bradstreet reports.
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Function/Program

General Government
City Manager
Budget
City Clerk
Communications
Human Resources
Purchasing
Information Technology Services
Finance
Forestry

Police

Fire
Public Works
Planning/Building & Code Enforcement
Parks/Recreation
Subtotal for General Fund

Special Revenue
Stormwater Utility
Community Redevelopment
Subtotal for Special Revenue

Business-Type
Water/Sewer Service
Electric Service
Golf Course
Subtotal for Business-Type

Internal Service
Fleet
General Insurance
Subtotal for Internal Services
Total

Source: City Annual Budget
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table18

Full-Time Authorized City Government Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time authorized Employees as of September 30,

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
4 4 3 3 3 3 4 3 3 4
1 1 1
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1
4 4 35 35 35 35 35 4 4 4
4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3
4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
7 7 75 7.5 75 75 7.5 7.5 8 8
10 10 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
4
120 120 118 115 115 114 114 114 114 115
73 74 74 7 7 76 78 81 82 82
36 36 34 34 35 35 35 35 34 35
26 26 22 18 20 20 20 20 19 16
85 85 74 72 74 77 71 62 62 62
375 376 354 348 353 354 350 344 344 347
27 27 21 21 21 22 22 22 22 22
4 3 5 4 3 3 3 2 4 4
31 30 26 25 24 25 25 24 26 26
137 138 134 131 125 125 119 119 116 114
4 4 4 4 3 3 6 3 3 3
6 6 6 6 6 0 0 - - -
147 148 144 141 134 128 125 122 119 117
13 13 13 12 12 12 12 10 10 10
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2
14 14 14 13 13 13 13 11 11 12
567 568 538 527 524 520 516 501 500 501
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table19
Operating I ndicators by Function/ Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Function
Police”
# of 911 Calls Received N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 20,812 23,820 23,922 22,130
Average Response times, Priority one 2:05 2:27 2:18 2:16 2:17 2:32 2:26 2:51 2:25 2:33
Felony & misdemeanor arrests 1,496 1,295 1,331 928 519 942 1,125 883 495 1,233
Traffic accidents and citations 13,804 14,297 14,364 12,716 10,059 10,347 13,026 14,317 15,351 10,677
Fire?
Baseline Measurement (Fire) at 90%
Call Handling-Pick-up to dispatch N/A N/A 64 63 65 47 54 :55 :50 :55
Turnout-1st Unit-All Priority One Calls N/A N/A 2:03 2:07 2:07 53 58 111 1:30 70
Travel
Travel 1st Unit-Distribution N/A N/A 6:06 5:55 5:55 4:09 7:33 6:30 6:10 454
Travel Time Effective Response-Concentration N/A N/A 824 8224 8:38 5:43 6:09 5:33 5:50 5:19
Total Response Time
Travel 1st Unit on Scene-Distribution N/A N/A 8:36 8:25 8:25 7:38 7:56 7:35 7:30 8:04
Travel Time Effective Response-Concentration N/A N/A 11:24 11:24 11:33 9:53 8:01 9:41 850 8:29
Baseline Measurement (EMS) at 90%
Call Handling-Pick-up to dispatch N/A N/A 66 64 65 :60 54 54 59 57
Turnout-1st Unit-All Priority One Calls N/A N/A 2:44 2:03 2:07 1:14 :.58 1114 :0.50 :0.73
Travel
Travel 1st Unit-Distribution N/A N/A 6:25 6:06 5:55 4:.07 5:57 5:19 5:25 4:49
Travel Time Effective Response-Concentration N/A N/A 912 11:53 8:38 5:54 5:33 5:32 6:49 4:52
Total Response Time
Travel 1st Unit on Scene-Distribution N/A N/A 8:58 8:36 8:25 724 7:15 713 754 821
Travel Time Effective Response-Concentration N/A N/A 11:18 14:38 11:33 9:38 8:05 7:40 841 824
Public Works
Traffic Control
New signs made/installed 731 1,022 1,802 1,989 532 427 654 498 953 1,181
Signs repaired 148 191 295 515 160 199 87 176 306 58
Environmental Protection
Linear feet of new pipe installed 1,132 2,869 2,495 2,086 1,008 2,074 1,008 340 1,480 475
Linear feet of damaged pipe replaced 184 163 140 136 215 230 104 96 64 200
Standard inlets installed 15 28 20 40 15 12 4 6 12 5
Street sweepers (miles per week) 161 162 130 130 130 130 125 125 125 162
Leaves removed and hauled (cubic yards) 1,469 2,035 1,462 1,750 2,700 2,700 5,040 4,070 3,701 3,890
Fleet
Percent of entire fleet availability 99.15% 99.21% 99.37% 99.11% 99.20% 99.26% 98.23% 98.05% 98.33% 98.36%
Preventive maintenance completed 1,698 1,741 1,484 1,259 1,672 1,171 1,176 1,108 1,450 1,497
Building and Code Enfor cement
Permits issued 5,490 4,242 3417 4,351 3,684 3,700 4,880 6,336 6,437 6,150
Estimated construction value of permits issued (millions) $ 123 $ 98B $ 65 $ 172 $ 176 $ 100 $ 124 $ 170 $ 116 202
Parks and Recreation
Venue Rentals-All Venues 4,051 4,385 4,082 4,083 3,621 4,279 4,335 4,425 6,628 6,234
Recreation ID's Issued N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,615 2,513 2,679 2,692 2,092
Community Center Programming Count N/A N/A 26,298 16,248 16,759 38,685 55,813 72,960 73,484 71,381
Rounds of Golf 36,458 27,914 27,916 22,933 22,755 23,745 29,940 33,623 32,988 13,624

Sour ce: Various City departments.

Notes:
@ Provided for calendar year.

@ New Performance measure indicators adopted by City Commission in December 2010.
N/A - Information is not available.
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City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 20
Supplemental Operating Indicatorsfor:
Water & Sewer-Customers
September 30, 2016

NUMBER OF WATER SYSTEM CUSTOMERS

11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16
Commercial:
Inside 1,692 1,727 1,745 1,747 1,800
Outside 1,146 1,149 1,136 1,150 1,148
Multi-Dwelling:
Inside 347 351 344 337 333
Outside 586 593 583 584 580
Public Authority:
Inside 218 222 220 223 225
Outside 53 58 58 61 62
Residential:
Inside 10,702 10,754 10,824 10,840 10,846
Outside 8,541 8,499 8,493 8,540 8,582
Total Inside 12,959 13,054 13,133 13,147 13,204
Total Outside 10,326 10,299 10,270 10,335 10,372
Total Customers 23,285 23,353 23,403 23,482 23576
MAJOR WATER AND SEWER USERS
(CONSUMPTION = 1,000 GALLONS)
Inside City Limits
Adventist Health Systems 42,863
Rollins College 38,083
Winter Park Town Center LTD 18,897
Winter Park Towers 18,543
City of Winter Park 13,807
Mayflower Retirement Center 12,410
Orange County Schools, Court, Rec 10,508
Four Seasons Condo 10,043
Waterfall Cove At Winter Park 8,205
The Meadows 7,560
Total Inside 180,919
Outside City Limits
BRK Winter Park L.P. 25,784
Sun Key Holdings, LLC 21,032
Picerne Development Corp 19,670
W P 436 Apartments 17,238
Azure Winter Park 16,079
Sutton Place Property Holdings 14,843
ZMG Property Mgmt Division, LLC 14,598
Hidden Oaks Condo 14,228
JRK-Florida Partners; The Shoals 12,595
Summerlin At Winter Park 12,538
Total Outside 168,605
Total Consumption of Largest Users (Inside and Outside) 349,524
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City of Winter Park, Florida

Table21

Supplemental Operating Indicatorsfor:
Water & Sewer Operation-Usage

September 30, 2016

ANNUAL WATER USAGE (thousands of gallons)

11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16

Commercial:

Inside 497,614 484,688 504,058 540,449 539,612

Outside 372,445 370,758 365,205 316,713 357,058
Multi-Dwelling:

Inside 140,486 146,245 138,511 147,862 132,366

Outside 414,817 408,503 409,315 432,894 375,295
Public Authority:

Inside 181,129 199,302 76,646 73,424 77,181

Outside 11,913 11,599 12,424 13,695 11,526
Residential:

Inside 1,367,466 1,283,305 1,275,171 1,331,913 1,323,310

Outside 617,308 580,116 566,790 601,610 560,746
Total Inside 2,186,695 2,113,540 1,994,386 2,093,648 2,072,469
Total Outside 1,416,483 1,370,976 1,353,734 1,364,912 1,304,625
Total Consumption 3,603,178 3,484,516 3,348,120 3,458,560 3,377,094

ANNUAL SEWER USAGE (thousands of gallons)
11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16

Commercial:

Inside 268,598 270,927 285,728 292,262 313,993

Outside 206,816 210,318 215,618 213,816 210,177
Multi-Dwelling:

Inside 122,041 120,867 121,805 115,907 116,404

Outside 381,908 348,278 350,603 353,673 363,583
Public Authority:

Inside 22,214 22,418 20,097 20,271 20,760

Outside 4,673 7,213 5413 3,876 5,335
Residential:

Inside 555,785 544,054 539,222 539,665 553,609

Outside 264,088 293,563 257,599 287,836 289,588
Total Inside 968,638 958,266 966,852 968,105 1,004,766
Total Outside 857,485 859,372 829,233 859,201 868,683
Total Consumption 1,826,123 1,817,638 1,796,085 1,827,306 1,873,449
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City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 22
Water and Sewer Rates, Feesand Charges
September 30, 2016

Inside the City Limits

Water
(Commercial/
Water Public Water
(Residential) Authority) (Irrigation) Sewer
Rates per 1,000 gallons of consumption

Block 1 $ 118 $ 1.18( % 250 | $ 4.61
Block 2 175 1.75 3.34 4.61
Block 3 2.50 2.50 4.28 4.61
Block 4 3.34 3.34 6.20 4.61
Block 5 4.28 4.28 6.20 4.61
Block 6 6.20 4.28 6.20 4.61
Base ERM Charge 8.62 8.62 8.62 10.19
Additional Unit Charge 4.64 4.64 4.64 5.48

Outside the City Limits

Water

(Commercial/
Water Public Water
(Residential) Authority) (Irrigation) Sewer
Rates per 1,000 gallons of consumption

Block 1 $ 147 $ 147 ($ 312 1| $ 5.76
Block 2 2.18 2.18 4.17 5.76
Block 3 3.12 3.12 5.35 5.76
Block 4 4.17 4.17 7.75 5.76
Block 5 5.35 5.35 7.75 5.76
Block 6 7.75 5.35 7.75 5.76
Base ERM Charge 10.78 10.78 10.78 12.73
Additional Unit Charge 5.80 5.80 5.80 6.85

ERM = Equivalent Residential Meter

Sewer charges are capped for residential customers without separate irrigation meters at
14,000 gallons.

Notes:
(1) Rates on thistable became effective Oct 1, 2015.
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City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 22 (continued)

Water and Sewer Rates, Fees and Charges

September 30, 2016

Bills for water, sewer and irrigation service are determined using applicable ratesin the table 21
and the block sizes in the table below based on customer class and meter size.

Block Structure Price Breaks by Meter Size:

Usage Up To:
Block 1 Block 2 Block 3 Block 4 Block 5
Meter
Size Equivalent
in Meter (1,000 (1,000 (1,000 (1,000 (1,000
Inches Ratio gallons/month) gallons/month) gallons/month) gallons/month) gallons/month)
3/4 1 4 8 12 20 20
1 212 10 20 30 50 50
11/2 5 20 40 60 100 100
2 8 32 64 96 160 160
3 16 64 128 192 320 320
4 25 100 200 300 500 500
6 50 200 400 600 1,000 1,000
8 80 320 640 960 1,600 1,600
10 115 460 920 1,380 2,300 2,300
Residential Water Block Structure
Usage
Usage Up To Over:
Block 1 Block 2 Block 3 Block 4 Block 5 Block 6
1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
(gallons/month) (gallons/month) (gallons/month) (gallons/month) (gallons/month) (gallons/month)
4 8 12 16 20 20
Irrigation Water Block Structure
UsageUp To Usage Over:
1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
(gallons/month) (gallons/month) (gallons/month) (gallons/month)
4 8 12 12
Notes:

(1) Rates on this table became effective October 1, 2015.
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City of Winter Park, Florida

Table 23

Supplemental Operating Indicators

for Electric Operations
September 30, 2016

ELECTRIC SYSTEM CUSTOMERSAND USAGE

11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16
# Customers Killowatt Hours #Customers  Killowatt Hours | # Customers Killowatt Hours # Customers Killowatt Hours # Customers Killowatt Hours

Commercial: 213,918,639 2,366 212,962,006 2,374 218,597,990 2,383 217,765,411 2,387 220,923,995

Public Authority: 24,338,908 285 22,939,766 287 23,753,687 290 23,345,813 295 24,736,381

Residential: 177,778,338 11,828 177,364,535 12,021 183,271,300 12,292 187,371,272 12,265 191,571,478

Total Customers 416,035,885 14,479 413,266,307 14,682 425,622,977 14,965 428,482,496 14,947 437,231,854

MAJOR ELECTRIC USERS
Killowatt Hours

Rollins College 23,869,736
Adventist Health Systems 21,644,921
Orange County Schools, Court, Rec 11,897,220
City of Winter Park 10,281,273
Publix Markets 8,917,782
Embarqg Horida, Inc 8,088,549
Mayflower Retirement Center 6,673,990
Presbyterian Retirement Center (Wpark Towers) 5,684,497
Alfond Inn 2,888,880
250 Park Avenue Trustee, Inc 2,853,104
Charles H, Elizabeth Morse Genius 2,554,454
Central FloridaYMCA 2,538,160
Whole Foods Market Group, Inc 2,379,443
Winter Park Retirement Center, Inc 2,094,000
Regal Cinemas, Inc 1,993,400
Total Consumption of Largest Users 114,359,409
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City of Winter Park, Florida
Table24
Residential Electric Service Rates, Feesand Charges
September 30, 2016

Residential Rates

Customer charge $ 9.55 | per month

1st 1,000 kWh $ 0.066250 | per kWh

All kwh above 1,000 $ 0.078150 | per kWh

Fuel Cost Recovery Factor, 1st 1,000 kWh $  0.031490 | per kWh

Fuel Cost Recovery Factor, all kwWh above 1,000 $ 0.041490 | per kWh

Gross Receipts Tax 2.5641%

Franchise Fee Equivalent 6.0000%

Electric Utility Tax 10.0000%

Service Charges

Opening an account at a new service location $ 61.00

Reconnect service $ 28.00

Reconnect service after a disconnection for nonpayment or violation

of arule or regulation $ 42.50

Reconnection after normal business hours $ 85.00

Dishonored check $ 25.00 | or 5% of the
check
amount,

whichever is

greater

Lighting Service (LS)

This service is available from dusk to dawn with various automatically controlled light fixtures

Depends
upon fixture

Fixture and Maintenance Charge type
Customer charges (per line of billing):

Metered Accounts $ 3.49 | per month

Non Metered Accounts $ 1.22 | per month
Energy and Demand Charge $  0.023490 | per kWh
Fuel Cost Recovery Factor $ 0.035390 | per kWh
Gross Receipts Tax $ 0.025641
Franchise Fee Equivalent $  0.060000
Electric Utility Tax $  0.100000

Notes
(1) Fuel Cost Recovery Factors are adjusted periodicaly, if necessary, based on actual fuel costs.
(2) Rates on this table became effective Oct 1, 2015
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City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 25

General Service Electric Rates, Feesand Charges

September 30, 2016

Non-Demand (GS-1)

Rates will also apply to Temporary Service (TS-1)

Customer charges:

Non Metered Accounts | $] 7.11 | per month
Metered Accounts:
Secondary Delivery Voltage $ 12.61 | per month
Primary Delivery Voltage $ 159.44 | per month
Energy and Demand Charge $| 0.066930 | per kWh
Fuel Cost Recovery Factor $| 0.035390 | per kWh
Gross Recelpts Tax $| 0.025641
Franchise Fee Equivalent $| 0.060000
Electric Utility Tax $| 0.100000
Electric State Sales Tax $| 0.070000 | Commercia Only
Electric State Sales Tax Surcharge $| 0.005000 [ Commercia Only

Non-Demand (100% L oad Factor Usage (GS-2)

(For customers with fixed wattage |oads operating continuously throughout the billing period)

Customer charges:

Non Metered Accounts $ 7.45 | per month
Metered Accounts $ 13.21 | per month

Energy and Demand Charge $| 0.033090 | per kWh

Fuel Cost Recovery Factor $| 0.035390 | per kWh

Gross Recelpts Tax $| 0.025641

Franchise Fee Equivaent $| 0.060000

Electric Utility Tax $| 0.100000

Electric State Sales Tax $| 0.070000 [ Commercia Only

Electric State Sales Tax Surcharge $| 0.005000 | Commercia Only

Demand (GSD-1)
Rates will also apply to Temporary Service (TS)

Applicable to any customer other than residential with a measurable annual kWh consumption of 24,000 kWh or greater per

Customer charges:

Secondary Delivery Voltage $ 13.14 | per month
Primary Delivery Voltage $ 166.20 | per month
Demand Charge $| 4.590000 | per kWh
Energy Charge $| 0.038300 | per kwh
Fuel Cost Recovery Factor $| 0.035390 | per kWh
Gross Recelpts Tax $| 0.025641
Franchise Fee Equivalent $| 0.060000
Electric Utility Tax $| 0.100000
Electric State Sales Tax $| 0.070000 | Commercia Only
Electric State Sales Tax Surcharge $| 0.005000 [ Commercia Only

Notes:

(1) Rate changes on this table became effective on Oct 1, 2015.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 26
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Function
Public Safety
Police Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fire Stations 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
City Limits
Square Miles 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Streets
Paved (miles) 133.0 133.0 133.0 133.0 133.0 133.0 133.0 133.0 133.0 133.0
Unpaved (miles) 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Sidewalks (miles) 137.0 137.3 155.0 155.0 155.0 155.0 155.0 156.0 156.0 156.0
Bikepaths (miles) 233 23.3 233 23.3 233 23.3 233 23.3 233 23.3
Culture and Recreation
Recreation centers 6 6 3 3 4 6 6 6 6 6
Major Parks 7 7 7 12 9 13 13 15 15 15
Mini Parks & playgrounds 48 48 42 45 45 46 37 411 49 49
Parks acreage 293 293 298 298 298 298 298 336 346 346
Fleet
Vehicles and other heavy equipment 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 413 413 413
Water & Sewer
Water Plants 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Re-pump station 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Water mains (miles) 555 555 556 558 558 559 559 560 560 560
Water maximum capacity (thousands of gallons) 28,800 28,800 28,800 28,800 28,800 28,400 28,400 28,800 28,800 28,800
Deep wells 8 8 8 8 8 8 6 6 6 6
Sewer force mains (miles) 14 a4 14 a4 14 45 45 45 45 45
Sewer gravity lines (miles) 140 142 142 143 143 143 143 147 147 147
Lift stations 87 87 87 87 86 101 101 104 104 104
Stormwater stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Disposal (Wastewater) plants 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Electric
Electric Substations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Sour ces: Various City departments
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M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Winter Park,
Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 21, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated March 21,
2017.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

\\(W gw \A—W,PR

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
March 21, 2017
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MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of the City of Winter Park, Florida (the “City”) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2016. The
City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended September 30, 2016.
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Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of require-
ments that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2017, which contained
unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis, as required by the Uniform Guidance, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
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Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance (Cont.)

The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole.

Mg S Fagharn Loz, @1

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
March 21, 2017
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The City of Winter Park, Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

CFDA Award Federal
Agency/Federal Program Number Grant/Contract Number Amount Expenditures
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Pass-through State of Florida, Department of Financial Services, Division of Emergency Management
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 16-DS-T9-06-58-01-385 28,800 21,289
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 21,289
U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass-through State of Florida, Department of Transportation
St. Andrews Trail 20.205 G0070 450,000 125,580
Joint Participation Agreement - Aloma Gap Decorative Street Lighting 20.205 ARX03 288,685 111,315
Pedestrain and Bicycle Safety Enforcement Campaign 20.205 BDV25 19,470 4,905
Brookshire Elementary School Sidewalk 20.205 G0001 95,108 94,337
Better Late Than Never SPEED Campaign 20.600 GO533 37,700 11,425
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 347,562
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-through State of Florida, Department of Agriculture
Urban and Community Forestry 10.664 21537 20,000 20,000
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 20,000
U.S. Department of Justice
Edwards Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2016-JAGC-ORAN-8-H3-088 10,000 10,000
Edwards Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2016-JAGD-ORAN-3-H4-025 7,421 7,421
Edwards Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2017-JAGE-ORAN-1-E8-001 26,683 26,683
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program-OJP Vest Partnership 16.607 OMB #1121-0235 5,800 5,800
HIDTA - High Intensity Drug Traffic Area 95.001 G14CFO0011A 833,825 7,269
HIDTA - High Intensity Drug Traffic Area 95.001 G15CF0011A 958,674 511,637
HIDTA - High Intensity Drug Traffic Area 95.001 G16CF0011A 951,674 579,790
Total U.S. Department of Justice 1,148,600
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 1,537,451

NOTE 1 Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal awards activity of the City of Winter Park, Florida. Grant revenues are recognized
only when allowable program costs have been incurred. This revenue recognition criteria for grants is applied to all funds. In addition, grant revenues are recognized
in governmental funds when the availability criteria has been met. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.
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CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Section | - Summary of Independent Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of Auditor’s Report Issued: Unmodified Opinion

Internal control over financial reporting:

o Material weakness(es) identified? _ Yes _X No
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _Yes _X_None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __Yes X No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
o Material weakness(es) identified? _ Yes _X No
o Significant deficiency(ies)? _ Yes _X_None reported
Type of report issued on compliance for major federal program: Unmodified Opinion
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 200.516 of the Uniform Guidance? __Yes X No
Identification of Major Program:
CEDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
95.001 HIDTA - High Intensity Drug Traffic Area
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes ____No
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CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Section Il - Findings Related to the Financial Statement Audit, as required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No matters are reported.
Section 111 - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs Section reported in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance.

No matters are reported.

Section IV - Status of Prior Year Findings

No matters were reported in the prior year affecting federal financial assistance programs.

Agenda Packet Page 166 154



M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S MANAGEMENT LETTER

Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Winter Park, Florida (the “City”) as of and
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2017.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”); and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reports and Schedule

We have also issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major
Federal Program and Report on Internal Control over Compliance and Report on Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance, Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs, and Independent Accountant’s Report on an examination conducted in accordance with
AICPA Professional Standards, Section 601, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated
March 21, 2017, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the
preceding annual financial audit report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The legal authority is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Financial Condition

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we report the results of
our determination as to whether or not the City has met one or more of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our
audit, the results of our tests did not indicate that the City met any of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes.
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Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

Financial Condition (Cont.)

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the City’s financial
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based, in part, on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Annual Financial Report

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we report the results of
our determination as to whether the annual financial report for the City for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2016, filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services, pursuant to Section
218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2016. In connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in
agreement.

Special District Component Units

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.d., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not a
special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, provided the
financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit, within the audited financial
statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida
Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined that all special district component units provided
the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes.

Other Matters

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter
any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have
any such recommendations.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred,
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of
those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor
General, federal and other granting agencies, the Mayor, City Commission, and applicable management
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Wirpwt € Zghane. evdoee, © N

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
March 21, 2017
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M S MOORE STEPHENS
LOVELACE, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT

Mayor and City Commission
City of Winter Park, Florida

We have examined the City of Winter Park, Florida’s (the “City”) compliance with the requirements of
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the year ended September 30, 2016. Management is responsible
for the City’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
City’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with
specified requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the
year ended September 30, 2016.

Wit S Faghars Lvdoee,

MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida
March 21, 2017
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REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION
March 13, 2017

The meeting of the Winter Park City Commission was called to order by Mayor
Steve Leary, at 3:30 p.m. in the Commission Chambers, 401 Park Avenue South,
Winter Park, Florida. The invocation was provided by City Manager Randy Knight,
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

Members present: Also present:

Mayor Steve Leary City Manager Randy Knight
Commissioner Greg Seidel City Clerk Cynthia Bonham

Commissioner Sarah Sprinkel City Attorney Kurt Ardaman

Commissioner Carolyn Cooper
Commissioner Pete Weldon

Approval of the agenda

Mayor Leary adjusted the agenda as follows: Moved item 10 (Library/events center
discussion) after the City Attorney’s Report; moved item 7 (SunRail statistics) prior
to convening as the CRA; and to continue item 11-d (ordinance) to another meeting
(was not heard this evening).

Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to approve the agenda as
adjusted; seconded by Commissioner Weldon and carried with a 5-0 vote.

Mavor’s Report

a. Recognition — 2016 Plant Operations Excellence Award from Department of
Environmental Protection

Water/Wastewater Director Dave Zusi recognized Toan Tran and Dewdat
Deneshwar for their great work at the Swoope Water Plant and the award received.

Not on the agenda - introductions

Betsy Gardner Eckbert, Chamber of Commerce President, introduced high school
students Jonah Gottschalk and Griffin Leckie. They are spending their junior work
experience at the Winter Park Chamber of Commerce and working in collaboration
with City staff (the CRA office) to help collate and gather data for an economic
scorecard on behalf of the Chamber.

b. Board appointments — Golf Course Advisory Board

Mayor Leary nominated the following: Jeff Shafer (2017-2018); Marc Reicher
(2017-2018); Dave Cocchiarella (2017-2019); Mark Isreal (2017-2019); Matt
Ginella (2017-2020); Matt Hegarty (2017-2020); Gary Diehl (2017-2020); and
Aaron Beardon (Alternate)
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CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 13, 2017
PAGE 2 OF 9

Motion made by Mayor Leary to appoint the members as stated, seconded
by Commissioner Sprinkel and carried unanimously with a 5-0 vote. No
public comments were made.

Regarding the Historic Preservation Board (HPB) and the future appointment of
member Phil Kean being appointed to the Board of Adjustments (BOA),
Commissioner Cooper asked if there are other architects on the board. She asked
that staff provide recommendations of an architect for the HPB when Mr. Kean
moves to the BOA.

c. Discussion of Fiber

Mayor Leary addressed this issue and wanted to move forward with forming a Fiber
Optic Task Force to review the possibility of fiber optics for the City and to present
a recommendation as to whether or not to proceed with taking the next steps and
determining the hard costs. He asked that Tom McMacken, Bill Segal, Dave
Johnston, Steve Mauldin and John Caron be appointed to serve on this task force.

Commissioner Weldon suggested that the task force focus on alternative
approaches for the City to address broadband instead of only fiber optic. Mayor
Leary commented that staff would also be involved (IT, Utilities Advisory Board
liaisons and other staff members as necessary) and that the task force would
sunset in six months.

Motion made by Mayor Leary that the function of the task force will be to
determine if an investment towards this type of initiative to include a
wireless or any other broadband alternative will be a benefit to current
potential residents and businesses and that the members as recommended
be appointed; seconded by Commissioner Sprinkel and carried
unanimously with a 5-0 vote. No public comments were made.

Other business

Mayor Leary announced that he and the City Manager will be travelling to
Tallahassee next week to meet with our legislators to discuss items of major
importance that affects the City. This will be summarized at the March 27 meeting.

City Manager’s Report

a. Employee Recognition — 20, 25, 30 and 35 years of service

City Manager Knight recognized several employees for their years of service.

Other business

City Manager Knight addressed working with our attorney to set up a Foundation to
benefit the City because of residents wanting to contribute money towards specific
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CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 13, 2017
PAGE 3 OF 9

projects. Attorney Ardaman addressed speaking with others who have set up
Foundations and will solicit their help if necessary. He believed the IRS providing
the City’s certification will take the longest time and hoped to have more
information at the next meeting.

City Attorney’s Report

Attorney Ardaman stated they do not have an answer as of this afternoon from the
panel of judges regarding the library/events center outstanding issue.

Attorney Ardaman addressed the drone ordinance that he provided. He spoke
about a bill that would pre-empt local government regulation drones. Upon

discussion, first reading of an ordinance will be provided for the next agenda to
move forward with adopting an ordinance.

Action Items Requiring Discussion

a. New Library and Events Center decision items

This item was moved up on the agenda. City Manager Knight stated the project is
at least a year behind because of the litigation and other issues. He covered the
schedule of the demolition of the Civic Center (last scheduled booking is April 24)
and that it will be at least a year before they have a design and construction
documents. There was a consensus to extend this date through January 31, 2018
and that there will be no construction done before that time. Mr. Knight suggested
having a grand closing event for the community to celebrate the many great events
that took place in, and memories created at the Civic Center that will be dealt with
as they get closer to the closing.

Mr. Knight spoke about receiving interest from the community for a local sale of the
bonds so they can buy library bonds in support of the community. He stated the
City usually do their bonds on a competitive sell so they can pick the best interest
rate and what is financially best for the City. He addressed an option for a
negotiated sale where they pick the underwriter and then work with them to create
a period where locals can buy the bonds first before they go to their regular
customers. He stated his preference is to stay with the competitive sale but if there
is enough community interest and the Commission wants to do a negotiated sale
they can do that. Discussion ensued regarding a competitive sale versus
negotiated sale. This issue will be further investigated.

Mr. Knight addressed Aci’s final report estimate of $32,500,000 for the library,
events center and parking garage. The voters approved bonds at an amount not to
exceed $30,000,000 and the Library was challenged with raising $2,500,000.
During the annual budget adoption the Commission set the total project amount at
$30,000,000. He spoke about the one year delay and construction prices rising
since the original estimates, the City has incurred significant legal fees that were
not anticipated in the original project estimates, and there have been consultant
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fees already incurred. He addressed the parking garage and whether it needs to be
larger to accommodate the shoftfall of parking for the playing fields we have today.
He concluded that the Commission needs to determine the maximum cost moving
forward.

Jim Russell, Pizzuti Companies, Executive Vice President, spoke about reviewing the
original Aci budget and are currently looking at two additional costs that the
Commission needs to be concerned about: the escalation in construction costs, and
the additional cost related to the litigation that takes away some of the City’s
buying power if it is to be reimbursed out of the same bond package. He stated
they need to know the maximum dollar number they have to manage
understanding that through the entire process this does not stop them or minimize
their efforts to do value engineering to tweak the program. Mr. Russell answered
Commission questions.

After further discussion, City Manager Knight stated he would like the Commission
to approve the project moving forward with the architect at the total project cost of
$32,500,000. He clarified that currently their approval is $30,000,000, including
the $2,500,000 the library is supposed to raise. Mr. Russell stated their
recommendation is to get the face value of the $30,000,000 available for the library
development plus the additional library portion of $2,500,000.

Upon discussion, there was a consensus for a maximum amount of $30,000,000
($27,500,000 plus $2,500,000) including the library’s contribution and any other
contributions received. City Manager Knight will bring back an updated timeline as
relates to financing and perspective nhumbers from the bond market. He stated
they have not had the architect begin because of waiting for the final word on the
last pending litigation.

Non-Action Item:

a. SunRail statistics

Public Works Director Troy Attaway provided current ridership numbers. He spoke
about the $350,000 cap per year the City has in place. Mayor Leary asked if they
can determine the ridership of origination versus destination. Ms. Gardner from
SunRail stated it is about 50/50. Mr. Attaway stated the numbers here are higher
on Fridays than other weekdays and if there is Saturday ridership that doubles from
the week. Mayor Leary expressed his preference to determine how many people
originate from Winter Park to go to other stations. Mr. Attaway will see if SunRail
can provide that data and where they are originating from as well.

Commissioner Weldon expressed the importance that SunRail has statistics of
where ridership starts and ends, relating the advertising of Saturday service to the
frequency of use, and that there are a lot of management issues that SunRail needs
to address if they are going to provide the kind of regional service that is going to
get more people to use it. He stated that hopefully someone from SunRail
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management will be willing to meet with the Commission as to what Winter Park
expects as a City.

Commissioner Cooper addressed prior discussions for providing a shuttle for the
last mile to help get residents to SunRail and asked where that is. She asked
about Altamonte Springs having a deal with Uber and if that made a difference in
the number of people using SunRail. Mayor Leary stated he understood that did
not make much of an impact.

The Commission meeting adjourned at this time at 4:46 to conduct a CRA Agency
meeting. The meeting continued at 5:04 p.m.

Public Comments (not on the agenda)

There were not public comments made.

Consent Agenda

a. Approve the minutes of February 27, 2017.
b. Approve the following contracts:

1. Associated Consulting, Inc. (RFQ-3-2017), Consulting Contract for
Professional Architectural Services; and authorize the Mayor to execute
contract.

2. Le-Huu Partners (RFQ-3-2017), Consulting Contract for Professional
Architectural Services and authorize the Mayor to execute contract.

3. Zyscovich Architects, (RFQ-3-2017), Consulting Contract for Professional
Architectural Services and authorize the Mayor to execute contract.

4. CPH, Inc. (RFQ-5-2017), Continuing Contract for Professional General Civil
Engineering Services; and authorize the Mayor to execute contract.

5. Comprehensive Engineering Services, Inc. (RFQ-6-2017), Continuing
Contract for Professional Transportation Planning & Engineering Services and
authorize Mayor to execute contract.

6. Piggyback Contract (GS-35F-0119P) with Verizon Wireless for Cellular
Services; and authorize the Mayor to execute contract and purchase order.

Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to approve the Consent Agenda;
seconded by Commissioner Seidel and carried unanimously with a 5-0
vote. No public comments were made.

Public Hearings:

a. Request of Rollins College:

ORDINANCE NO. 3069-17: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK,
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 58 “LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE” ARTICLE III,
"ZONING REGULATIONS” SECTION 58-76 "COMMERCIAL (C-3) DISTRICT” SO
AS TO ADD A NEW CONDITIONAL USE FOR “FACILITY OPERATIONS AND
SKILLED TRADE SHOPS SERVING A COLLEGE OR UNIVERSITY “; PROVIDING
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FOR CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE
Second Reading

ORDINANCE NO. 3070-17: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK,
FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 58, “LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE”, ARTICLE I
“"COMPREHENSIVE PLAN” FUTURE LAND USE MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO
COMMERCIAL ON 875 SQUARE FEET OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 483
HOLT AVENUE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, PROVIDING FOR
CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE Second Reading

ORDINANCE NO. 3071-17: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 58 “LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE"” ARTICLE III, "ZONING” AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING
MAP SO AS TO CHANGE LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) ZONING TO
COMMERCIAL (C-3) DISTRICT ZONING ON 875 SQUARE FEET ON THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF 483 HOLT AVENUE, MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED HEREIN, PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE Second Reading

Attorney Ardaman read all ordinances by title. This was a simultaneous public
hearing.

Planning Director Dori Stone addressed the approval at the last meeting of the
conditional use application for the building and that the revised development
agreement has been provided to the Commission. Ms. Stone stated the applicant
has agreed with the modified development agreement as provided to them.

Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to adopt the first ordinance
(adding new conditional use); seconded by Commissioner Weldon.

Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to adopt the comprehensive plan
ordinance; seconded by Commissioner Weldon.

Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to adopt the zoning ordinance;
seconded by Commissioner Weldon.

Commissioner Cooper expressed her opposition to this but stated she appreciates
Rollins working with the neighbors to minimize the negative impacts of the
development but that she did not believe this use and size was compatible with the
adjacent historic College Quarter single family homes. She also did not believe it is
good policy for the City to make code changes that apply to all colleges and
universities and to all properties zoned C-3, specifically to enable Rollin’s facility
operations to be moved off campus.

Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to approve the development
agreement as presented; seconded by Commissioner Weldon.

No applicant or public comments were made.
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Upon a roll call vote on the first ordinance (adding new conditional use),
Mayor Leary and Commissioners Seidel, Sprinkel and Weldon voted yes.
Commissioner Cooper voted no. The motion carried with a 4-1 vote.

Upon a roll call vote on the second ordinance (comprehensive plan), Mayor
Leary and Commissioners Seidel, Sprinkel and Weldon voted yes.
Commissioner Cooper voted no. The motion carried with a 4-1 vote.

Upon a roll call vote on the third ordinance (zoning), Mayor Leary and
Commissioners Seidel, Sprinkel, Cooper and Weldon voted yes. The motion
carried unanimously with a 5-0 vote.

Upon a roll call vote on the development agreement, Mayor Leary and
Commissioners Seidel, Sprinkel, Cooper and Weldon voted yes. The motion
carried unanimously with a 5-0 vote.

b. Reconsideration of subdivision or lot split request to divide the property at
1800 Edwin Boulevard into two single family lots

This request was not approved by the City Commission on January 9, 2017 due to a
2-2 tie vote. Based upon a petition provided, the Commission agreed on February
13, 2017 to rehear this request. The zoning is R-1A and is currently occupied by
one single family home which the applicant plans to demolish.

Planning Director Dori Stone presented the staff report. She stated the request is
that each lot is 62.5 feet wide and 9,375 square feet in size and that the Planning
and Zoning Board agreed with the two smaller lots with homes instead of one large
lot with a home of 7,000-8,000 square feet. She addressed the petition received
and a lady that came in today stating that she had not signed the petition but that
her name was signed on the petition.

Commissioner Cooper addressed why she would not support the request: it failed
the zoning test (requires lot widths of 75’ and the proposed lots are 62.5'), failed
the comprehensive plan test (of the 78 homes considered, the average/median lot
width was 72’, and the existing lot is limited to 33% FAR and once the lots are split
allows 38% on each lot where the average FAR of the 78 lots is 25%; and creates
more impervious space.

Commissioner Sprinkel explained she brought this back for reconsideration because
after further review the people who purchased the very large lots are in agreement
with this, believed this to be a better use long term, and can easily accommodate
two houses on this property.

Mark Squires, Winter Park Land Company, 122 S. Park Avenue, representing the
heirs who grew up on this property addressed the house across the street built by
the applicant that is emblematic of what is happening in the neighborhood. He
stated the proposal fits in perfectly with the street and asked for support.
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Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to approve the request and with
the condition of P&Z that the final architectural elevations of the two
proposed homes be of significantly different architectural styles and front
facades from each other, seconded by Commissioner Weldon.

Kevin Kline, 1740 Edwin Boulevard, opposed the request because of more traffic on
the street because of additional homes, and the need to retain the larger lot.

Applicant Randall Lazarus requested the subdivision or lot split approval and
addressed the uniqueness of the street because of the various lot sizes and that the
homes will complement the street. Commissioner Cooper asked that they stay
within the FAR that the lot currently has. Mr. Lazarus explained the economics of
building new homes and costs incurred.

Upon a roll call vote, Mayor Leary and Commissioners Sprinkel and Weldon
voted vyes. Commissioner Cooper voted no. Commissioner Seidel
abstained from voting because of a conflict. Form 8B, Memorandum of
Voting Conflict is attached to these minutes. The motion carried with a 3-1
vote.

C. ORDINANCE NO. 3072-17: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK,
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF THE CITY OWNED PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 2600 LEE ROAD PURSUANT TO THE PROPOSAL ATTACHED
HERETO AS EXHIBIT “B”; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE
DATE Second Reading

Attorney Ardaman read the ordinance by title.

Motion made by Commissioner Weldon to adopt the ordinance; seconded
by Commissioner Cooper. No public comments were made. Upon a roll call
vote, Mayor Leary and Commissioners Seidel, Sprinkel, Cooper and Weldon
voted yes. The motion carried unanimously with a 5-0 vote.

City Commission Reports:

a. Commissioner Seidel — Reported attending the track meet at the high school
where the sound was improved and that the track looked great.

b. Commissioner Sprinkel — Reported will be a great week in Winter Park with
the Art Festival and other events.

c. Commissioner Cooper - Asked that the issue of compatibility be explored
more. Reminded everyone about the Tri County League of Cities luncheon this
week.

d. Commissioner Weldon - Spoke about the ordinance regarding feral cats in
Mead Garden and the agreement that we would revisit that in March. Because of
the lengthy agenda on March 27, this will be on the April agenda.
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e. Mayor Leary - Stated there is a lot going on and wished Commissioner
Seidel good luck tomorrow.

He reminded the Commission about the very large agenda on March 27. He asked

everyone to keep things moving, be respectful of everyone’s time, and to keep
their commentary minimal.

The meeting adjourned at 5:43 p.m.

Mayor Steve Leary
ATTEST:

City Clerk Cynthia S. Bonham, MMC
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approval [lyes [ Jno HN| al vo
Contracts
vendor item | background fiscal impact motion | recommendation
Geosyntec RFQ-4-2017 - Continuing Total expenditure: Commission approve contract

with Geosyntec Consultants
and authorize the Mayor to
execute contract.

The City Comm

February 13, 2017.

ission authorized staff to enter into negotiations with Geosyntec Consultants on

Singhofen &
Associates, Inc.

RFQ-4-2017 - Continuing
Contract for Professional
Stormwater Management &
Designh Services

Total expenditure:
As Needed Basis

Commission approve contract
with Singhofen & Associates,
Inc. and authorize the Mayor
to execute contract.

The City Commission authorized staff to enter i
February 13, 2017.

nto negotiations with

Singhofen & Associates, Inc. on

Kimley-Horn

RFQ-6-2017 - Continuing
Contract for Professional
Transportation Planning &
Engineering Services

Total expenditure:
As Needed Basis

Commission approve contract
with Kimley-Horn and
authorize the Mayor to
execute contract.

The City Commi
2017.

ssion authorized staff to enter

into negotiations with Kimley-Horn on February 13,

AVCON, Inc.

Amendment No. 1 -
RFQ-15-2015 - FDOT LAP
Continuing Services Contract
for Engineering & Design
Services

Total expenditure:
As Needed Basis

Commission approve
Amendment No. 1 with
AVCON, Inc. and authorize the
Mayor to execute renewal.

A formal solicitation was issued to award this contract.

Comprehensive
Engineering
Services, Inc.

Amendment No. 1 -
RFQ-15-2015 - FDOT LAP
Continuing Services Contract
for Engineering & Design
Services

Total expenditure:
As Needed Basis

Commission approve
Amendment No. 1 with
Comprehensive Engineering
Services, Inc. and authorize
the Mayor to execute renewal.

A formal solicitation was issued to award this contract.

Kelly, Colling &
Gentry, Inc.

Amendment No. 1 -
RFQ-15-2015 - FDOT LAP
Continuing Services Contract
for Engineering & Design
Services

Total expenditure:
As Needed Basis

Commission approve
Amendment No. 1 with Kelly,
Colling & Gentry, Inc. and
authorize the Mayor to
execute renewal.

A formal solicitation was issued to award this contract.
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city commission JDUL blic hearing

Item type Public Hearing meeting date March 27, 2017
prepared by Jeff Briggs approved by [l city Manager
department Planning and Community ! City Attorney
division Development [ InA
apSr%?/;dl Planning and Zoning Board ! yes |:| no |:| NIA 7O sl et

.I Cherish and sustain city's extraordinary quality of life.

vision Plan growth through a collaborative process that protects
themes city’s scale and character.
|:| Enhance city's brand through flourishing arts and culture.

|:| Build and embrace local institutions for lifelong learning
and future generations.

Subject: Request for Future Land Use and Zoning Change for 524 Country Club Drive,
and to Amend the Preliminary Plat Approval for the Lakefront Properties at
524/532/600/604 Country Club Drive.

Deshpande Inc. (contract purchaser) is requesting:

1. Change in the Comp. Plan Future land Use and Zoning from Single Family Residential (R-1A)
to Low Density Residential (R-2) on the property at 524 Country Club Drive; and

2. To Amend the Preliminary Plat subdivision approval to replat the properties at
524/532/600/604 Country Club Drive, into 6 single family residential lots and to include a
common area lakefront tract.

Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation:

Motion made by Tom Sacha, seconded by Ray Waugh to approve the Requests,
with the following condition to be placed in the zoning ordinance and on the plat:

1. That the rezoning ordinance and final plat contain a note and restriction on
the FAR permitted on Lot 9, as limited to a FAR of 49%.

Motion carried unanimously with a 7-0 vote

Summary: As detailed at the February 27" Commission meeting, the lakefront lot at 524
Country Club Drive is zoned single family R-1A. The rest of the lakefront properties that are part
of this subdivision project are zoned R-2. In the R-2 zoning district, the minimum size for single
family lots is 50 feet of lot width and 6,000 square feet of lot area. Thus, the request of the
applicant is to change the Comp. Plan FLU from Single Family to Low Density Residential and to
rezone this property at 524 Country Club Drive from R-1A to R-2. In that manner the lot size
can be reduced (from 10,717 sqg. ft. to 9,070 sqg. ft.) and that surplus land and some of the
adjoining lot can be used to create a common area lakefront access tract for this project.
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This request is not increasing the residential density along the lakefront as the current approval
and the amendment both result in six lakefront homes. There also is a public benefit to creating
the open space lakefront access tract and allowing other residents of this subdivision to enjoy
the lake views, launch a kayak or paddleboard, etc. The only issue is the impact upon the
adjacent lakefront property at 518 Country Club Drive. If Lot 9 remains zoned R-1A, then the
maximum FAR is 43% and the maximum house size is 3,900 sq. ft. When the property is
rezoned to R-2, the maximum FAR is 55% and the maximum house size grows to 4,988 sq. ft.

The staff and P&Z Board felt that in order to provide an appropriate transition in house/structure
size as one moves from R-2 to R-1A, a condition of approval needs to average the FAR from the
R-2 FAR of 55% and the R-1A FAR of 43% by making the maximum FAR for this property at
49%. Then the maximum house size for this new Lot 9 would be 4,444 sq. ft. which is halfway
between the increase from 3,900 to 4,944 sq. ft.

Use of the Lakefront Tract: At last month’s meetings there was commentary about deeded
lakefront access rights. There is no “deeded” lakefront access but there may be some private
obligations due to historical use. The lakefront access common area tract will be a fenced/gated
area open to the residents of this subdivision. It will be the developers responsibility to
determine if other neighboring properties are also entitle to access.

Planning and Zoning Board Summary: The P&Z Board felt that limiting the FAR on 524
Country Club Drive provided a necessary transition from R-2 to R-1A. Thus, the P&Z Board
recommended to limit the FAR for that lot to 49% versus the maximum 55%. The P&Z Board
also recognized that any decision on a boat ramp or lakefront dock on the common area was the
sole jurisdiction of the Lakes and Waterways Board.

Planning and Zoning Board Minutes - March 7, 2017:

REQUEST OF DESHPANDE, INC. TO: AMEND THE "COMPREHENSIVE PLAN” FUTURE LAND USE
MAP TO CHANGE FROM A SINGLE FAMILY FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION TO LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL ON THE PROPERTY AT 524 COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE.

REQUEST OF DESHPANDE, INC. TO: AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP TO CHANGE FROM
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-1A) DISTRICT TO LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) DISTRICT
ZONING ON THE PROPERTY AT 524 COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE.

REQUEST OF DESHPANDE, INC. TO: AMEND THEIR PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT
ENCOMPASSING THE CURRENT LAKEFRONT PROPERTIES AT 524/532/600/604 COUNTRY CLUB
DRIVE TO REVISE THE LOT SIZE DIMENSIONS OF THE PROPOSED SIX LAKEFRONT LOTS AND
TO INCLUDE A COMMON AREA LAKEFRONT TRACT.

Randall Slocum recused himself from this item.

Planner Allison McGillis gave the staff report and explained that this item has three requests for this area.
The first two requests are for 524 Country Club Drive to change the future land use and zoning of this
property from single family (R-1A) to low density ((R-2)). The third request is to amend the preliminary
PLAT subdivision approval that was in the agenda from last month, particularly the lakefront properties, lots
4-9. The out-laying properties include all of the lots in the preliminary PLAT request; 524 Country Club
Drive is the only lot designated Single Family ((R-1A)). The applicant plans to build this lot as a single
family home, but would like to rezone the property to (R-2). It currently exceeds the lot size and width
standards for an (R-1A) lot as well as a single family (R-2) lot. This request is also to reconfigure these
lakefront properties which reduces the size of lots 4-9 and creates excess land for a 20ft access tract for
this project between lots 8 and 9 shown in the plan diagram in last month’s request. From staff's
perspective, this amendment to last month’s request does not increase the residential density along the
lakefront properties because both result in 6 lakefront homes. There is also a public benefit to creating the
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lakefront access tract, if the developer allows other residents of the subdivision to enjoy lake views, launch
kayaks etc.

Staff explained that the city’s Lakes and Water Ways Board has the authority to weigh in on the size and
location of any dock, boathouse or gazebo on the lakefront lots, but the Planning and Zoning Board has the
authority on the approval of the lakefront homes per normal review of lakefront criteria and these plans will
come in as the homes are developed.

The only issue with this zoning request is the impact on the adjacent property at 518 Country Club Drive
which is not part of the preliminary PLAT. If lot 9 remains zoned (R-1A), then the maximum FAR is 43%
and the maximum house size is 3900 sq. ft. and when the property is rezoned to (R-2), then the maximum
FAR is 55% and the maximum house size grows 1000 sq. ft. to just under 5,000 sq. ft.

Staff is suggesting a condition of approval to provide an appropriate transition and house sizes along
Country Club Drive changes from (R-1A) to (R-2) zoning. Staff is recommending averaging the maximum
43% FAR for (R-1A) lots and the maximum 55% for (R-2) lots which results in 49% FAR and then the
maximum house size for this new lot 9 at (R-2), would be 4,444 sq. ft. and would provide the appropriate
transition from (R-2) to (R-1A).

Ms. McGillis then asked if there were any questions from the Board, there were no questions.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION IS A CONDITION OF APPROVAL of the three requests with one condition:

1. in order to provide an appropriate transition and house sizes Country Club Drive changes from
(R-1A) to (R-2) zoning, this can be done by averaging the maxim 43% FAR for (R-1A) lots and the
maximum 55% for (R-2) lots which results in 49% FAR and then the maximum house size for this new lot 9
at (R-2), would be 4,444 sq. ft. and would provide the appropriate transition from (R-2) to (R-1A).

Tara Tedrow, Attorney at Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reed, PA, 215 North Eola Drive,
represented the applicant. Ms. Tedrow reiterated that the request is for an amendment and rezone as well
as amending some lot dimension on lots 4-9. She showed lot 524 Country Club Drive in the presentation
and pointed out that the project is consistent and compatible with the surrounding residential development
because it is all of a low density or of a single family residential zoning, (R-1A) and (R-2), the subdivision
under contract is zoned (R-2). The future land use for the surrounding area is zoned low density and single
family as well. Ms. Tedrow pointed out that the project will not increase any density issues in the area and
the criteria needed for approval have been satisfied and is line for staff's recommendation for approval.
She also agreed with staff’'s condition of approval to limit the FAR to 49% rather than 55% which brings
down the overall maximum house size to 4,444 sq. ft. would be permitted on the site if approved. The
presentation showed the proposed revised lot dimensions of lots 4-9 needed to accommodate the 20 ft.
access tract. Revisions allow for the surplus land to be used for the access tract.

Board Member Tom Sacha asked Ms. Tedrow what types of controls the developer would have for the
access strip, would there be a fence, and how will it be maintained?

Ms. Tedrow responded that the fencing allowed for the access tract will be per code, the final detail has not
been decided, but the access tract is not contemplated to be public access.

Mr. Sacha asked if there would be some type of control, not just an open lot. Ms. Tedrow confirmed the
access tract would have a method of control per code.

Dan Langley, Assistant City Attorney asked who owns the access tract for the lake; Ms. Tedrow responded
that the HOA owns and controls the access tract. The HOA information
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Ross Johnston asked if there was a maintenance agreement for the access tract as residents in the area
expressed concern about the area being overgrown. Ms. Tedrow confirmed that information on the HOA
and the maintenance agreement will be submitted with the final Plat.

Chairman Johnston asked if there was anyone in the audience who had questions regarding the issue.

David Robold, 612 Country Club Drive objected to zoning change at lot 9. He expressed concern regarding
future zoning issues and access tract was unnecessary, perhaps leading to more traffic in and out of the
area.

Ms. Tedrow was allowed an opportunity to rebut. She responded that access to the lake was not being
taken away from the existing homeowners as some residents at the last hearing were concerned that with
the new zoning, the access would be taken away. Ms. Tedrow also stated that the new design would be
more compatible and consistent with single family residential nature which is similar to Mr. Robold’s
existing home.

No one else wished to speak concerning the request. Public Hearing closed.

Chairman Johnston asked Mr. Briggs if the condition attached to the issue was related to the zoning of R-3.
Mr. Briggs confirmed this and added that the ramp for the access tract was under the jurisdiction of the
Lakes and Waterways Board, if anything were to be built, the residents would be given notice.

Motion made by Tom Sacha, seconded by Raymond Waugh for APPROVAL of Request of
Deshpande, Inc. to amend the future land use designation to low density residential on the property
at 524 Country Club Drive.

Motion carried unanimously with a 7-0 vote.

Motion made by Tom Sacha, seconded by Raymond Waugh for APPROVAL of Request of
Deshpande, Inc. to amend the official zoning map to change from single family residential ((R-1A))
to low density ((R-2)) district zoning on the property at 524 Country Club Drive to include the
request from staff to change the FAR of the property at 524 Country Club Drive.

Motion carried unanimously with a 7-0 vote.

Motion made by Tom Sacha, seconded by Ross Johnston for APPROVAL to amend their
preliminary subdivision plat encompassing the current lakefront properties at 524/532/600/604
Country Club Drive to revise the lot size dimensions of the proposed six lakefront lots and to
include a common area lakefront tract.

Motion carried unanimously with a 7-0 vote.
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 58 "“LAND DEVELOPMENT
CODE"” ARTICLE I, "COMPREHENSIVE PLAN” SO AS TO CHANGE THE
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
FUTURE LAND USE TO LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL ON THE
PROPERTY AT 524 COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE, MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED HEREIN, PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY
AND EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Winter Park City Commission adopted its Comprehensive Plan on
February 23, 2009 via Ordinance 2762-09, and

WHEREAS, Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, establishes a process for adoption of
comprehensive plans or plan amendments amending the future land use designation of
property; and

WHEREAS, this Comprehensive Plan amendment meets the criteria established by
Chapter 163 and 166, Florida Statutes; and pursuant to and in compliance with law,
notice has been given to Orange County and to the public by publication in a newspaper of
general circulation to notify the public of this proposed Ordinance and of public hearings
to be held; and

WHEREAS, the Winter Park Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as the designhated
Local Planning Agency, has reviewed and recommended adoption of the proposed
Comprehensive Plan amendment, having held an advertised public hearing on May 6,
2014, provided for participation by the public in the process, and rendered its
recommendations to the City Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Winter Park City Commission has reviewed the proposed Comprehensive
Plan amendment and held advertised public hearings on March 7, 2017 and March 27,
2017 and provided for public participation in the process in accordance with the
requirements of state law and the procedures adopted for public participation in the
planning process.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.Future Land Use Map Amendment. That Chapter 58 “Land
Development Code”, Article I, "Comprehensive Plan” future land use plan map is hereby
amended so as to change the future land use map designation from Single Family
Residential to Low Density Residential on the property at 524 Country Club Drive, more
particularly described as follows:

LORDS SUB P/89 THAT PART OF DESC: THAT PT OF LOT 4 LYING W OF E SHORE OF LAKE
KILLARNEY & BEG 215.56 FT W & 74.7 FT S OF NE COR LOT 4 RUN S 75 DEG W 185 FT
M/L TO WATERS EDGE SLY ALONG WATER 40 FT M/L E 198 FT M/L N 75 FT TO POB (LESS
PART ASSESSED TO LOTS IN KILLARNEY POINT DD 905/93) & (LESS BEG AT NW COR
LOT 4 RUN E 400 FT S 825 FT N 66 DEG W TO W LINE LOT 4 N TO POB) & (LESS FROM
SE COR OF NW1/4 OF SE1/4 SEC 1-22-29 RUN W 1229.5 FT N 240.17 FT N 58 DEGW 185
FT N 55 DEG W 300 FT FOR POB TH RUN N 55 DEG W 56.04 FT N 41 DEG W 20 FT S 48
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DEG W 225 FT TO PT IN LAKE RTN TO POB TH S 31 DEG W 225 FT TO PT IN LAKE NWLY
TO END 1ST COURSE) LYING E OF A LINE DESC AS COMM SE COR LOT 4 TH N89-38-57W
81.60 FT N89-39-52W 928.30 FT TO BEGINNING OF LINE TH RUN NOO0-04-19E 883.70 FT
N14-47-59W 22.80 FT N33-09-48W 15.10 FT N50-24-21W 34.70 FT NO0-03-22E 191.40
FT NOO-26-22E 203.80 FT TO END OF LINE

Property Tax ID # 01-22-29-5224-00-000

SECTION 2. Severability. If any Section or portion of a Section of this Ordinance
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or
impair the validity, force, or effect of any other Section or part of this Ordinance.

SECTION 3. Conflicts. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with any
of the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. Effective Date. An amendment adopted under this paragraph does
not become effective until 31 days after adoption. If timely challenged, an amendment
may not become effective until the state land planning agency or the Administration
Commission enters a final order determining that the adopted small scale development
amendment is in compliance.

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Commission of the City of Winter Park,

Florida, held in City Hall, Winter Park, on this day of , 2017.
Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 58 "“LAND DEVELOPMENT
CODE"” ARTICLE III, "ZONING” AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP SO
AS TO CHANGE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-1A) DISTRICT
ZONING TO LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) DISTRICT ZONING ON
THE PROPERTY AT 524 COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE, MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED HEREIN, PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the owners of property at 524 Country Club Drive have requested a Zoning
map amendment consistent with the amended Comprehensive Plan, and the requested
zoning text change will achieve conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the
property and such municipal zoning meets the criteria established by Chapter 166, Florida
Statutes and pursuant to and in compliance with law, notice has been given to Orange
County and to the public by publication in a newspaper of general circulation to notify the
public of this proposed Ordinance and of public hearings to be held; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Winter Park has recommended
approval of this Ordinance at their March 7, 2017 meeting; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Winter Park held a duly noticed public
hearing on the proposed zoning change set forth hereunder and considered findings and
advice of staff, citizens, and all interested parties submitting written and oral comments
and supporting data and analysis, and after complete deliberation, hereby finds the
requested change consistent with the City of Winter Park Comprehensive Plan and that
sufficient, competent, and substantial evidence supports the zoning change set forth
hereunder; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission hereby finds that this Ordinance serves a legitimate
government purpose and is in the best interests of the public health, safety, and welfare
of the citizens of Winter Park, Florida.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Official Zoning Map Amendment. That Chapter 58 "“Land
Development Code”, Article III, “"Zoning” and the Official Zoning Map is hereby amended
so as to change the zoning designation of Single Family Residential (R-1A) District to Low
Density Residential (R-2) District zoning on the property at 524 Country Club Drive, more
particularly described as follows:

LORDS SUB P/89 THAT PART OF DESC: THAT PT OF LOT 4 LYING W OF E SHORE OF LAKE
KILLARNEY & BEG 215.56 FT W & 74.7 FT S OF NE COR LOT 4 RUN S 75 DEG W 185 FT
M/L TO WATERS EDGE SLY ALONG WATER 40 FT M/L E 198 FT M/L N 75 FT TO POB (LESS
PART ASSESSED TO LOTS IN KILLARNEY POINT DD 905/93) & (LESS BEG AT NW COR
LOT 4 RUN E 400 FT S 825 FT N 66 DEG W TO W LINE LOT 4 N TO POB) & (LESS FROM
SE COR OF NW1/4 OF SE1/4 SEC 1-22-29 RUN W 1229.5 FT N 240.17 FT N 58 DEGW 185
FT N 55 DEG W 300 FT FOR POB TH RUN N 55 DEG W 56.04 FT N 41 DEG W 20 FT S 48
DEG W 225 FT TO PT IN LAKE RTN TO POB TH S 31 DEG W 225 FT TO PT IN LAKE NWLY
TO END 1ST COURSE) LYING E OF A LINE DESC AS COMM SE COR LOT 4 TH N89-38-57W
81.60 FT N89-39-52W 928.30 FT TO BEGINNING OF LINE TH RUN NOO-04-19E 883.70 FT
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N14-47-59W 22.80 FT N33-09-48W 15.10 FT N50-24-21W 34.70 FT NO0-03-22E 191.40
FT NO0O-26-22E 203.80 FT TO END OF LINE

Property Tax ID # 01-22-29-5224-00-000

SECTION 2. Consent to Development Restrictions Imposed. In response to
the consent of the property owner, the City thereby establishes as a condition of approval
of this Ordinance, to run with title to the land that notwithstanding the provisions of R-2
zoning, the total size or floor area of the single family home per the City’s zoning
definition of floor area ratio may not exceed 49% floor area ratio or 4,444 square feet.
Such development restriction may only be released or modified by a subsequent action of
the City Commission.

SECTION 3. Severability. If any Section or portion of a Section of this Ordinance
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or
impair the validity, force, or effect of any other Section or part of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4. Conflicts. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with any
of the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the
effective date of Ordinance . If Ordinance does not become
effective, then this Ordinance shall be null and void.

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Commission of the City of Winter Park,
Florida, held in City Hall, Winter Park, on this day of , 2017.

Mayor Steve Leary
Attest:

City Clerk
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city commission agenda item

Item type Public Hearing meeting date  March 27, 2017
prepared by Donald Marcotte/Lena Petersen | approved by City Manager
department Public Works City Attorney
division Project & Grant Management |:| N|A
board [ Jyes[ Jno [x]N|A final vote
approval

Cherish and sustain city's extraordinary quality of life.

vision [ ] Plan growth through a collaborative process that protects
themes city’s scale and character.
Enhance city's brand through flourishing arts and culture.

|:| Build and embrace local institutions for lifelong learning
and future generations.

subject

Authorizing Resolution and Florida Department of Transportation Joint Participation
Agreement for Section 5309 earmark grant funding in the amount of $614,968 for
Sunrail corridor safety and hazard mitigation.

motion | recommendation

Staff recommends approval of Resolution and execution of the Joint
Participation Agreement for $614,968 Section 5309 funding with FDOT.

background

In their Safety and Security Certification Hazard Analysis process, FDOT identified six
areas and two crossings to receive safety hazard mitigation: installation of fencing
and vegetation around the station platform area and along the track from Garfield to
Fairbanks, eight-foot sidewalk for corridor pedestrian connectivity, and two traffic-
arm gate crossing systems - one at N. New York and one at W. Lyman.
alternatives | other considerations

Safety and security mitigation required.

fiscal impact

100% funding by FDOT.
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WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation and the City of Winter
Park, Florida, desire to facilitate mitigation of railroad corridor trespass and safety hazards, and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation has requested the City of
Winter Park, Florida, to execute and deliver to the State of Florida Department of
Transportation the Joint Participation Agreement, Financial Project Number 412994-3-52-09 for

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, TO EXECUTE A PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION JOINT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT WITH
THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO
PROVIDE SECTION 5309 EARMARK GRANT FUNDING ENABLING
THE CITY OF WINTER PARK TO MITIGATE TRESPASSING AND
SAFETY HAZARDS.

the aforementioned project,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Winter Park,
Florida that Randy Knight, City Manager, is hereby authorized to make, execute, and deliver to
the State of Florida Department of Transportation the Joint Participation Agreement for the

aforementioned project.

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Commission of the City of Winter Park held in

City Hall, Winter Park on this 27th day of March, 2017.

ATTEST:

Steve Leary, Mayor

Cynthia S. Bonham, City Clerk
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Financial Project Number(s):
(item-segment-phasje-sequence) ( ) Fund: DFTA FLAIR Category: 088774
412994-3-52-09 Function: 215 Object Code: 780000
- Federal Number:  FL-04-0049-02 Org. Code: 55310000933
Contract Number: ~ DUNS Number: 80-939-7102 Vendor No.: F596000454017
CFDA Number: 20.005 ~ Agency DUNS No. 077596393 CSFA Number:  n/fa
Federal Transit Capital investment Grants, New Starts, Small Starts
CFDA Title: and Core Capacity B CSFA Title: v/a
THIS JOINT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (*Agreement’), made and entered into this day of

, , by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,

an agency of the State of Florida, (“Department”), and City of Winter Park, 401 South Park Avenue, Winter Park, FL

32789 (“Agency”’). The Department and Agency agree that all terms of this Agreement will be completed on or before

December 31, 2017 and this Agreement will expire unless a time extension is provided in accordance with Section 16.00.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Agency has the authority to enter into said Agreement and to undertake the Project hereinafter described,
and the Department has been granted the authority to function adequately in all areas of appropriate jurisdiction including
the implementation of an integrated and balanced transportation system and is authorized under 341.053, Florida
Statutes, to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and representations herein, the parties agree
as follows:

1.00 Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the Department’s participation in

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Section 5309 earmark grant funding to enable the City of Winter Park to mitigate
trespassing and safety hazards identified during the Safety and Security Certification Hazard Analysis process. Approximately
six (6) areas and two crossings have been identified. Mitigation will include installation of vegetation and/or four-foot tall fencing
around the platform area and along the track corridor beginning south of Garfield Avenue to Fairbanks Avenue. The vegetation
landscaping and fence barrier will increase pedestrian safety around the corridor as well as acting as a noise barrier. Installation
of a four-quad gate system (SSM2) at N. New York Avenue crossing and a four-quad gate system (SSM2) at W. Lyman Avenue
crossing. An eight-foot wide sidewalk will be constructed from New England Avenue to Fairbanks Avenue for pedestrian
connectivity to the SunRail platform.

and as further described in Exhibit "A” attached to and incorporated into this Agreement (“Project”), and to provide
Departmental financial assistance to the Agency, state the terms and conditions upon which such assistance will be
provided, and to set forth the manner in which the Project will be undertaken and completed.

1.10 Exhibits. A, B, C, D are attached and incorporated into this Agreement.
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2.00 Accomplishment of the Project:

2.10 General Requirements. The Agency shall commence, and complete the Project, with all practical dispatch, in a
sound, economical, and efficient manner, and in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, and all applicable laws.

2.20 Pursuant to Federal, State, and Local Law. In the event that any election, referendum, approval, permit, notice, or
other proceeding or authorization is requisite under applicable law to enable the Agency to enter into this Agreement or to
undertake the Project, or to observe, assume or carry out any of the provisions of the Agreement, the Agency will initiate
and consummate, as provided by law, all actions necessary with respect to any such matters so requisite.

2.30 Funds of the Agency. The Agency shall initiate and prosecute to completion all proceedings necessary, including
federal aid requirements, to enable the Agency to provide the necessary funds for completion of the Project.

2.40 Submission of Proceedings, Contracts and Other Documents. The Agency shall submit to the Department
such data, reports, records, contracts and other documents relating to the Project as the Department may require as
listed in Exhibit "C" attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. The Department has the option to require an
activity report on a quarterly basis. The activity report will include details of the progress of the Project towards
completion.

3.00 Total Project Cost. The total estimated cost of the Project is $614.968.00. This amount is based upon the estimate
summarized in Exhibit "B" attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. The Agency agrees to bear all expenses in
excess of the total estimated cost of the Project and any deficits involved.

4.00 Project Costs Participation and Eligibility:

4.10 Department Participation. The Department agrees to maximum participation, including contingencies, in the
Project in the amount of $614,968.00 as detailed in Exhibit "B", or in an amount equal to the percentage(s) of total cost
shown in Exhibit "B", whichever is less.

411 Agency Participation (Non-State Sources). The Agency agrees to minimum participation, including
contingencies, in the Project in the amount of $0.00 as detailed in Exhibit "B", or in an amount equal to the percentage(s)
of the total cost shown in Exhibit "B", whichever is more.

4.12 Federal Awards. The Agency, a non-federal entity, [X] is [] is not a recipient of a federal award, as detailed in
Exhibit "B."

4.20 Project Cost Eligibility. Project costs eligible for State participation will be allowed only from the effective date of
this Agreement. It is understood that State participation in eligible Project costs is subject to:

a) Legislative approval of the Department's appropriation request in the adopted work program year that the
Project is scheduled to be committed;

b) Availability of funds as stated in Section 15.00 of-this Agreement; Approval of all plans, specifications,
contracts or other obligating documents as required by the Department, and all other terms of this
Agreement;

c) Department approval of costs in excess of the approved funding or attributable to actions which have not
received the required approval of the Department and all other terms of this Agreement;

d) Department approval of the Project scope and budget (Exhibits “A” and “B") at the time appropriation
authority becomes available.
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4.30 Front End Funding. Front end funding [ ] is [X is not applicable. If applicable, the Department may initially pay
100% of the total allowable incurred Project costs up to an amount equal to its total share of participation as shown in
paragraph 4.10.

5.00 Project Budget and Payment Provisions:

5.10 The Project Budget. Prior to the execution of this Agreement, a Project schedule of funding shall be prepared by
the Agency and approved by the Department. The Agency shall maintain said schedule of funding, carry out the Project,
and shall incur obligations against and make disbursements of Project funds only in conformity with the latest approved
schedule of funding for the Project, attached and incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit “B.” The schedule of
funding may be revised by execution of a Supplemental Agreement between the Department and the Agency. The
Agency acknowledges and agrees that funding for this Project may be reduced upon determination of the Agency’s
contract award amount. If revised, a copy of the Supplemental Agreement shall be forwarded to the Department's
Comptroller. No increase or decrease shall be effective unless it complies with fund participation requirements of this
Agreement and is approved by the Department's Comptroller.

5.20 Payment Provisions. Unless otherwise ailowed, payment will begin in the year the Project or Project phase is
scheduled in the work program as of the date of the Agreement. Payment will be made for actual costs incurred as of the
date the invoice is submitted with the final payment due upon receipt of a final invoice. Payment shall be made only after
receipt and approval of goods and services uniess advance payments are authorized by the Chief Financial Officer of the
State of Florida under Chapters 215 and 216, Florida Statutes. If the Department determines that the performance of the
Agency is unsatisfactory, the Department shall notify the Agency of the deficiency to be corrected, which correction shall
be made within a time-frame to be specified by the Department. The Agency shall, within sixty (60) days after notice from
the Department, provide the Department with a corrective action plan describing how the Agency will address all issues
of Agreement non-performance, unacceptable performance, failure to meet the minimum performance levels, deliverable
deficiencies, or Agreement non-compliance. If the corrective action plan is unacceptable to the Department, the Agency
shall be assessed a non-performance retainage equivalent to 10% of the total invoice amount. The retainage shall be
applied to the invoice for the then-current billing period. The retainage shall be withheld until the Agency resolves the
deficiency. If the deficiency is subsequently resolved, the Agency may bill the Department for the retained amount during
the next billing period. If the Agency is unable to resolve the deficiency, the funds retained may be forfeited at the end of
the Agreement's term.

6.00 Accounting Records:

6.10 Establishment and Maintenance of Accounting Records. The Agency shall establish for the Project, in
conformity with requirements established by Department's program guidelines/procedures and "Principles for State and
Local Governments”, 2 CFR Part 225, separate accounts to be maintained within its existing accounting system or
establish independent accounts. Such accounts are referred to herein collectively as the "Project account." Records of
costs incurred under terms of this Agreement shall be maintained in the Project account and made available upon request
to the Department at all times during the period of this Agreement and for five (5) years after final payment is made.
Copies of these documents and records shall be furnished to the Department upon request. Records of costs incurred
include the Agency's general accounting records and the Project records, together with supporting documents and
records, of the Agency and all sub-consultants performing work on the Project and all other records of the Agency and
sub-consultants considered necessary by the Department for a proper audit of costs. If any litigation, claim, or audit is
started before the expiration of the five (5) year period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit
findings involving the records have been resolved.

6.20 Costs Incurred for the Project. The Agency shall charge to the Project account ali eligible costs of the Project.

Costs in excess of the latest approved budget or atiributable to actions which have not received the required approval of
the Department shall not be considered eligible costs.
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6.30 Documentation of Project Costs. All costs charged to the Project, including any approved services contributed
by the Agency or others, shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers
evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charges.

6.40 Checks, Orders, and Vouchers. Any check or order drawn by the Agency with respect to any item which is or will
be chargeable against the Project account will be drawn only in accordance with a properly signed voucher then on file
in the office of the Agency stating in proper detail the purpose for which such check or order is drawn. All checks, payrolls,
invoices, contracts, vouchers, orders, or other accounting documents pertaining in whole or in part to the Project shall
be clearly identified, readily accessible, and, to the extent feasible, kept separate and apart from all other such
documents.

6.50 Audits. The administration of Federal or State resources awarded through the Department to the Agency by this
Agreement may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Department. The following requirements do not limit the
authority of the Department to conduct or arrange for the conduct of additional audits or evaluations of Federal awards or
State financial assistance or limit the authority of any state agency inspector general, the State of Florida Auditor General,
or any other state official. The Agency shall comply with all audit and audit reporting requirements as specified below.

1. Federal Funded

a) In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit
Requirements, monitoring procedures may include but not be limited to on-site visits by Department staff
and/or other procedures including, reviewing any required performance and financial reports, following
up, ensuring corrective action, and issuing management decisions on weaknesses found through audits
when those findings pertain to Federal awards provided through the Department by this Agreement. By
entering into this Agreement, the Agency agrees to comply and cooperate fully with any monitoring
procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department. The Agency further agrees to comply and
cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the Department,
State of Florida Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or State of Florida Auditor Generai.

b) The Agency, a non-Federal entity as defined by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements, as a
subrecipient of a Federal award awarded by the Department through this Agreement is subject to the
following requirements:

i In the event the Agency expends a total amount of Federal awards equal to or in excess of
the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements, the Agency
must have a Federal single or program-specific audit conducted for such fiscal year in
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements. Exhibit
A, B, C, D to this Agreement provides the required Federal award identification information
needed by the Agency to further comply with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F
— Audit Requirements. In determining Federal awards expended in a fiscal year, the Agency
must consider all sources of Federal awards based on when the activity related to the Federal
award occurs, including the Federal award provided through the Department by this
Agreement. The determination of amounts of Federal awards expended should be in
accordance with the guidelines established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit
Requirements. An audit conducted by the State of Florida Auditor General in accordance with
the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements, will meet the requirements
of this part.

iii. In connection with the audit requirements, the Agency shall fulfill the requirements relative to
the auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements.
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In the event the Agency expends less than the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F ~- Audit Requirements, in Federal awards, the Agency is exempt from Federal audit
requirements for that fiscal year. However, the Agency must provide a single audit exemption
statement to the Department at FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us no later than nine months
after the end of the Agency’s audit period for each applicable audit year. In the event the
Agency expends less than the threshold established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit
Requirements, in Federal awards in a fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements, the cost
of the audit must be paid from non-Federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be
paid from the Agency’s resources obtained from other than Federal entities).

The Agency must electronically submit to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) at
https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/ the audit reporting package as required by 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements, within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of
the auditor's report(s) or nine months after the end of the audit period. The FAC is the
repository of record for audits required by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements.
However, the Department requires a copy of the audit reporting package also be submitted to
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the
auditor’s report(s) or nine months after the end of the audit period as required by 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements.

Within six months of acceptance of the audit report by the FAC, the Department will review
the Agency's audit reporting package, including corrective action plans and management
letters, to the extent necessary to determine whether timely and appropriate action on all
deficiencies has been taken pertaining to the Federal award provided through the Department
by this Agreement. If the Agency fails to have an audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR
Part 200, Subpart F — Audit Requirements, the Department may impose additional conditions
to remedy noncompliance. If the Department determines that noncompliance cannot be
remedied by imposing additional conditions, the Department may take appropriate actions to
enforce compliance, which actions may include but not be limited to the following:

1. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the Agency
or more severe enforcement action by the Department;

2. Disallow (deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or part of the
cost of the activity or action not in compliance;

3. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Federal award;

4. Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 CFR Part 180 and
Federal awarding agency regulations (or in the case of the Department, recommend
such a proceeding be initiated by the Federal awarding agency);

5. Withhold further Federal awards for the Project or program;

6. Take other remedies that may be legally available.

As a condition of receiving this Federal award, the Agency shall permit the Department, or its
designee, the CFO or State of Florida Auditor General access to the Agency’'s records
including financial statements, the independent auditor’'s working papers and project records
as necessary. Records related to unresolved audit findings, appeals or litigation shall be
retained until the action is complete or the dispute is resolved.
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vii.  The Department’s contact information for requirements under this part is as follows:

Office of Comptroller, MS 24

605 Suwannee Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us

2. State Funded

a) Inaddition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, monitoring
procedures to monitor the Agency’s use of state financial assistance may include but not be limited to on-
site visits by Department staff and/or other procedures including, reviewing any required performance
and financial reports, following up, ensuring corrective action, and issuing management decisions on
weaknesses found through audits when those findings pertain to state financial assistance awarded
through the Department by this Agreement. By entering into this Agreement, the Agency agrees to comply
and cooperate fully with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department.
The Agency further agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or
audits deemed necessary by the Department, the Department of Financial Services (DFS) or State of
Florida Auditor General.

b) The Agency, a nonstate entity as defined by Section 215.97(2)(m), Florida Statutes, as a recipient of state
financial assistance awarded by the Department through this Agreement is subject to the following
requirements:

i. In the event the Agency meets the audit threshold requirements established by Section
215.97, Florida Statutes, the Agency must have a State single or project-specific audit
conducted for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes; applicable
rules of the Department of Financial Services; and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental
entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. Exhibit
A, B, C D to this Agreement indicates state financial assistance awarded through the
Department by this Agreement needed by the Agency to further comply with the requirements
of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes. In determining the state financial assistance expended in
a fiscal year, the Agency shall consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state
financial assistance received from the Department by this Agreement, other state agencies
and other nonstate entities. State financial assistance does not include Federal direct or pass-
through awards and resources received by a nonstate entity for Federal program matching
requirements.

ii. In connection with the audit requirements, the Agency shall ensure that the audit complies
with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), Florida Statutes. This includes submission of a
financial reporting package as defined by Section 215.97(2)(e), Florida Statutes, and Chapters
10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules
of the Auditor General.

iiii. In the event the Agency does not meet the audit threshold requirements established by
Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the Agency is exempt for such fiscal year from the state
single audit requirements of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes. However, the Agency must
provide a single audit exemption statement to the Department at
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us no later than nine months after the end of the Agency’s audit
period for each applicable audit year. In the event the Agency does not meet the audit
threshold requirements established by Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, in a fiscal year and
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elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, Florida
Statutes, the cost of the audit must be paid from the Agency’s resources (i.e., the cost of such
an audit must be paid from the Agency’s resources obtained from other than State entities).

In accordance with Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-
profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, copies of financial reporting packages
required by this Agreement shall be submitted to:

Florida Department of Transportation
Office of Comptroller, MS 24

605 Suwannee Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0405
FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state.fl.us

And

State of Florida Auditor General

Local Government Audits/342

111 West Madison Street, Room 401
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1450

Email: flaudgen localgovt@aud.state.fl.us

Any copies of financial reporting packages, reports or other information required to be
submitted to the Department shall be submitted timely in accordance with Section 215.97,
Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and
for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as applicable.

The Agency, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department for audits done
in accordance with Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-
profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should indicate the date the reporting
package was delivered to the Agency in correspondence accompanying the reporting
package.

Upon receipt, and within six months, the Department will review the Agency's financial
reporting package, including corrective action plans and management letters, to the extent
necessary to determine whether timely and appropriate corrective action on all deficiencies
has been taken pertaining to the state financial assistance provided through the Department
by this Agreement. If the Agency fails to have an audit conducted consistent with Section
215.97, Florida Statutes, the Department may take appropriate corrective action to enforce
compliance.

As a condition of receiving state financial assistance, the Agency shall permit the Department,
or its designee, DFS or the Auditor General access to the Agency’s records including financial
statements, the independent auditor's working papers and project records as necessary.
Records related to unresolved audit findings, appeals or litigation shall be retained until the
action is complete or the dispute is resolved.
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3. The Agency shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of this Agreement for
a period of five years from the date the audit report is issued and shall allow the Department, or its designee,
DFS or State of Florida Auditor General access to such records upon request. The Agency shall ensure that
the audit working papers are made available to the Department, or its designee, DFS or State of Florida
Auditor General upon request for a period of five years from the date the audit report is issued unless extended
in writing by the Department.

6.60 Insurance. Execution of this Agreement constitutes a certification that the Agency has and will maintain the ability
to repair or replace any Project equipment or facilities in the event of loss or damage due to any accident or casualty for
the useful life of such equipment or facilities. In the event of the loss of such equipment or facilities, the Agency shall
either replace the equipment or facilities or reimburse the Department to the extent of its interest in the lost equipment
or facility. The Department may waive or modify this section as appropriate.

7.00 Requisitions and Payments:

7.10 Action by the Agency. In order to obtain any Department funds, the Agency shall file with the Department of
Transportation, District Five Public Transportation Office 133 South Semoran Blvd., Orlando. FL, 32801, its requisition
on a form or forms prescribed by the Department, and any other data pertaining to the Project account (as defined in
Paragraph 6.10 hereof) to justify and support the payment requisitions.

7.11 Deliverables. The Agency shall provide the following quantifiable, measurable and verifiable units of deliverables
as established in Exhibit "A." Each deliverable must specify the required minimum level of service to be performed and
the criteria for evaluating successful completion.

7.12 Invoices. Invoices for fees or other compensation for services or expenses shall be submitted in detail sufficient for
a proper pre-audit and post-audit thereof, based on the quantifiable, measurable and verifiable units of deliverables as
established in Exhibit "A." Deliverables must be received and accepted in writing by the Department's Project Manager
prior to payments.

7.13 Supporting Documentation. Supporting documentation must establish that the deliverables were received and
accepted in writing by the Department and that the required minimum level of service to be performed based on the
criteria for evaluating successful completion as specified in Section 2.00 and Exhibit "A" has been met.

7.14 Travel Expenses. Invoices for any travel expenses by the Agency shall be submitted in accordance with Section
112.061, Florida Statutes, and shall be submitted on the Department's Contractor Travel Form No. 300-000-06. The
Department may establish rates lower than the maximum provided in Chapter 112.061, Florida Statutes.

7.15 Property Acquisition. For real property acquired, submit:

a) The date the Agency acquired the real property.

b) A statement by the Agency certifying that the Agency has acquired said real property, and actual
consideration paid for real property.

c) A statement by the Agency certifying that the appraisal and acquisition of the real property together with
any attendant relocation of occupants was accomplished in compliance with all federal laws, rules and
procedures required by any federal oversight agency and with all state laws, rules and procedures that may
apply to the Agency acquiring the real property.

7.20 The Department's Obligations. Subject to other provisions of this Agreement, the Department will honor requests

for reimbursement to the Agency pursuant to this Agreement. However, notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, the Department may elect by notice in writing not to make a payment if:
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a) The Agency shall have made misrepresentation of a material nature in its application, or any supplement
or amendment to its application, or with respect to any document or data furnished with its application or
pursuant to this Agreement;

b) There is any pending litigation with respect to the performance by the Agency of any of its duties or
obligations which may jeopardize or adversely affect the Project, the Agreement, or payments to the Project;

c) The Agency shall have taken any action pertaining to the Project which, under this Agreement, requires the
approval of the Department or has made related expenditures or incurred related obligations without having
been advised by the Department that same are approved;

d) There has been any violation of the conflict of interest provisions contained in this Agreement;

e) The Agency has been determined by the Department to be in default under any of the provisions of the
Agreement; or

f)  Any federal agency providing federal financial assistance to the Project suspends or terminates federal
financial assistance to the Project. In the event of suspension or termination of federal financial assistance,
the Agency will reimburse the Department for all disallowed costs, including any and all federal financial
assistance as detailed in Exhibit "B."

7.30 Disallowed Costs. In determining the amount of the payment, the Department will exclude all Project costs incurred
by the Agency prior to the effective date of this Agreement, after the expiration date of this Agreement, costs which are
not provided for in the latest approved scope and budget for the Project, costs attributable to goods or services received
under a contract or other arrangements which have not been approved by the Department, and costs invoiced prior to
receipt of annual notification of fund availability.

7.40 Payment Offset. If, after Project complietion, any claim is made by the Department resulting from an audit or for
work or services performed pursuant to this Agreement, the Department may offset such amount from payments due for
work or services done under any public transportation joint participation agreement which it has with the Agency owing
such amount if, upon demand, payment of the amount is not made within sixty (60) days to the Department. Offsetting
amounts shall not be considered a breach of contract by the Department.

8.00 Termination or Suspension of Project:

8.10 Termination or Suspension Generally. If the Agency abandons or, before completion, finally discontinues the
Project; or for any other reason, the commencement, prosecution, or timely completion of the Project by the Agency is
rendered improbable, infeasible, impossible, or illegal, the Department will, by written notice to the Agency, suspend any
or all of its obligations under this Agreement until such time as the event or condition resulting in such suspension has
ceased or been corrected, or the Department may terminate any or all of its obligations under this Agreement.

8.11 Action Subsequent to Notice of Termination or Suspension. Upon receipt of any final termination or suspension
notice under this Section 8, the Agency shall proceed promptly to carry out the actions required in such notice, which may
include any or all of the following: (1) necessary action to terminate or suspend, as the case may be, Project activities and
contracts and such other action as may be required or desirable to keep to the minimum the costs upon the basis of which
the financing is to be computed; (2) furnish a statement of the Project activities and contracts, and other undertakings the
cost of which are otherwise includable as Project costs; and, (3) remit to the Department such portion of the financing and
any advance payment previously received as is determined by the Department to be due under the provisions of the
Agreement. The termination or suspension shail be carried out in conformity with the latest schedule, plan, and budget as
approved by the Department or upon the basis of terms and conditions imposed by the Department upon the failure of the
Agency to furnish the schedule, plan, and budget within a reasonable time. The approval of a remittance by the Agency or
the closing out of federal financial participation in the Project shall not constitute a waiver of any claim which the Department
may otherwise have arising out of this Agreement.
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8.12 Access to Documents and Materials. The Department reserves the right to unilaterally cancel this Agreement for
refusal by the Agency, contractor, sub-contractor, or materials vendor to comply with the provisions of Chapter 119,
Florida Statutes.

9.00 Audit and Inspection. The Agency shall permit, and shall require its contractors to permit, the Department's
authorized representatives to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, records; and to audit the books, records and accounts
pertaining to the financing and development of the Project.

10.00 Contracts of the Agency:

10.10 Third Party Agreements. The Department specifically reserves the right to review and approve any and all third
party contracts with respect to the Project before the Agency executes or obligates itself in any manner requiring the
disbursement of Department funds, including consultant, purchase of commodities contracts or amendments thereto. If
the Department chooses to review and approve third party contracts for this Project and the Agency fails to obtain such
approval, that shall be sufficient cause for nonpayment by the Department as provided in Section 7.20(c). The
Department specifically reserves unto itself the right to review the qualifications of any consultant or contractor and to
approve or disapprove the employment of the same. If Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds are used in the Project,
the Department must exercise the right to third party contract review.

10.20 Procurement of Personal Property and Services:

10.21 Compliance with Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act. It is understood and agreed by the parties to this
Agreement that participation by the Department in a project with an Agency, where said project involves a consultant
contract for engineering, architecture or surveying services, is contingent on the Agency complying in full with provisions
of Chapter 287.055, Florida Statutes, Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act, the federal Brooks Act, 23 CFR 172,
and 23 U.S.C. 112.. At the discretion of the Department, the Agency will involve the Department in the Consultant
Selection Process for all projects funded under this Agreement. In all cases, the Agency's Attorney shall certify to the
Department that selection has been accomplished in compliance with Chapter 287.055, Florida Statutes, the Consultants'
Competitive Negotiation Act and the federal Brooks Act.

10.22 Procurement of Commodities or Contractual Services. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that
participation by the Department in a project with an Agency, where said project involves the purchase of commodities or
contractual services or the purchasing of capital equipment or the constructing and equipping of facilities, which includes
engineering, design, and/or construction activities, where purchases or costs exceed the Threshold Amount for
CATEGORY TWO per Chapter 287.017, Florida Statutes, is contingent on the Agency complying in full with the
provisions of Chapter 287.057, Florida Statutes. The Agency's Attorney shall certify to the Department that the purchase
of commodities or contractual services has been accomplished in compliance with Chapter 287.057, Florida Statutes. It
shall be the sole responsibility of the Agency to ensure that any obligations made in accordance with this Section comply
with the current threshold limits. Contracts, purchase orders, task orders, construction change orders, or any other
agreement that would result in exceeding the current budget contained in Exhibit “B”, or that is not consistent with the
Project description and scope of services contained in Exhibit “A” must be approved by the Department prior to Agency
execution. Failure to obtain such approval, and subsequent execution of an amendment to the Agreement if required,
shall be sufficient cause for nonpayment by the Department as provided in Section 7.20(c).

10.30 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy and Obligation. It is the policy of the Department that
DBE’s, as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, as amended, shall have the opportunity to participate in the performance of
contracts financed in whole or in part with Department funds under this Agreement. The DBE requirements of applicable
federal and state laws and regulations apply to this Agreement.

The Agency and its contractors agree to ensure that DBE's have the opportunity to participate in the performance of this
Agreement. In this regard, all recipients and contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance
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with applicable federal and state laws and regulations to ensure that the DBE’s have the opportunity to compete for and
perform contracts. The Agency and its contractors and subcontractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
national origin or sex in the award and performance of contracts, entered pursuant to this Agreement.

10.40 Procurement of Construction Services. If the Project is procured pursuant to Chapter 255 for construction
services and at the time of the competitive solicitation for the Project 50 percent or more of the cost of the Project is to
be paid from state-appropriated funds, then the Agency must comply with the requirements of Section 255.099(1), Florida
Statutes.

11.00 Restrictions, Prohibitions, Controls, and Labor Provisions:

11.10 Equal Employment Opportunity. In connection with the carrying out of any project, the Agency shall not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, creed, color, sex or national origin.
The Agency will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment, without regard to their race, age, creed, color, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be
limited to, the following: Employment upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Agency
shail insert the foregoing provision modified only to show the particular contractual relationship in all its contracts in
connection with the development or operation of the Project, except contracts for standard commercial supplies or raw
materials, and shall require all such contractors to insert a similar provision in all subcontracts, except subcontracts for
standard commercial supplies or raw materials. When the Project involves installation, construction, demolition, removal,
site improvement, or similar work, the Agency shall post, in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for
employment for Project work, notices to be provided by the Department setting forth the provisions of the nondiscrimination
clause.

11.20 Title VI - Civil Rights Act of 1964. Execution of this Agreement constitutes a certification that the Agency will
comply with all the requirements imposed by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d, et seq.), the
Regulations of the Federal Department of Transportation issued thereunder, and the assurance by the Agency pursuant
thereto.

11.30 Title VIII - Civil Rights Act of 1968. Execution of this Agreement constitutes a certification that the Agency will
comply with all the requirements imposed by Title Vil of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 3601, et seq.), which
among other things, prohibits discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, national origin, creed, sex, and
age.

11.40 Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA). Execution of this Agreement constitutes a certification that the
Agency will comply with all the requirements imposed by the ADA (42 U.S.C. 12102, et seq.), the regulations of the federal
government issued thereunder, and the assurance by the Agency pursuant thereto.

11.50 Prohibited Interests. The Agency shall not enter into a contract or arrangement in connection with the Project or
any property included or planned to be included in the Project, with any officer, director or employee of the Agency, or
any business entity of which the officer, director or employee or the officer's, director's or employee's spouse or child is
an officer, partner, director, or proprietor or in which such officer, director or employee or the officer's, director's or
employee's spouse or child, or any combination of them, has a material interest.

a) “Material Interest” means direct or indirect ownership of more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of
any business entity.

b) The Agency shall not enter into any contract or arrangement in connection with the Project or any property
included or planned to be included in the Project, with any person or entity who was represented before the
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Agency by any person who at any time during the immediately preceding two (2) years was an officer,
director or employee of the Agency.

c) The provisions of this subsection shall not be applicable to any agreement between the Agency and its fiscal
depositories, any agreement for utility services the rates for which are fixed or controlled.by the government,
or any agreement between the Agency and an agency of state government.

11.60 Interest of Members of, or Delegates to, Congress or Legislature. No member or delegate to the Congress of
the United States, or the State of Florida legislature, shall be admitted to any share or part of the Agreement or any
benefit arising therefrom.

12.00 Miscellaneous Provisions:

12.10 Environmental Regulations. Execution of this Agreement constitutes a certification by the Agency that the Project
will be carried out in conformance with all applicable environmental regulations including the securing of any applicable
permits. The Agency will be solely responsible for any liability in the event of non-compliance with applicable
environmental regulations, including the securing of any applicable permits, and will reimburse the Department for any
foss incurred in connection therewith.

12.20 Department Not Obligated to Third Parties. The Department shall not be obligated or liable hereunder to any
party other than the Agency.

12.30 When Rights and Remedies Not Waived. In no event shall the making by the Department of any payment to the
Agency constitute or be construed as a waiver by the Department of any breach of covenant or any default which may
then exist, on the part of the Agency, and the making of such payment by the Department while any such breach or
default shall exist shall in no way impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the Department with respect to
such breach or default.

12.40 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be
affected. In such an instance the remainder would then continue to conform to the terms and requirements of applicable
law.

12.50 Bonus or Commission. By execution of the Agreement the Agency represents that it has not paid and, also,
agrees not to pay, any bonus or commission for the purpose of obtaining an approval of its application for the financing
hereunder.

12.60 State or Territorial Law. Nothing in the Agreement shall require the Agency to observe or enforce compliance
with any provision thereof, perform any other act or do any other thing in contravention of any applicable State law:
Provided, that if any of the provisions of the Agreement violate any applicable State law, the Agency will at once notify
the Department in writing in order that appropriate changes and modifications may be made by the Department and the
Agency to the end that the Agency may proceed as soon as possible with the Project.

12.70 Use and Maintenance of Project Facilities and Equipment. The Agency agrees that the Project facilities and
equipment will be used by the Agency to provide or support public transportation for the period of the useful life of such
facilities and equipment as determined in accordance with general accounting principles and approved by the
Department. The Agency further agrees to maintain the Project facilities and equipment in good working order for the
useful life of said facilities or equipment.

12.71 Property Records. The Agency agrees to maintain property records, conduct physical inventories and develop
control systems as required by 49 CFR Part 18, when applicable.
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12.80 Disposal of Project Facilities or Equipment. If the Agency disposes of any Project facility or equipment during
its useful life for any purpose except its replacement with like facility or equipment for public transportation use, the
Agency will comply with the terms of 49 CFR Part 18 relating to property management standards. The Agency agrees to
remit to the Department a proportional amount of the proceeds from the disposal of the facility or equipment. Said
proportional amount shall be determined on the basis of the ratio of the Department financing of the facility or equipment
as provided in this Agreement. The Agency must remit said proportional amount to the Department within one (1) year
after the official date of disposal.

12.90 Contractual Indemnity. To the extent provided by Section 768.28, Florida Statues, the Agency shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the Department and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage,
cost, charge, or expense arising out of any act, error, omission, or negligent act by the Agency, its agents, or employees,
during the performance of the Agreement, except that neither the Agency, its agents, or its employees will be liable under
this paragraph for any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge, or expense arising out of any act, error, omission, or negligent act
by the Department or any of its officers, agents, or employees during the performance of the Agreement. Nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed as a waiver by the Agency of any sovereign immunity protections that may be provided by
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

When the Department receives a notice of claim for damages that may have been caused by the Agency in the
performance of services required under this Agreement, the Department willimmediately forward the claim to the Agency.
The Agency and the Department will evaluate the claim and report their findings to each other within fourteen (14) working
days and will jointly discuss options in defending the claim. After reviewing the claim, the Department will determine
whether to require the participation of the Agency in the defense of the claim or to require that the Agency defend the
Department in such claim as described in this section. The Department's failure to promptly notify the Agency of a claim
shall not act as a waiver of any right herein to require the participation in or defense of the claim by Agency. The
Department and the Agency will each pay its own expenses for the evaluation, settlement negotiations, and trial, if any.
However, if only one party participates in the defense of the claim at trial, that party is responsible for all expenses at
trial.

13.00 Plans and Specifications. In the event that this Agreement involves the purchasing of capital equipment or the
constructing and equipping of facilities, where plans and specifications have been developed, the Agency shall provide
an Engineer's Certification that certifies Project compliance as listed below, or in Exhibit “C” if applicable. For the plans,
specifications, construction contract documents, and any and all other engineering, construction, and contractual
documents produced by the Engineer, hereinafter collectively referred to as “plans”, the Agency will certify that:
a) All plans comply with federal, state, and professional standards as well as minimum standards established
by the Department as applicable;
b) The plans were developed in accordance with sound engineering and design principles, and with generally
accepted professional standards;
c) The plans are consistent with the intent of the Project as defined in Exhibits “A” and "B” of this Agreement
as well as the Scope of Services; and
d) The plans comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, zoning and permitting requirements, public notice
requirements, and other similar regulations.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the Agency, upon request by the Department, shall provide plans and
specifications to the Department for review and approvals.

14.00 Project Completion, Agency Certification. The Agency will certify in writing on or attached to the final invoice,
that the Project was completed in accordance with applicable plans and specifications, is in place on the Agency facility,

that adequate title is in the Agency and that the Project is accepted by the Agency as suitable for the intended purpose.

15.00 Appropriation of Funds:
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15.10 Contingency of Payment. The State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is
contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature. If the Department's funding for this Project is in multiple
fiscal years, funds approval from the Department's Comptroller must be received each fiscal year prior to costs being
incurred. See Exhibit “B” for funding levels by fiscal year.” Project costs utilizing these fiscal year funds are not eligible
for reimbursement if incurred prior to funds approval being received. The Department will notify the Agency, in writing,
when funds are available.

15.20 Multi-Year Commitment. In the event this Agreement is in excess of $25,000 and has a term for a period of more
than one (1) year, the provisions of Chapter 339.135(6)(a), Florida Statutes, are hereby incorporated:

"The Department, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any liability, or enter into any
contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure of money in excess of the amounts budgeted as
available for expenditure during such fiscal year. Any contract, verbal or written, made in violation of this
subsection is null and void, and no money may be paid on such contract. The Department shall require a
statement from the comptroller of the Department that funds are available prior to entering into any such
contract or other binding commitment of funds. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the making of
contracts for periods exceeding 1 year, but any contract so made shall be executory only for the value of
the services to be rendered or agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and this paragraph shall be
incorporated verbatim in all contracts of the Department which are for an amount in excess of $25,000 and
which have a term for a period of more than 1 year."

16.00 Expiration of Agreement. The Agency agrees to complete the Project on or before December 31, 2017. If the
Agency does not complete the Project within this time period, this Agreement will expire unless an extension of the time
period is requested by the Agency and granted in writing by the Department prior to expiration of this Agreement.
Expiration of this Agreement will be considered termination of the Project and the procedure established in Section 8.00
of this Agreement shall be initiated. The cost of any work performed after the expiration date of this Agreement will not
be reimbursed by the Department.

16.10 Final Invoice. The Agency must submit the final invoice on this Project to the Department within 120 days after
the expiration of this Agreement.

17.00 Agreement Format. All words used in this Agreement in the singular form shall extend to and include the plural.
All words used in the plural form shall extend to and include the singular. All words used in any gender shall extend to
and include all genders.

18.00 Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in a minimum of two counterparts,
each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts together shall constitute one in the
same instrument.

19.00 Restrictions on Lobbying:

19.10 Federal. The Agency agrees that no federally-appropriated funds have been paid, or will be paid by or on behalf
of the Agency, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or employee of any federal agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any federal
contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.
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If any funds other than federally-appropriated funds have been paid by the Agency to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Agreement, the undersigned shall complete
and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disciosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.

The Agency shall require that the language of this section be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all
tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans and cooperative agreements) and that all
sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

19.20 State. No funds received pursuant to this Agreement may be expended for lobbying the Legislature, the judicial
branch or a state agency.

20.00 Vendors Rights. The Agency providing goods and services to the Department should be aware of the following
time frames:

a) The Department has 20 days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to DFS. The 20 days are measured
from the latter of the date the invoice is received or the date the goods or services are received, inspected, and
approved. Approval and inspection of goods or services shall take no longer than 20 days following the receipt
of a complete and accurate invoice.

b) If a payment is not available within 40 days, then a separate interest penalty at a rate established pursuant to
Section 55.03(1), Florida Statutes, will be due and payable, in addition to the invoice amount, to the Agency.
The 40 days are measured from the latter of the date the invoice is received or the date the goods or services
are received, inspected, and approved. Interest penalties of less than one (1) dollar will not be enforced unless
the Agency requests payment. Invoices that have to be returned to the Agency because of Agency preparation
errors will result in a delay in the payment. The invoice payment requirements do not start until a properly
completed invoice is provided to the Department. A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within DFS. The
duties of this individual include acting as an advocate for Agencies who may be experiencing problems in
obtaining timely payment(s) from the Department. The Vendor Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 413-
5516.

21.00 Restrictions, Prohibits, Controls, and Labor Provisions. During the performance of this Agreement, the
Agency agrees as follows, and shall require the following provisions to be included in each contract and subcontract
entered info pursuant to this Agreement:

a) A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public
entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not
submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work,
may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a
contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not
transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017,
Florida Statutes for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the
convicted vendor list.

b) In accordance with Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, an entity or affiliate who has been placed on the
discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public
entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building
or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or
perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity,
and may not transact business with any public entity.
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c) An entity or affiliate who has had its Certificate of Qualification suspended, revoked, denied or have further
been determined by the Department to be a non-responsible contractor may not submit a bid or perform
work for the construction or repair of a public building or public work on a contract with the Agency.

d) Neither the Agency nor any of its contractors or their subcontractors shall enter into any contract, subcontract
or arrangement in connection with the Project or any property included or pianned to be included in the
Project in which any member, officer or employee of the Agency or the locality during tenure or for two (2)
years thereafter has any interest, direct or indirect. If any such present or former member, officer or employee
involuntarily acquires or had acquired prior to the beginning of tenure any such interest, and if such interest
is immediately disclosed to the Agency, the Agency, with prior approval of the Department, may waive the
prohibition contained in this paragraph provided that any such present member, officer or employee shall
not participate in any action by the Agency or the locality relating to such contract, subcontract or
arrangement. The Agency shall insert in all contracts entered into in connection with the Project or any
property included or planned to be included in any Project, and shall require its contractors to insert in each
of their subcontracts, the following provision:

"No member, officer or employee of the Agency or of the locality during his tenure or for 2 years
thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof.”

The provisions of this paragraph shall not be applicable to any agreement between the Agency and its fiscal
depositories or to any agreement for utility services the rates for which are fixed or controlled by a
governmental agency.

23.00 Employment Eligibility (Using E-Verify). Agency/Vendors/Contractors:

a) Shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility
of all new employees hired by the Agency during the term of the Agreement; and

b) Shall expressly require any contractors and subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant
to the Agreement to likewise utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify
the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the contractor or subcontractor during the
Agreement term.

24.00 Inspector General Cooperation. The Parties agree to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, and to
incorporate in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes.

25.00 Maintenance of Project. The Agency agrees to maintain any project not on the State Highway System constructed
under this Agreement.

26.00 Federal Grant Number. If the Federal grant number is not available prior to execution of the Agreement, the
Department may unilaterally add the Federal grant number to the Agreement without approval of the Agency and
without an amendment to the Agreement. If this occurs, an updated Agreement that includes the Federal grant number
will be provided to the Agency and uploaded to the Department of Financial Services’ Florida Accountability Contract
Tracking System (FACTS).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents be executed, the day and year first above
written.

AGENCY DEPARTMENT
City of Winter Park
AGENCY NAME DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Frank O'Dea
SIGNATORY (PRINTED OR TYPED) TITLE District Director of Transportation

Development

SIGNATURE LEGAL REVIEW, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

See attached Encumbrance Form for date of
Funding Approval by Comptroller

TITLE
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Contract No.

EXHIBIT “A”
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND RESPONSIBILITIES
This exhibit forms an integral part of that certain Joint Participation Agreement between the

State of Florida Department of Transportation and _City of Winter Park, 401 Park Avenue
South, Winter Park, FL. 32789 dated

PROJECT LOCATION: City of Winter Park
401 Park Avenue South
Winter Park, FL. 32789

Don Marcotte, P.E
Assistant Director Public Works
407-599-3425

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Section 5309 earmark grant funding to enable the
City of Winter Park to mitigate trespassing and safety hazards identified during the Safety and
Security Certification Hazard Analysis process. Approximately six (6) areas and two crossings
have been identified. Mitigation will include installation of vegetation and/or four-foot tall
fencing around the platform area and along the track corridor beginning south of Garfield
Avenue to Fairbanks Avenue. The vegetation landscaping and fence barrier will increase
pedestrian safety around the corridor as well as acting as a noise barrier. Installation of a four-
quad gate system (SSM2) at N. New York Avenue crossing and a four-quad gate system
(SSM2) at W. Lyman Avenue crossing. An eight-foot wide sidewalk will be constructed from
New England Avenue to Fairbanks Avenue for pedestrian connectivity to the SunRail platform.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS BY AGENCY:

The audit report(s) required in paragraph 6.50 of the Agreement shall include a schedule of
project assistance that will reflect the Department's contract number, Financial Management
Number and the Federal Identification number, where applicable, and the amount of state
funding action (receipt and disbursement of funds) and any federal or local funding action and
the funding action from any other source with respect to the project.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS BY DEPARTMENT:

Invoicing should occur at least quarterly with data back-up submitted that include incremental
data that is used to complete required deliverables. The requirement for the agency to provide
data back-up shall be considered a part of the Terms and Conditions of this agreement, and
reimbursement for eligible project expenses shall be conditioned upon receipt of data back-up in
conjunction with a valid and properly prepared invoice.

Milestone Progress Reports detailing the progress of the project will be due on a quarterly basis.
The first report period begins January 1 — March 31, the second quarterly report will be for the
period of April 1 — June 30, the third quarter will begin July 1 — September 30, and the fourth
quarterly report will be for the period of October 1 — December 31.
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EXHIBIT “B”
PROJECT BUDGET

This exhibit forms an integral part of that certain Joint Participation Agreement between the
State of Florida, Department of Transportation and _City of Winter Park, 401 Park Avenue South,
Winter Park. FL. 32789 dated :

I. PROJECT COST:

Trespass and Safety Hazard Mitigation

2070 LF, 2°-3” tall, Shrubs.

1730 LF 4’ Black aluminum Open Rail and/or Vinyl Chain Link Fencing.
4-quad gate system (SSM2) at N. New York Avenue crossing

4-quad gate system (SSM2) at W. Lyman Avenue crossing

Pedestrian Connectivity
1330 LF 8’ Concrete Sidewalk

Mobilization, safety/security supervision, landscaping establishment, worker protection,
inefficiencies working in right of way, contingency

TOTAL PROJECT COST $614, 698.00
II. PARTICIPATION:

Maximum Federal Participation

FTA, FAA (  %)or $
Agency Participation
In-Kind ( %) $
Cash ( %) $
Other ( %) $
Maximum Department Participation,
Primary
(DS)(DDR)(DIM)(PORT) ( %) or $
Federal Reimbursable (BYYERA)DFTA) ( 100%)or $ 614,698.00
Local Reimbursable (DL) ( %) or $
TOTAL PROJECT COST $614,698.00
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Financial No. 412994-3-52-09
Contract No.

EXHIBIT “C”
(GENERAL)

This exhibit forms an integral part of that certain Joint Participation Agreement between the
State of Florida Department of Transportation and the City of Winter Park, 401 Park Avenue South,

Winter Park. FL 32789 , dated

referenced by the above Financial Project Number.

This Agreement is in conformance with Chapter 341.053, Florida Statutes.

The Agency shall comply with applicable Federal laws and regulations, including but not
limited to, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) laws at 49 USC Chapter 53, FTA regulations and
other Federal laws and regulations that contain requirements applicable to FTA recipients and the
FTA assisted procurements. These laws and regulations include, but are not limited to:

a.

b.

FTA Circular 4220.1F Third Party Contracting Guidance, and as revised from time to
time.

Buy America regulations as set forth in 49 USC 5323(j) and in 49 CFR Part 661, and any
amendments thereto; and

The Agency shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies,
procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by
reference in the Master Agreement between the Department and FTA, as they may be
amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Failure to so
comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

The Agency must maintain control over the real property and the facility constructed.
Additionally, the Agency must keep the facilities and the property in good operating
order. An effective maintenance plan shall be established and adhered to by Agency.
Said plan shall include the goals and objectives of the maintenance program so as to
assure that the facilities are fit for their intended purpose and that they are safe and
secure.
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Financial No. 412994-3-52-09
Contract No.

EXHIBIT D

FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (SINGLE AUDIT ACT)

FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

CFDA No.: 20.500

CFDA Title: FEDERAL TRANSIT_CAPITAL INVESTMENT GRANTS
New Starts, Small Starts and Core Capacity

*Award Amount: $614,968.00
Awarding Agency: Florida Department of Transportation
Indirect Cost Rate:
*Award is for R&D:

*The federal award amount may change with supplemental agreements
**Research and Development as defined at §200.87, 2 CFR Part 200

FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING
AUDIT REQUIREMENTS:

2 CFR Part 200 — Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles & Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
www.ecfr.qgov

FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT MAY ALSO BE SUBJECT TO THE
FOLLOWING:

49 USC 5309: Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants
http://uscode.house.gov/browse.xhtml

FTA Circular 9300.1B: Capital Investment Program Guidance and Application Instructions
www.fta.dot.gov/legislation law/12349.html

Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Sub-award Reporting System (FSRS)
www.fsrs.gov
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city commission JDUL blic hearing

Item type Public Hearing meeting date March 27, 2017
prepared by Jeff Briggs approved by |l city Manager
department Planning and Community ! City Attorney
division Development [ InA
ap;r%?/;dl Planning and Zoning Board ! yes |:| no |:| NIA 70 el Yo

.I Cherish and sustain city's extraordinary quality of life.

vision Plan growth through a collaborative process that protects
themes city’s scale and character.
|:| Enhance city's brand through flourishing arts and culture.

|:| Build and embrace local institutions for lifelong learning
and future generations.

Subject: Conditional Use Request for a new 39,877 square foot Orchard Supply
Hardware store at the current Aloma Bowl at 2540 Aloma Avenue, zoned C-3.

Oppidan Holdings LLC is the contract purchaser of Aloma Bowl property, located at 2540 Aloma
Avenue. The property measures 2.06 acres, and is zoned C-3. This request is for a Conditional
Use approval to redevelop this property with a new Orchard Supply Hardware store of 39,877
square feet in size, two-stories, 36 feet in height. Orchard Supply is a boutique hardware store
that is a subsidiary of Lowe’s, and this will be the second store within the City limits. That size
does not include the 4,349 square feet of open landscape garage area since it is uncovered.
This is a Conditional Use because the building size exceeds 10,000 square feet.

Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation:

Motion made by James Johnston, seconded by Randall Slocum to approve the Conditional Use
to construct a 39,877 square foot Orchard Supply Hardware store at 2540 Aloma Avenue,
subject to the staff conditions and modifications from the applicant as follows:

1. That the project is approved with the building signage as presented and in
consideration of the exception provided for wall signhage, that the Aloma Avenue
primary sign be limited to monument signage with non-interior illumination and
dimensions as presented by staff in lieu of a pole/pylon sign.

2. That the project’'s landscape plan be supplemented by adding an additional
landscape island via the loss of one parking space on the western parking row.

3. That the loading and service area screen walls for the dumpsters and loading dock
be of comparable decorative desigh materials to the main building.

4. That the off-site parking agreement with Panera must include provisions which
indicate that 24 off-site spaces are to be utilized by Orchard Supply to meet the
minimum parking requirements established by the City via this Conditional Use
approval and that those 24 spaces may not be used by Panera or any predecessors
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in title in the future for restaurants remodeling or expansion toward any increase
in seating on that property above the 151 seats now allowed.

5. The electric transformer/switch gear shall be located where not visible from a
public street. Backflow preventers shall be landscaped so as to be effectively
screened from view.

6. That the project shall comply with the City’s bicycle parking ordinance and provide
at least 14 bike parking spaces.

Summary: The 2.06 acre property currently holds the Aloma Bowl. The project would demolish
the Aloma Bowl building and rebuild a building in generally the same location with parking in the
front and side. To the north, across Aloma Avenue is a CVS Pharmacy and bank. To the south
is the two-story, Winter Park Oaks apartment complex. To the east is a dentist/orthodontist
building as well as duplex homes, further east across Balfour Drive are additional single-family
homes that are in unincorporated Orange County. To the west is a Panera Bread and a Jimmy
Hulas.

Comparison with the Orlando Avenue Orchard Supply: The Orchard Supply Hardware Store
on Orlando Avenue is 32,355 square feet under roof with another 2,678 square feet of open air
landscape garden sales area. The City’s parking requirements for that project were based on
one space per 250 square feet for the 26,547 square feet of retail commercial floor space; one
space per 1,000 square feet for the 3,947 square feet of warehouse area and one space per 500
square feet for the 4,512 square feet of covered and open landscape garden area. The total
parking required was 119 spaces. The plan proposed had 96 spaces on-site, and was granted a
parking variance of 23 spaces (19.3%). P&Z and the City Commission both approved this
parking variance.

Proposed Aloma Avenue Orchard Supply: This proposed Orchard Supply store is slightly
larger but some of that square footage is the two-story vaulted ceiling space inside the store
entrance. The actual physical floor space on both floors is 30,293 square feet of retail
commercial floor space, 2,616 square feet of warehouse area, and 1,299 square feet of covered
landscape garden area for a total useable floor space of 34,208 square feet.

In terms of parking, 30,293 square feet of retail commercial floor space at one space per 250 sq.
ft., 2,616 square feet of warehouse area at one space per 1,000 sq. ft., and 5,648 square feet of
covered and open landscape garden area at one space per 500 sq. ft. yields a total parking
requirement of 135 spaces. The site plan shows 87 spaces, when one space is lost per the Urban
Forestry comment below, which would require a variance of 48 spaces (36%).

The applicants believe that the nature of their business and the significant amount of floor area
covered by inventory reduce the need for parking well within the amount of parking provided.
The applicants have provided a parking demand analysis prepared by CPH, the civil engineers for
the project. That survey observed maximum parking rates of 1.10 cars per 1,000 square feet
versus the blended Winter Park requirement of 3.40 cars/spaces per 1,000 square feet. Based
upon the 90 parking spaces to be provided, that would result in a blended ratio of 2.26
cars/spaces per 1,000 square feet.

The applicant is also indicates that they have secured two off-site parking agreements with the
adjacent Panera Bread (24 spaces) and dentist/orthodontist (23 spaces on weekends when the
office is closed). The agreement with the dentist/orthodontist is good for the weekend peak
times. However, those spaces cannot be counted toward the City’s parking requirement with
that limited time availability.

The Panera Bread has 151 seats, which per code requires 51 parking spaces. The Panera Bread

property has 75 parking spaces, so 24 spaces are above the code requirements. No more than
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that nhumber of seats then would be permitted if the surplus 24 spaces in the Panera parking lot
are allocated via easement to Orchard Supply. Staff did a parking count on two occasions at the
Panera Bread parking lot at their weekday peak lunch-time hour and counted a maximum of 10
open parking spaces. So at certain limited times during the lunch peak the full number may not
be available. With the Panera parking of 24 spaces, the parking variance is 24 spaces or a
17.8% parking variance which is in line with the extent of the parking variances granted for the
Orlando Avenue store.

Landscaping and Tree Preservation: Overall the impervious coverage of the site will be
below the code maximum of 85% at 80%. The applicant is adding additional landscape islands
than what exists in the current Aloma Bowl parking lot/entrance. The City Arborist reviewed the
landscape plans. Although the center parking rows exceed the 10 spaces in a row without a
landscape island, the City Arborist is okay with this because of the additional landscaped areas
created at the entrance to the property. The western parking row however, has 18 spaces in a
row without a landscape island, and the City Arborist is not okay with this long row and is
recommending compliance with Code via the placement of an additional landscape island
(variance for 9 feet width versus 12 feet required) which results in a lost parking space. A
specific detailed landscape plan with types, sizes, quantities, etc. is provided.

Storm Water Retention: The site currently has no storm water retention. The redevelopment
of this property will retrofit the site to conform to the storm water retention requirements of the
City and St. Johns River Water Management District. The storm water design and calculations
have been submitted. The location of the storm water retention area has been purposefully
selected to be adjacent to the southern multifamily development.

Traffic Impact: The applicant has submitted a traffic study addressing the traffic generation
and impacts from this project and included are the summary pages with this staff report. The
proposed project will generate 1,034 trips per day. There are two options to exit eastbound
onto Aloma Avenue, but no options to exit westbound. This forces drivers to make a u-turn at
the Aloma/Balfour intersection.

Site and Urban Design: Staff would typically prefer to see this building located closer to
Aloma Avenue to hide their parking lot, as well as be in line with the adjacent building locations.
However this would create a mix of back-of-house operations with the parking lot. The applicant
is creating a safer pedestrian connection from Aloma Avenue into the store than what exists
today. While patrons to a hardware store would likely not ride their bicycles to this store, bicycle
parking should still be provided, particularly for the employees. The site plan does not show any
bicycle parking and per code, 14 bike parking spaces are required.

The location of the storm water retention area adjacent to the neighboring Winter Park Oaks
apartments which provides a small buffer from that common property line, but the receiving
area is also located in this area. There are also two duplex homes to the east of the property. It
is important that the project screen to the extent possible the loading area and dumpsters as
well as the massing of the building from these adjacent residential properties. There is an
existing concrete screen wall and landscaping, and the applicant is proposing to add additional
trees to these property lines.

Project Signage: The project’s signs are part of the submittal package. The wall signs proposed
are compatible with the scale of the building but technically the code only allows one wall sign
per street frontage. In light of this minor exception requested, the City is proposing a change to
the main building signage on Orlando Avenue. Rather than a 25 foot tall, 85 square foot pylon
sign, the staff (City Architect) and P&Z Board is suggesting a monument sign, per the
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dimensions and materials as shown in the attached drawing. It is the same size but with a stone
material base and other elements of the building architecture. Staff believes that this alternate
sign will be more attractive but also be more visible as is at eye level with motorists passing by.
Surface lighting should also be used here, instead of internal illumination.

Planning and Zoning Board Summary: The P&Z Board heard many heartfelt stories of the
importance of the Aloma Bowl to the lives of many of the patrons. The P&Z Board was asked by
many people at their public hearing to help “Save the Aloma Bowl”. This application, as
explained to those at the P&Z meeting, is between two private parties. The City’s role is to
evaluate the application for appropriateness under the Land Development Code requirements.

The City does exercise its’ Conditional Use authority to ensure that any expansion to the Aloma
Bowl or any new building is being built in conformance with the Code and with minimal impact
on neighbors. The P&Z Board felt that the conditions of approval safeguard the adequacy of
parking and provide some aesthetic upgrades through modifications to the landscape package
and signage. The main issue relates to parking as the proposed building is too large to support
the parking needed by Code on-site. The request for a parking variance of 24 spaces (17.8%)
and the reliance on 24 off-site parking spaces at Panera was accepted by staff and the P&Z
Board as it was in line with the parking variance approved for the Orlando Avenue store.
However, it is important to note that every variance is a case by case determination and the City
Commission is not obligated to approve any parking variance.

Planning and Zoning Board Minutes - March 7, 2017:

REQUEST OF OPPIDAN HOLDINGS LLC FOR: CONDITIONAL USE
APPROVAL TO BUILD AN ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE STORE OF
APPROXIMATELY 39,877 SQUARE FEET IN SIZE ON THE CURRENT SITE
OF THE ALOMA BOWL AT 2530 ALOMA AVENUE, ZONED COMMERCIAL (C-
3) AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS AND FOR A
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, IF REQUIRED.

Planning Manager, Jeff Briggs, presented the staff report. He described the Aloma bowl property and
reminded the Board the project would demolish the Aloma Bowl building and rebuild a building, Orchard
Supply, in generally the same location with parking in the front and side. He presented comparison
between the existing Orchard Supply store on Orlando and the one proposed by the applicant,
landscaping and tree preservation, traffic impact, storm water retention, design and project signage.

Attorney Rebecca Wilson, Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor and Reed, 215 N. Eola Dr., represented
the applicant. Ms. Wilson introduced the project engineer, Peter-Jon Sutch who presented information
regarding the project revisions. The applicant is in agreement with the Staff conditions, save and except
a few minor conditions:

1. On the first condition of approval, the applicant is requesting to be allowed to use the existing pole
sign, but improve it in accordance to the graphics presented.

2. There is a small change in regard to the off street, offsite parking rather than there being 21 parking
spaces there will be 24 parking spaces

3. Regarding the electric transformer and switch gear, the applicant is asking that the back flow
preventers be landscaped to be effectively screened from view rather than not located at the public
right-of-way, because they have to be located at the right-of-way

Chairman Johnston asked the Board if there were any questions for the applicant
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Mr. Sutch and Ms. Wilson responded to questions from the board regarding the size of the proposed
building project versus the existing building on Orlando Avenue, clarification on the parking spaces in
the variance request, and measurements of the existing pole sign existing on the property.

The Board received comments from the following citizens: Destiny Walton, 3474 Balsam Drive; Gerald
Allison, 63 Pine Arbor Drive; Tina Saile, 5422 Albert Drive; Jim Odom, 4709 Swansneck Place, Richard
Elliott, 4570 Ocean Beach Blvd; David Reynolds, 232 N. Park Avenue; Steve Miller, 110 Detmar Drive;
Cynthia Allison, 722 Carnation Drive; Stacy Rodriguez, 2687 Merrie Oaks Road; Danielle Allison, 722
Carnation Drive; George Busenlehner, 1621 Aster Drive; Deb Fields, 5468 Peaco Place; Ann Higbie,
190 Ward Drive; and Jim Cook.

Ms. Wilson was allowed an opportunity to rebut. She addressed the public’s concern regarding the sale
of the Aloma bowl and clarified that the City is not involved with the sale of the Aloma Bowl and the
request being addressed is for site plan and parking variance proposed for the new project.

Ms. Wilson then responded to questions from the Board regarding signage related to design and height
restrictions and offsite parking.

Motion made by James Johnston, seconded by Randall Slocum to approve the Conditional Use
to construct a 39,877 square foot Orchard Supply Hardware store at 2540 Aloma Avenue,
subject to the staff conditions and modifications from the applicant as follows:

1. That the project is approved with the building signage as presented and in consideration of
the exception provided for wall signage, that the Aloma Avenue primary sign be limited to
monument signage with non-interior illumination and dimensions as presented by staff in
lieu of a pole/pylon sign.

2. That the project’s landscape plan be supplemented by adding an additional landscape
island via the loss of one parking space on the western parking row.

3. That the loading and service area screen walls for the dumpsters and loading dock be of
comparable decorative design materials to the main building.

4. That the off-site parking agreement with Panera must include provisions which indicate that
24 off-site spaces are to be utilized by Orchard Supply to meet the minimum parking
requirements established by the City via this Conditional Use approval and that those 24
spaces may not be used by Panera or any predecessors in title in the future for restaurants
remodeling or expansion toward any increase in seating on that property above the 151
seats now allowed.

5. The electric transformer/switch gear shall be located where not visible from a public street.
Backflow preventers shall be landscaped so as to be effectively screened from view.

6. That the project shall comply with the City’s bicycle parking ordinance and provide at least
14 bike parking spaces.
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Urban Forestry Staff Comments
RE: Orchard Supply (Aloma Bowl)
DRC Meeting 2/15/17

o UF staff met with landscape architect on site.

e UF staff recommends removing a declining laurel oak on the west
property line due to poor health.

e UF staff recommends planting 2 live oaks on the west property line.

o UF staff suggests a break in the hedge to prevent damage to plant
material from social trail activity between the two parking lots.

e As a condition of approval UF staff to direct the pruning and advise of
BMP's for pruning prior to any pruning of trees on site. In particular,
the crape myrtles located near/under the Duke Energy transmission

facility.
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Parcel Report for 04-22-30-0000-00-028

Appraiser
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Parcel Report for 04-22-30-0000-00-028
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